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Part I

Item 1.  Business 

We are a national retailer primarily focused on selling home appliances, lawn and garden equipment, tools and hardware. 
As of February 1, 2014, we and our dealers and franchisees operated 1,260 stores across all 50 states, Puerto Rico and Bermuda. 
In addition to merchandise, we provide our customers with access to a full suite of services, including home delivery, installation, 
and extended-service plans.

 In October 2012 we became a separate, publicly held company following our separation from Sears Holdings Corporation 
("Sears Holdings").  Prior to our separation from Sears Holdings, through a series of intercompany transactions, Sears Holdings 
and several of its subsidiaries transferred the assets and liabilities comprising the Sears Hometown and Hardware and Sears Outlet 
businesses to Sears Hometown and Outlet Stores, Inc., a Delaware corporation (“SHO,”  “our company,” the “Company,” “we,” 
“our,” or “us”), which was formed on April 23, 2012 as a wholly owned subsidiary of Sears Holdings.  Sears Holdings then 
distributed to the holders of its common stock as of September 7, 2012 transferable subscription rights to purchase all of SHO's 
outstanding shares of common stock (the “Rights”).  On October 11, 2012 Sears Holdings completed the separation of SHO by 
distributing all of its outstanding shares of SHO common stock to those persons who had exercised the Rights (the “Separation”).  
Effective upon the Separation, Sears Holdings ceased to own any shares of SHO's common stock, and thereafter SHO's common 
stock began trading on the NASDAQ Stock Market under the trading symbol “SHOS.”  

We operate through two segments—the Sears Hometown and Hardware segment ("Hometown") and the Sears Outlet segment 
("Outlet").  Our Hometown stores are designed to provide our customers with in-store and online access to a wide selection of 
national brands of home appliances, lawn and garden equipment, tools, sporting goods, and household goods, depending on the 
particular store.  Our Outlet stores are designed to provide in-store and online access to purchase new, one-of-a-kind, out-of-carton, 
discontinued, obsolete, used, reconditioned, overstocked and scratched and dented products, collectively “outlet-value products” 
across a broad assortment of merchandise categories, including home appliances, mattresses, apparel and lawn and garden 
equipment at prices that are significantly lower than manufacturers’ suggested retail prices.  See Note 8 to our Consolidated 
Financial Statements for further information about our segments.

The majority of our Hometown stores are operated by independent dealers and franchisees.  SHO provides brand and 
marketing support and inventory on consignment.  We initiated efforts to franchise Outlet stores in 2012, with the first stores 
transferred to franchisees late that year.  We expect to continue franchising Outlet stores, and we believe that over time most of 
our Outlet stores could be franchised. We pay our dealers and franchisees commissions based on their net sales of our inventory 
we consigned to them. We also authorize dealers and franchisees to sell post-sale services, such as extended-service plans, for 
which we also pay commissions.

Hometown

As of February 1, 2014, we and our dealers and franchisees operated a total of 1,117 Sears Hometown and Hardware stores 
located across all 50 states, Puerto Rico and Bermuda.

Our Hometown segment operates through three distinct formats: Sears Hometown Stores (“Hometown Stores”), Sears 
Hardware Stores (“Hardware Stores”), and Sears Home Appliance Showrooms (“Home Appliance Showrooms”).

• Hometown Stores. Our Hometown Stores offer products and services across a wide selection of merchandise categories, 
including home appliances, lawn and garden equipment, tools, sporting goods, and household goods, with the majority of 
business driven by big-ticket home appliance and lawn and garden sales. Most of our Hometown Stores carry Sears brand 
products, including products branded with the KENMORE®, CRAFTSMAN®, and DIEHARD® marks (which marks are 
owned by subsidiaries of Sears Holdings and are collectively referred to as the "KCD Marks"), and an assortment of other 
national brands. Primarily independently operated, predominantly located in smaller communities and averaging 
approximately 8,500 square feet, Hometown Stores are designed to serve trade areas that may not support a full-service 
big-box retailer. As of February 1, 2014, there were 931 Hometown Stores in all 50 states, Puerto Rico and Bermuda.  926 
of these stores are operated by independent dealers and five stores are operated by us.  

• Hardware Stores. Our Hardware Stores offer products and services across a wide selection of merchandise categories with 
sales primarily driven by home appliances, lawn and garden equipment, tools, and other home improvement products. In 
addition, these stores offer certain proprietary in-store services, such as blade sharpening, key cutting and screen repair, as 
well as products typically found in local hardware stores, such as fasteners, electrical supplies and plumbing supplies.  Our 
Hardware Stores have operated as two formats: “traditional” and “neighborhood”, with size being the differentiating factor 
between the two formats.  Our “traditional” Hardware Stores average nearly 28,000 square feet in size. Our “neighborhood” 
Hardware Stores are much smaller in size, averaging 16,000 to 18,000 square feet, and yet, through our multichannel 
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capability, continue to offer the same breadth and depth of inventory as our “traditional” Hardware Stores.  Our Hardware 
Stores, regardless of size, are primarily located in suburban trade areas and are positioned as local stores designed to appeal 
to convenience-oriented customers. These stores carry Craftsman brand tools and lawn and garden equipment, DieHard 
brand batteries and a wide assortment of other national brands and other home improvement products. As of February 1, 
2014, there were 85 Hardware Stores in 16 states, 83 of which also carry a selection of Kenmore and other national brands 
of home appliances. 76 of these stores are operated by franchisees, and the remaining nine stores are operated by us. 

• Home Appliance Showrooms. Our Home Appliance Showrooms offer home appliances and related services in stores 
primarily located in strip malls and lifestyle centers of metropolitan areas.  Averaging 5,000 square feet with a simple, 
primarily appliance showroom design, our Home Appliance Showrooms offer quality-focused customers a unique store 
shopping experience.  Home Appliance Showroom sales are primarily driven by big-ticket cooking, laundry and refrigeration 
home appliances as well as, in certain stores, mattresses.  These stores carry Kenmore and other national brands of home 
appliances. As of February 1, 2014, there were 101 Home Appliance Showrooms in 23 states.  83 of these stores are operated 
by franchisees, 16 stores are operated by us and two are operated by independent dealers.

In 2013, revenue from our Hometown segment was $1.8 billion.

Outlet

Our Sears Outlet stores (the "Outlet Stores") are designed to provide in-store and online access to purchase outlet-value 
products across a broad assortment of merchandise categories, including home appliances, mattresses, apparel, sporting goods, 
lawn and garden equipment, tools, and other household goods, including furniture, at prices that are significantly lower than 
manufacturers’ suggested retail prices.  Outlet Stores serve as a liquidation channel for outlet-value home appliances from major 
appliance vendors.  In 2013, Outlet’s most significant merchandise category was home appliances, which made up 78% of our 
Outlet sales revenue. Outlet-value products are generally covered by a warranty.  Outlet Stores also offer a full suite of extended-
service plans and services.  As of February 1, 2014, Outlet operated 143 locations, of which 142 offer a wide range of outlet-value 
products, and one was a retail apparel only store.  Outlet also sells products through our website, www.searsoutlet.com.  While 
the majority of our Outlet stores are Company-operated, we initiated a program to franchise Outlet stores in 2012.  As of February 
1, 2014, 115 Outlet Stores were Company-operated and 28 were operated by franchisees.

In 2013, revenue from our Outlet segment was $610 million. 

Competition

Hometown

Our Hometown business is subject to highly competitive conditions, with varying levels of competition in each store’s trade 
area.  Hometown Stores and Hardware Stores compete with a wide variety of retailers handling similar lines of merchandise, 
including department stores, discounters, mass merchandisers, specialty retailers, wholesale clubs, and many other competitors 
operating on a national, regional or local level. Hometown Stores and Hardware Stores also compete with online and catalog 
businesses that have similar merchandise offerings.  Home Appliance Showroom Stores compete with all of the previously listed 
competitors to the extent that they sell home appliances.

The key national competitors of the Hometown Stores, the Hardware Stores, and the Home Appliance Showroom Stores 
are The Home Depot and Lowe’s, as well as Ace Hardware and True Value for the Hardware Stores, and Tractor Supply for the 
Hometown Stores and the Hardware Stores, all of which offer consumers lines of merchandise that are the same as or similar to 
lines of merchandise offered by the Hometown Stores, the Hardware Stores and the Home Appliance Showrooms.  Subsidiaries 
of Sears Holdings offer consumers lines of merchandise that are similar to the lines of merchandise offered by the Hometown 
Stores, the Hardware Stores and the Home Appliance Showrooms.  We believe that, historically, the Hometown Stores, the Hardware 
Stores and the Home Appliance Showroom Stores generally have not competed significantly with the stores operated by Sears 
Holdings’ subsidiaries.  As our Hometown business grows by opening new stores, entering new trade areas, and expanding our 
merchandise offerings (for example, our increased emphasis on mattresses), the level of competition between the Hometown 
Stores, the Hardware Stores and the Home Appliance Showrooms and the stores operated by Sears Holdings' subsidiaries may 
increase.  In addition to being the principal merchandise vendor for the Hometown business, Sears Holdings also continues to 
provide e-commerce services and support to SHO, and online sales by Sears Holdings’ subsidiaries that do not originate, or that 
do not involve merchandise pick up, in physical stores may compete with the e-commerce activity of the Hometown business.

We believe that the key differentiating factors between competitors operating in this industry include price, product assortment 
and quality, service and convenience, brand recognition, existence of loyalty programs, online and multichannel capabilities and 
availability of retail-related services such as access to credit, product delivery, repair and installation.
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Outlet

The Outlet Stores operate in the highly fragmented outlet-value retail industry.  In our primary product category, appliances,  
our Outlet Stores compete at one end of the spectrum with big-box retailers who sell primarily new, in-box product, as new in-
box product competes both with new in-box product sold in the Outlet Stores and with the out-of-box product sold in the Outlet 
Stores.  To the extent these big-box competitors choose to liquidate their own out-of-box product on their sales floors, this product 
would compete directly with out-of-box product sold in the Outlet Stores.  At the other end of the spectrum are the locally owned 
appliance dealers that have historically comprised the bulk of the Outlet Store’s direct competition for out-of-box product.  These 
locally owned appliance dealers generally sell some combination of out-of-box and new in-box appliances.  Online retailers, selling 
new or out-of-box appliances, are an additional source of competition.

The Outlet Store's key national competitors with respect to new, in-box appliances are The Home Depot and Lowe’s. In 
addition, as we continue to expand our product lines into categories such as mattresses, furniture and apparel, we expect to face 
additional competition from other discount retailers that focus on those product categories.  While stores operated by subsidiaries 
of Sears Holdings provide similar lines of merchandise as the Outlet Stores, the Outlet Stores are value-price sellers of primarily 
distressed, refurbished, and marked-out-of-stock merchandise, which merchandise the stores operated by Sears Holdings' 
subsidiaries generally do not sell in what we believe are significant volumes to consumers.  Consequently, we believe that, 
historically, the Outlet Stores have not competed significantly with the stores operated by subsidiaries of Sears Holdings.  As our 
Outlet business grows by opening new stores, franchising new and existing stores, entering new trade areas, and expanding our 
merchandise offerings (for example, our recent increased emphasis on mattresses and furniture), the level of competition between 
the Outlet Stores and the stores operated by Sears Holdings' subsidiaries may increase. 

We believe that the key differentiating factor between competitors operating in this industry is price. Other factors include 
product assortment and quality, service and convenience, brand recognition, existence of loyalty programs, online and multichannel 
capabilities and availability of retail-related services such as access to credit and product delivery.

Our Strengths

We believe that our competitive strengths are the following:

Our stores carry a wide variety of well-known, brand-name merchandise.

We offer our customers a broad selection of products, including well-known consumer brand names such as Kenmore, 
Craftsman and DieHard, and we strive to offer high in-stock levels.  A typical Hometown Store offers a selection of products 
similar to department stores, discounters, mass merchandisers and wholesale clubs and carries more types of products than specialty 
retailers and smaller independent appliance and hardware stores.  This ability to offer a wide variety of well-known, consumer 
brand name merchandise enables us to remain competitive in our trade areas and to continue to attract customers.

We operate across the nation through distinctly tailored store formats.

Our different store formats are targeted to the trade areas in which they compete. Our Hometown Stores offer customers in 
more rural communities a wide variety of merchandise. In those trade areas, we compete against larger national or regional big-
box stores on the basis of the convenient shopping experience we provide, and we compete against local independent stores based 
on our product offerings and competitive pricing.

Our Hardware Stores are located in neighborhood centers in suburban areas where customers can fulfill their hardware, lawn 
and garden and, in certain stores, home appliance needs. These stores compete against larger warehouse home centers and smaller 
local hardware stores by offering a broad assortment of products, convenient outlets and personalized customer assistance.

Our Home Appliance Showrooms include appealing display floors in metropolitan trade areas where we compete with big-
box retailers by offering a compelling service model, a wide assortment of brand-name home appliances, significant online and 
multichannel capabilities, and convenient locations. We differentiate ourselves from our competitors by providing our customers 
with a consultative and educational purchase experience. To accommodate the lifestyles of our metropolitan customers, we also 
provide after-hours showings by appointment.

Our Outlet Stores offer customers a wide range of outlet-value products at over 140 locations across the United States and 
Puerto Rico. Our Outlet Stores differentiate themselves from their competitors by providing a wide range of outlet-value brand-
name products, including Kenmore, Whirlpool®, LG, and Samsung products, at prices that are significantly lower than 
manufacturers’ suggested retail prices.
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In addition, SHO has stores located in all 50 states as well as Puerto Rico and Bermuda, without any concentration in one 
particular region or trade area. The ability to generate revenues with a wide variety of products across a diversified mix of regions 
and trade areas positions us to be able to take advantage of opportunities as they arise.

The fact that our Hometown Stores, Hardware Stores and Home Appliance Showrooms are primarily operated by dealers 
or franchisees, and that we have increased our franchising of Outlet Stores, allows us to leverage the knowledge, experience 
and capital of our dealers and franchisees.

Our Hometown Stores are primarily owned and operated by individual dealers and the majority of our Home Appliance 
Showrooms and Hardware Stores are operated by franchisees.  We are increasingly converting our existing Company-owned and 
operated Outlet Stores to stores that are owned and operated by franchisees.  Under both our dealer model and our franchise model, 
SHO provides inventory (on a consignment basis), branding and marketing to the stores and the dealer or franchisee is responsible 
for start-up costs, lease payments and other operating costs including payroll. This model allows us to leverage the entrepreneurial 
spirit of our dealers and franchisees and their local trade-area knowledge to better serve their customers. In addition, our franchise 
model frees up capital and enables us to focus on strategic planning, including store growth, marketing and pricing strategies. We 
regularly evaluate the performance of franchised and dealer stores and require compliance with established customer service and 
other operational guidelines.

Our Outlet Stores are a leading liquidation channel of value-priced home appliances.

As one of the nation’s largest chain retailers of outlet-value home appliances, our Outlet business has become increasingly 
relevant to major appliance vendors as a liquidation channel of outlet-value appliances.

Our Strategy

We plan to continue to enhance our competitive position, grow our business and increase our net sales and profitability by 
implementing the following strategies:

Expand Product Assortment and Optimize Services Offering. We strive to provide customers complete solutions for their 
home appliance, hardware and other related home needs. We are constantly evaluating other merchandise categories and types of 
services to enhance our product and service offerings and to create cross-selling opportunities for adjacent products and services. 
For example, our initiatives to increase product offerings include expanding apparel and adding furniture in our Outlet Stores and 
adding mattresses in our Home Appliance Showrooms.

Promote Customer Growth through Enhanced Marketing, Improved Customer Experience and Integrated Multi-Channel 
Capabilities. We seek to serve our customers’ needs and drive revenue growth through our integrated multi-channel sale capabilities. 
We continue to expand our e-commerce operations and our online product selection to enhance customers’ online shopping 
experiences. We seek to integrate our online business and our brick-and-mortar stores to provide our customers with a seamless 
shopping experience across channels. We offer our customers the option to purchase items online and pick them up in our local 
stores as well as order out-of-stock and other items from our in-store kiosks. These capabilities allow us to better serve customers 
across various channels and improve sales.

We also participate in Sears Holdings’ SHOP YOUR WAYTM program (the “SYW program”).  The SYW program is a social 
shopping experience where members have the ability to earn points, receive additional benefits, and interact and shop with each 
other through shopyourway.com.  We believe our SYW program participation helps us enhance our customer shopping experience 
by building relationships with SYW program members.  In addition, we view the SYW program as a means to expand our customer 
base and enhance our ability to communicate in more targeted and relevant ways with our customers that are SYW-program 
members.

We also plan to drive customer growth by expanding our marketing initiatives. We believe that we can grow our customer 
base through advertising in a number of different media, particularly online and email marketing.

We believe that quality customer service contributes to increased store visits and purchases by our customers. We are focused 
on building long-term relationships with customers and members by improving their in-store and post-sale experiences.  We 
conduct quality control checks of our dealers, franchisees, store managers and sales associates to improve the quality of customer 
interaction and product knowledge at all levels of our organization.  We continue to improve and augment our post-sale engagement 
with customers through access to delivery and installation services as well as extended-service plans.

Diversify Our Supply Chain. We intend to continue our efforts to diversify our network of merchandise suppliers and service 
providers. Such diversification, particularly with respect to merchandise suppliers, is intended to reduce our reliance on Sears 
Holdings for our inventory.
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Improve Operating Performance. We intend to focus on various initiatives intended to improve our gross margins and our 
inventory management. Our inventory procurement operations are focused on developing customized merchandise assortments 
based on store demographics, sales history, customer preferences and margin by product division. Our inventory management 
focuses on continually adjusting clearance markdown cadences to reflect changes in inventory turnover and customer preferences. 
In addition, we intend to focus on controlling costs across our business lines, particularly selling and administrative expenses.

Expand Our Store Base. We believe we are positioned to leverage our competitive advantages and grow our Hometown 
and Outlet store bases over the long term. We continue to evaluate expansion opportunities based on market potential. We have 
identified the expansion of Outlet Stores as a priority to drive revenue growth in that business and further enhance our position 
and purchasing power in the outlet-value home appliance market. We also intend to grow our Hometown business by pursuing 
expansion in major trade areas for our Home Appliance Showrooms and a wide range of smaller trade areas for our Hometown 
Stores. We are also testing opportunities to expand our Hardware Stores.

Continue Shift to Franchise Model. We believe we can reduce our capital expenditures, grow our store base in a capital 
efficient manner, and leverage the local knowledge and expertise of franchisees by moving more of our Home Appliance 
Showrooms, Hardware Stores and Outlet Stores to the franchise model.

Our Products and Suppliers

Our focus on the preferences of our customers drives our merchandise selection. Our goal is to offer our customers a large 
selection of brands and products within each of our product categories. Our largest revenue-generating category in 2013 was home 
appliances, representing approximately 68% of net sales.

We are party to a Merchandising Agreement (the "Merchandising Agreement") with Sears Holdings, Kmart Corporation, 
(“Kmart") and Sears, Roebuck and Co. (“SRC”) (Kmart and SRC are wholly owned subsidiaries of Sears Holdings) pursuant to 
which Kmart and SRC (1) sell to us, with respect to certain specified product categories, Sears brand products (including products 
branded with the KCD Marks) and vendor-branded products obtained from Kmart’s and SRC’s vendors and suppliers and (2) grant 
us licenses to use the trademarks owned by Kmart, SRC or other subsidiaries of Sears Holdings, including the KCD Marks, in 
connection with the marketing and sale of products sold under the Sears marks. The initial term of the Merchandising Agreement 
will expire in 2018 subject to early termination rights that are specified in the Merchandising Agreement.  We expect that our 
Hometown business will continue to rely on Sears Holdings for a significant majority of its inventory. 

For the year ended February 1, 2014, products that we acquired through Sears Holdings accounted for approximately 84% 
of SHO's merchandise purchases.  Most merchandise purchases for Hometown are sourced through Sears Holdings.  Our Outlet 
business relies on suppliers other than Sears Holdings for a significant portion of its inventory.  For the year ended February 1, 
2014, products that we acquired through Sears Holdings accounted for approximately 41% of total Outlet purchases.  

We have entered into agreements with Sears Holdings, as well as with third-party service providers, to provide processing 
and administrative functions over a broad range of areas, and we are likely to continue to do so in the future.  We expect to continue 
to rely heavily on the infrastructure of Sears Holdings for a variety of key products and services. Our business plan depends to a 
significant extent on Sears Holdings’ ability and willingness to meet its contractual obligations to supply us with these key products 
and services.

Our Franchise and Dealer Models

Franchise Model

As of February 1, 2014, 83 of our Home Appliance Showrooms, 76 of our Hardware Stores, and 28 of our Outlet Stores 
were operated by independent franchisees.  Under our primary franchise model, the franchisee operates the store and is responsible 
for its operating costs, including payroll and leasing costs.  SHO provides inventory to the franchisee on a consignment basis, and 
the franchisee earns variable commissions on sales of merchandise, extended-service plans, and other services.  In addition, SHO 
also provides brand and marketing services to franchisees.  We are actively seeking to sell all of our owned Home Appliance 
Showrooms, Hardware Stores, and Outlet Stores to franchisees, which will permit us to recapture our investment in existing stores 
by including the invested capital in the purchase price we receive from the franchisee.  We generally receive a portion of the 
purchase price in cash and take a note back from the franchisee for the bulk of the purchase price.  In certain cases, especially 
with respect to stores that have been recently sold to a franchisee, SHO remains responsible for lease costs in the case of a default 
by a franchisee until the expiration of such lease, at which time our franchisee is generally required to negotiate a new lease to 
which SHO will not be a party.

The franchise relationship is governed by a franchise agreement that generally has a ten-year term and that includes the 
franchisee's right to extend the term for an additional five years subject to the franchisee's satisfaction of renewal conditions that 
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are specified in the franchise agreement.  The franchise agreement also obligates the franchisee to pay to SHO certain fees, including 
an initial franchise fee, training fees, transfer fees and successor franchise fees. 

Dealer Model

As of February 1, 2014, over 900 of our Hometown Stores were operated by independent authorized dealers who own and 
operate their stores. The dealer bears responsibility for store operating costs, including all payroll and leasing costs. SHO provides 
the inventory to the dealer on a consignment basis, and the dealer earns a variable commission on sales of merchandise, extended-
service plans, and other services.  SHO also provides support to dealers for recruiting and training dealer staff, marketing, and 
other support services.

The dealer relationship is governed by a dealer agreement, which generally has either a three or five-year term (depending 
on its terms and conditions).  In the event that a dealer defaults or fails to renew its dealer agreement, SHO may assume responsibility 
for the operation of the store on a month-to-month basis until a new dealer is recruited to operate the store.

Distribution and Systems Infrastructure

The majority of our merchandise comes to our stores directly from vendors or distributors (including Sears Holdings) through 
our agreements with Sears Holdings.  Home delivery is provided by the selling dealers and franchisees and by Sears Holdings.

We rely extensively on computer systems to process transactions, summarize results and manage our business. Given the 
number of individual transactions we have each year, it is critical that we maintain uninterrupted operation of our computer and 
communications hardware and software systems. We currently rely on Sears Holdings to provide us with the computer systems 
and infrastructure that enable our distribution systems. In addition, we also rely on Sears Holdings for warehousing and other 
logistics services.

We are party to a Services Agreement pursuant to which Sears Holdings Management Corporation (“SHMC,” a wholly 
owned subsidiary of Sears Holdings) provides us with a number of services, including logistics and distribution, information 
technology (including the point-of-sale system used by the Company and its dealers and franchisees), and payment clearing and 
other financial services (the "Services Agreement").  The term of the Services Agreement will expire in 2018, subject to specified 
termination rights. We pay firm fees and rates for the services received for the first three years of the Services Agreement, and 
will negotiate with SHMC the fees and rates for the fourth and fifth years of the term, and the six-month period following the fifth 
year, on a good-faith basis.  In addition, we also pay all taxes payable in connection with the services we receive provided under 
the Services Agreement.  See "Certain Relationships and Transactions" in the 2014 Proxy Statement, which is incorporated by 
reference into Item 13 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K. 

Geographic Information

The vast majority of our revenues are generated within the United States. During 2013, 2012 and 2011, a modest percentage 
of our revenues were generated in Puerto Rico. The vast majority of our long-lived assets are located within the United States.

Employees

As of February 1, 2014, we had approximately 4,485 employees, approximately 35% of whom were full-time employees. 
We believe that we have a good working relationship with our employees and we have never experienced a material interruption 
of business as a result of labor disputes.  We offer a broad range of company-paid benefits to our employees.  These company-
paid benefits include a 401(k) savings plan, medical and dental plans, disability insurance, paid vacation, various employee 
assistance programs, life insurance, and merchandise discounts.  We are also party to an Employee Transition and Administrative 
Services Agreement with a subsidiary of Sears Holdings, pursuant to which the subsidiary provides us with specified payroll and 
certain other human-resources services.  See "Certain Relationships and Transactions" in the 2014 Proxy Statement, which is 
incorporated by reference into Item 13 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K. 

Intellectual Property

We are party to several Store License Agreements with SRC pursuant to which SRC has granted us, on a royalty-free basis, 
among other things, (1) an exclusive, non-transferable and terminable license to operate, and to authorize our dealers and franchisees 
to operate, retail stores and stores-within-a-store using the “Sears Outlet Store,” “Sears Authorized Hometown Store,” "Sears 
Hometown Store," “Sears Home Appliance Showroom,” “Sears Hardware Store,” and "Sears Appliance & Hardware," store names 
(together, the “store names"), (2) an exclusive, non-transferable and terminable license to use the store names to promote our 
products, and services related to our products, by all current and future electronic means, channels, processes and methods, including 
via the Internet, (3) a non-exclusive, nontransferable and terminable license to use, and to authorize our dealers and franchisees 
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to use, certain other trademarks to market and sell services related to our products under those trademarks and (4) an exclusive, 
non-transferable and terminable license to use certain domain names in connection with the promotion of our stores, the marketing, 
distribution and sale of our products and the marketing and offering of services related to our products (collectively, the "Store 
License Agreements").  We are also party to a Trademark License Agreement with SRC pursuant to which SRC has granted us, 
on a royalty-free basis, a non-exclusive, non-transferable and terminable right to use the "Sears" name in our corporate name and 
to promote our business (the "Trademark License Agreement"). These agreements do not include licenses for the KCD Marks. 
The Store License Agreements and the Trademark License Agreement will expire in 2029, subject to specified termination rights.  
For additional information regarding the Store License Agreements and the Trademark License Agreement see "Certain 
Relationships and Transactions" in the 2014 Proxy Statement, which is incorporated by reference into Item 13 of this Annual 
Report on Form 10-K.

In the Merchandising Agreement Kmart and SRC agree to (1) sell to us, with respect to certain specified product categories, 
Sears brand products (including products branded with the KCD Marks, or, collectively, the “KCD Products”) and vendor-branded 
products obtained from Kmart’s and SRC’s vendors and suppliers and (2) grant us licenses to use the trademarks owned by Kmart, 
SRC, or other subsidiaries of Sears Holdings (together, the “Sears marks”), including the KCD Marks, in connection with the 
marketing and sale of products sold under the Sears marks. The initial term of the Merchandising Agreement will expire in 2018, 
subject to two three-year renewal terms with respect to the KCD Products. We pay, on a weekly basis, a royalty determined by 
multiplying our net sales of the KCD Products by specified fixed royalties rates for each brand’s licensed products, subject to 
adjustments based on the extent to which we feature Kenmore brand products in certain of our advertising and the extent to which 
we pay specified minimum commissions to our franchisees and Hometown Store owners.

Seasonality

Our business is not concentrated in the holiday season, as the majority of the products we sell are not typically thought of 
as holiday gifts.  Lawn and garden sales generally peak in our second quarter as customers prepare for and execute outdoor projects 
during the spring and early summer, although this can vary with weather conditions.  Quarterly data on the revenue, cost, and net 
income of the business is available in the Quarterly Financial Data in Note 9 to our Consolidated Financial Statements included 
herein.

History and Relationship with Sears Holdings

Our Sears Hometown and Hardware and Sears Outlet businesses operated as part of Sears Holdings’ specialty stores business 
from their inception through the Separation.

In connection with the Separation, we entered into various agreements with Sears Holdings which, among other things, 
(1) govern certain aspects of our relationship with Sears Holdings following the Separation, (2) establish terms under which 
subsidiaries of Sears Holdings will provide us with services following the Separation, and (3) establish terms pursuant to which 
subsidiaries of Sears Holdings will obtain merchandise for us. The terms of these agreements were agreed to in the context of a 
parent-subsidiary relationship and in the overall context of the Separation.  Accordingly, the terms of these agreements may be 
more or less favorable than those we could have negotiated with unaffiliated third parties.  See "Certain Relationships and 
Transactions" in the 2014 Proxy Statement, which is incorporated by reference into Item 13 of this Annual Report on Form 10-
K. 

Corporate Information; Our Website; Availability of SEC Reports and Other Information 

Our principal executive offices are located at 5500 Trillium Boulevard, Suite 501, Hoffman Estates, Illinois 60192 and our 
telephone number is (847) 286-7000. Our website address is www.shos.com.

This Annual Report on Form 10-K, our Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, our Current Reports on Form 8-K, and the 
amendments, if any, to those reports filed or furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 
(“Exchange Act”) are available, free of charge, through the “Investors-U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission Filings” link at 
our website as soon as reasonably practicable after they are electronically filed with, or furnished to, the Securities and Exchange 
Commission (“SEC”). 

The Corporate Governance Guidelines of our Board of Directors, the charters of the Audit Committee, the Compensation 
Committee, and the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee of the Board of Directors, our Code of Conduct, our Board 
of Directors Code of Conduct, and our Code of Vendor Conduct are available at the "Corporate Governance " and the "Vendors" 
links at www.shos.com.  References to www.shos.com do not constitute incorporation by reference of the information at 
www.shos.com, and the information at www.shos.com is not part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K. 
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Item 1A. Risk Factors

You should carefully consider the risks described below, together with all of the other information included in this Annual 
Report on Form 10-K, in evaluating SHO and our common stock. The following risk factors could adversely affect our business, 
results of operations, financial condition, and stock price.

Risks Relating to Our Relationship with, and Dependence on, Sears Holdings

We depend on Sears Holdings to provide us with most key products and services for our business. Consequently, if Sears 
Holdings is unwilling, unable, or otherwise fails to perform these services adequately, or at all, or if Sears Holdings’ brands 
are impaired, we could be materially and adversely affected.

We rely heavily on the products and services provided by Sears Holdings or its subsidiaries (the “key products and 
services”) including the following:

• Inventory procurement from third-party vendors, including KCD Products and other products which collectively account 
for a majority of our revenue;

• Logistical, supply chain and inventory support services;
• Accounting and financial reporting services;
• Environmental and safety program, risk management, tax, and insurance services;
• Online, computer and information technology infrastructure (including the point-of-sale system used by the Company 

and its dealers and franchisees) and support;
• Payroll and certain employee-related services;
• Our websites are hosted and maintained by a subsidiary of Sears Holdings and purchases made on our websites are 

processed by a subsidiary of Sears Holdings;
• Certain of our store leases and the leases for stores that we have subleased, or in the future may sublease, to franchisees 

or others are leased or subleased to us by subsidiaries of Sears Holdings until their expiration at which time we will be 
required to renegotiate with the landlords directly;

• Our stores continue to use the Sears brand name, and other intellectual property owned by Sears Holdings through our 
license agreements with Sears Holdings;

• Our stores continue to participate in the SYW program and rely on the customer data and other information provided by 
the SYW program; and

• Our stores continue to accept Sears-branded credit cards.

As a result of our dependence on Sears Holdings, we are exposed to the risk that Sears Holdings will become unable or 
unwilling to fulfill its contractual obligations to us in accordance with their terms.  Sears Holdings is subject to various risks and 
uncertainties, which could in turn adversely affect our business, results of operations, and financial condition. Such risks include 
(1) risks related to the retail industry, (2) risks related to worldwide economic conditions, (3) risks associated with its computer 
systems, and (4) risks related to Sears Holdings' ability to access capital markets and other financing sources.

We believe it is necessary for Sears Holdings to provide the key products and services to us to facilitate the continued 
operation of our business. However, Sears Holdings has no obligation to provide assistance to us other than the products and 
services to be provided pursuant to our agreements with Sears Holdings.  Although Sears Holdings is generally obligated to provide 
us with these products and services until at least 2018, these products and services may not be provided at the same level or at the 
same prices during the entire duration of the agreements, and we may not be able to obtain the same benefits from these products 
and services. Generally, we expect to need to rely on Sears Holdings for most of these products and services for the entire term 
of the applicable agreement. In addition, to the extent that our growth depends on expanding the number of stores we operate, we 
may need to rely on Sears Holdings to supply the same products and services in new regions, trade areas, and store formats. When 
Sears Holdings is no longer obligated to provide these products and services to us, we may not be able to replace these products 
and services on terms and conditions, including costs, as favorable as those we have with Sears Holdings. See "Certain Relationships 
and Transactions" in the 2014 Proxy Statement, which is incorporated by reference into Item 13 of this Annual Report on Form 
10-K. 
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The service fees we are obligated to pay under the Services Agreement are not firm for the entire 66-month duration of the 
Services Agreement and higher service fees could result.

 The Services Agreement provides that it will expire on April 30, 2018 unless terminated earlier in accordance with its 
terms.  The Services Agreement also provides that we may terminate an individual service at the end of any fiscal month upon 
60-days’ prior written notice.  The Services Agreement also provides that (1) we will pay the service fees specified in the Services 
Agreement for three years commencing on October 12, 2012 and (2) SHMC and we will negotiate in good faith the service fees 
for the fourth and fifth years of the term and the sixth-month period following the fifth year (together, the “remaining term”) for 
those services that we do not terminate prior to the remaining term (the “continuing services”).  The Services Agreement does not 
expressly provide for the service fees that we would be obligated to pay during the remaining term if as a result of good-faith 
negotiations SHMC and we were unable to agree upon one or more of the service fees to be negotiated, but if that occurs SHMC 
is entitled to terminate the applicable continuing service or continuing services on 60-days’ prior written notice.   The negotiations 
with respect to the service fees for the continuing services could result in our agreement to pay service fees for the continuing 
services during the remaining term that are higher than the service fees that we are currently paying, which result could have a 
material adverse effect on our results of operations.

We depend on existing agreements with Sears Holdings and manufacturers to provide our inventory.

Our Hometown and Outlet businesses rely on Sears Holdings (or its subsidiaries) for a significant portion of their inventory, 
including KCD Products. For the year ended February 1, 2014, products which we acquired through Sears Holdings accounted 
for approximately 84% of our merchandise purchases.  Hometown merchandise purchases are sourced predominantly through 
Sears Holdings.  

If we are unable to obtain adequate amounts and assortments of merchandise from Sears Holdings, we may be unable to 
find alternative sources of supply on commercially reasonable terms, or at all. In addition, the third-party vendors from whom 
Sears Holdings currently obtains merchandise for us may not be willing to continue to sell merchandise to Sears Holdings on 
commercially reasonable terms and may insist that we purchase from the third-party vendors on terms that are less favorable than 
the terms enjoyed by Sears Holdings. If we are unable to maintain a broad selection of merchandise for sale to our customers, it 
could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations, financial condition, and stock price.

In addition, our Outlet business also relies on suppliers other than Sears Holdings for a significant portion of its inventory.  
For the year ended February 1, 2014, purchases with these outside sources accounted for approximately 59% of total Outlet 
purchases.  We depend on our ability to continue to obtain inventory, including appliances, from these and other manufacturers 
in the future. Our agreements with these manufacturers do not guarantee the availability of a certain amount of merchandise at 
any given time, and we have no assurance that any of these agreements will be renewed on commercially reasonable terms, or at 
all. If these manufacturers decrease their output of merchandise, raise their prices, or find alternative distribution channels for 
their products, or all of these, and we are required to find one or more alternative suppliers, we may not be able to contract with 
them on a timely basis, on commercially reasonable terms, or at all. The lack of alternative suppliers could lead to higher prices, 
decreased inventory, or an inability to maintain an appropriate assortment of merchandise in our stores and could have a material 
adverse effect on our business, results of operations, financial condition, and stock price. In addition, if we do not maintain our 
existing relationships or build new relationships with manufacturers, we may not be able to maintain an appropriate assortment 
of merchandise, and customers may not purchase from our stores.

We rely on Sears Holdings and other third parties to provide us with key products and services in connection with the 
administration of many critical aspects of our business and we may be required to develop our own systems quickly and cost-
effectively in order to reduce such dependence.

We are party to various agreements with Sears Holdings (including without limitation the Services Agreement), as well 
as with third-party service providers, to provide processing and administrative functions over a broad range of areas, and we expect 
to continue to do so in the future.  Key products and services provided by Sears Holdings or other third parties as a part of 
outsourcing initiatives could be interrupted as a result of many factors, such as acts of God or contract disputes, and any failure 
by third parties to provide us with these key products and services on a timely basis or within our service level expectations and 
performance standards could result in a disruption to our business.

We rely heavily on the infrastructure of Sears Holdings for a variety of key products and services. Our various agreements 
with Sears Holdings (including without limitation the Services Agreement and the Merchandising Agreement), which govern the 
provision of these key products and services, generally have initial terms of at least five and a half years from the effective dates 
of the agreements, and we may seek to continue to rely on the infrastructure of Sears Holdings after the initial terms of these 
agreements expire. Our business plans depend to a significant extent on Sears Holdings’ willingness and ability to continue to 
provide us with these key products and services. Any failure to maintain Sears Holdings as a service provider, or any actions by 
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Sears Holdings, when permitted under the applicable agreement, to raise the prices it charges us for these key products and services, 
could have a material adverse impact on our business and operating results.

In addition, disruptions in the computer and communications hardware and software systems provided by Sears Holdings 
could harm our ability to run our business, result in the compromise of confidential customer data, lead to costly litigation, and 
damage our reputation with our customers. Any material interruption in our computer operations may have a material adverse 
effect on our business and results of operations. As a result of our reliance on the computer and information technology infrastructure 
of Sears Holdings, we have limited control over the timing and implementation of upgrades to our computer and information 
technology systems that we may believe are integral to the successful operation of our business.

If our relationships with our vendors, including Sears Holdings, were to be impaired, it could have a negative impact on our 
competitive position and our business and financial performance.

We obtain our merchandise from Sears Holdings and other vendors. For the year ended February 1, 2014, products which 
we acquired from Sears Holdings, including KCD Products and other products, accounted for approximately 84% of our total 
purchases of inventory from all vendors. The loss of or a reduction in the amount of merchandise made available to us by Sears 
Holdings could have a material adverse effect on our business and results of operations.

Pursuant to the Merchandising Agreement, subsidiaries of Sears Holdings have agreed to obtain for us Sears brand 
products, including KCD Products, until 2018 subject to two three-year renewal terms with respect to KCD Products, certain 
termination rights, and other specified conditions. However, we may need to rely on Sears Holdings for our inventory beyond 
2018 or, if the Merchandising Agreement is renewed for both renewal terms, 2024. If we are unable to extend, or renegotiate on 
comparable terms, the Merchandising Agreement beyond 2018 or, if the Merchandising Agreement is renewed for both renewal 
terms, 2024, we may not be able to replace the inventory provided under the Merchandising Agreement on commercially reasonable 
terms, or at all and any such inability could have a material adverse effect on our prospects and results of operations and our ability 
to operate our business could be significantly impaired, as we would have to find new sources for our inventory.

In addition, our vendor arrangements generally are not long-term agreements (other than the Merchandising Agreement) 
and none of them guarantee the availability of merchandise in the future. Our growth strategy depends to a significant extent on 
the willingness and ability of our vendors to supply us with sufficient inventory. As a result, our success depends on maintaining 
good relations with our existing vendors and developing relationships with new vendors. If we fail to maintain our relations with 
our existing vendors or the quality and quantity of merchandise they supply us, or if we cannot acquire new vendors of favored 
brand-name merchandise, our ability to obtain a sufficient amount and variety of merchandise at acceptable prices may be limited, 
which would have a negative impact on our competitive position. In addition, to the extent we are able to develop relationships 
with new vendors and obtain merchandise from alternative sources, the merchandise obtained may be of a lesser quality and more 
expensive than the merchandise we currently purchase.

We rely on Sears Holdings for services related to our online business and the processing of online orders.

Our Hometown and Outlet businesses’ websites are managed by a subsidiary of Sears Holdings and we pay certain hosting 
and maintenance fees to Sears Holdings for the management of such websites.  In addition, online orders placed on our Hometown 
business’ websites are processed by, and subject to a processing fee to be paid to, a subsidiary of Sears Holdings.

In addition, many of the products we sell are available through websites owned and operated by Sears Holdings. As a 
result, online orders placed through websites owned and operated by Sears Holdings may take business share from our businesses 
without any commission or other benefit to us. Increasing purchases of home appliances and other products that our stores sell 
through online channels could adversely affect our results of operations.

We license from Sears Holdings the use of our store names, domain names and certain trademarks used to brand our products.

We license from Sears Holdings the use of the Sears trademark, the KCD Marks,  and the “Sears Hometown Store,” 
"Sears Authorized Hometown Store," “Sears Hardware Store,” “Sears Home Appliance Showroom,” "Sears Appliance & 
Hardware," and “Sears Outlet” store names (collectively,  the “store names”) and certain of our website domain names (the “domain 
names”).  Pursuant to the Merchandising Agreement, our license to use the KCD Marks will expire in 2018 or, if renewed for both 
renewal terms, 2024, and pursuant to the Store License Agreements and Trademark License Agreement, our licenses to use the 
Sears trademark, the store names and the domain names will expire in 2029, subject to specified termination rights.

If the value of the Sears trademark, the KCD Marks, the store names or the domain names diminishes, or if we are unable 
to extend, renew, or renegotiate the Merchandising Agreement, the Store License Agreements or the Trademark License Agreement 
on comparable terms, or at all, it could have a material adverse effect on our prospects and results of operations and our ability to 
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operate our business could be significantly impaired, as it would require us to stop using one or more of the aforementioned names 
in both our stores and our product advertising.

Certain of our agreements with subsidiaries of Sears Holdings contain early termination provisions that are outside of our 
control and, if triggered, could have a material adverse effect on our ability to operate our business and our financial 
performance.

Our agreements with subsidiaries of Sears Holdings contain various default and termination provisions, some of which 
are not within our control. For example, under the Merchandising Agreement, if (i) an unaffiliated third party acquires all rights, 
title, and interest in and to one or more (but not all) of the KCD Marks, then subsidiaries of Sears Holdings may terminate their 
obligation to sell to us the products that are branded with the KCD Marks that were subject to such acquisition and (ii) if an 
unaffiliated third party acquires all rights, title, and interest in and to all of the KCD Marks, then subsidiaries of Sears Holdings 
may terminate the Merchandising Agreement in its entirety. Furthermore, the agreements with subsidiaries of Sears Holdings may 
also be terminated by either party upon a material breach if the breaching party fails to cure such breach within 30 days following 
written notice of such breach or, if such breach is not curable, immediately upon delivery of notice of the non-breaching party’s 
intention to terminate.

In addition, a number of our agreements with subsidiaries of Sears Holdings contain cross-termination provisions such 
that, if a breach of or default under one of the agreements by one party were to result in the termination of such agreement, the 
other party may terminate a number of the additional agreements between the parties. If one or more of our agreements with 
subsidiaries of Sears Holdings were to be terminated earlier than currently anticipated, it could have a material adverse effect on 
our prospects and results of operations and our ability to operate our business would be significantly impaired. For additional 
information see "Certain Relationships and Transactions" in the 2014 Proxy Statement, which is incorporated by reference into 
Item 13 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K. 

The sale of KCD Products to other retailers, including certain of our competitors, may adversely affect our results of operations.

KCD Products accounted for approximately 56% of our consolidated revenue during fiscal year 2013.  Sears Holdings 
has agreed to supply certain other retailers, including certain of our competitors, with a number of Craftsman- and DieHard-
branded products that previously were only sold through affiliates of Sears Holdings.  If Sears Holdings continues to supply other 
retailers, including our competitors, with Craftsman- and DieHard-branded products, or begins to supply other retailers with 
Kenmore-branded products, our revenue may be adversely affected.

Our non-competition agreements with Sears Holdings restrict our ability to expand into certain geographic areas.

Currently, Sears full-line stores, Kmart stores, and certain specialty retail stores owned by Sears Holdings sell product 
lines that are similar to ours.  The Merchandising Agreement prohibits us, subject to specified conditions, from opening new 
Hometown Stores and Hardware Stores and from selling new merchandise in new Outlet Stores, each in specified areas. These 
non-competition obligations will restrict our ability to open new stores and sell certain types of products in the specified areas 
that we might otherwise consider as possible targets for expansion and may limit our growth potential. 

Our pre-Separation historical combined financial information is not necessarily representative of the results we would have 
achieved either as a single combined business entity or as a publicly traded company separate from Sears Holdings and may 
not be a reliable indicator of our future results.

The pre-Separation historical financial information included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K may not reflect what 
our results of operations, financial position, and cash flows would have been had we been (1) operated as a single combined 
business entity by Sears Holdings during the periods presented or (2) a publicly traded company separate from Sears Holdings 
during the periods presented, or what our results of operations, financial position, and cash flows will be in the future as we operate 
as a single consolidated business entity separate from Sears Holdings. This is primarily because of the following:

• Our pre-Separation historical financial information reflects the results of operations, financial positions, and cash flows 
of Sears Hometown and Hardware and Sears Outlet prior to their consolidation into SHO, which may not reflect the results 
of operations, financial positions, and cash flows of SHO as a single combined business entity;

• Our pre-Separation historical financial information does not reflect changes resulting from the integration of Sears 
Hometown and Hardware and Sears Outlet into a single combined entity, including changes in the cost structure, personnel 
needs, financing, and operation of our business;

• Our pre-Separation historical financial information reflects assumptions made by Sears Holdings and allocations for certain 
services and expenses historically provided to us by Sears Holdings. Those assumptions and allocations may not reflect 
the costs and expenses we would have incurred or will incur as a separate company; and
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• Our pre-Separation historical financial information does not reflect changes resulting from the Separation, including 
changes in the cost structure, personnel needs, financing, and operations of our business.

Since the Separation, we have been responsible for the additional costs associated with being a publicly traded company 
separate from Sears Holdings, including costs related to corporate governance and SEC reporting requirements. Accordingly, there 
can be no assurance that our historical financial information presented herein will be indicative of our future results.

For additional information about our past financial performance and the basis of presentation of our financial statements, 
see “Selected Historical Financial and Other Data,” “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results 
of Operations” and our financial statements and the notes thereto included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

As a publicly traded company separate from Sears Holdings, we may experience increased costs resulting from a decrease in 
the purchasing power we enjoyed pre-Separation.

Prior to the Separation, we were able to take advantage of Sears Holdings’ size and purchasing power in procuring services, 
including advertising, shipping and receiving, logistics, store maintenance contracts, employee benefit support, insurance, credit 
and debit card interchange fees and other services. Following the Separation, we are a smaller company than Sears Holdings and 
we may not have access to financial and other resources comparable to those available to us prior to the Separation.  Although we 
plan to leverage our ongoing relationship with Sears Holdings in order to obtain similar benefits in purchasing power, we may be 
unable to obtain goods, technology and services at prices and on terms as favorable as those available to us prior to the Separation, 
which could increase our costs and reduce our profitability.

We may have been able to receive better terms from unaffiliated third parties than the terms we received in our agreements 
with Sears Holdings.

The agreements related to the Separation, including the Services Agreement, the Store License Agreements, the Trademark 
License Agreement, the Merchandising Agreement, and the Retail Establishment Agreement, were agreed to in the context of a 
parent-subsidiary relationship and in the overall context of the Separation.  Accordingly, they may not represent the best terms 
that could have been available to us from third parties.  The terms of the agreements negotiated in the context of the Separation 
relate to, among other things, the principal actions needed to be taken in connection with the Separation, indemnification and other 
obligations among Sears Holdings and us, and the nature of the commercial arrangements between us and Sears Holdings following 
the Separation.  For additional information see "Certain Relationships and Transactions" in the 2014 Proxy Statement, which is 
incorporated by reference into Item 13 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K. 

We may not be able to resolve successfully existing and, if they arise, future contractual disputes and other conflicts with 
Sears Holdings.  

Several of our material agreements with Sears Holdings, such as the Services Agreement, the Store License Agreements, 
the Trademark License Agreement, and the Merchandising Agreement, were agreed to in the context of a parent-subsidiary 
relationship and in the overall context of the Separation.  Since the Separation a number of disputes have arisen with respect to 
these agreements. We have entered into amendments and other agreements with Sears Holdings that we believe have resolved 
some, but not all, of these disputes.  We may be unable to resolve existing and, if they arise, future disputes on commercially 
reasonable terms, which could materially and adversely affect our ability to conduct our business.  Future disputes could arise 
with respect to the following matters, among others:

• availability and allocation of merchandise and subsidies from Sears Holdings and from third-party suppliers;
• business opportunities that may be attractive to both Sears Holdings and us;
• the nature, quality and pricing of services Sears Holdings has agreed to provide to us;
• labor, tax, employee benefit, real estate (including sublease obligations) and other matters arising from the Separation;
• defense and indemnification arising from losses caused by Sears Holdings;
• major business combinations involving us;
• employee retention and recruiting;
• SHO's intellectual property rights;
• the extent of SHO's rights to conduct multi-channel retailing; and
• competition between our stores and websites and Sears Holdings’ stores and websites.
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If Sears Holdings' perceived financial condition were to significantly deteriorate, our ability to operate our business and our 
financial performance could be materially and adversely affected.

We depend on Sears Holdings to provide us with key products and services in the operation of our business.  For example, 
during fiscal year 2013, merchandise acquired from subsidiaries of Sears Holdings, including Kenmore, Craftsman, DieHard and 
other products, accounted for approximately 84% of total purchases of all inventory from all vendors.  If Sears Holdings' financial 
condition were perceived to have significantly deteriorated and as a consequence Sears Holdings chooses to seek the protection 
of insolvency proceedings, a court could, among other things, permit or require Sears Holdings to terminate one or more of its 
existing agreements with us, including without limitation the Merchandising Agreement, the Store License Agreements, and store 
leases and subleases (many of which are subleased to our dealers and franchisees).  Sears Holdings could also choose, or be 
required, to sell assets, such as its intellectual property rights to the KCD Marks and the trademarks and service names under 
which we operate our stores that are used by us in the operation of our business, to satisfy Sears Holdings' obligations to its 
creditors.  If Sears Holdings' contractual obligations to us are terminated or assigned to others or if Sears Holdings sells to third 
parties rights to assets that we use in the course of our business, we could be materially and adversely affected.  A termination of 
our agreements with Sears Holdings could require us to, among other things, find different service and product providers, possibly 
on short notice.  Even if we are able to find replacement products and services, these products and services may not be of the same 
type or quality as those which are currently provided by Sears Holdings.  If we are forced to enter into new contracts for replacement 
products and services, the new contracts may have terms and conditions that are less favorable to us than those to which we are 
currently bound.  Different products and services, especially if lower in quality and value, and potential increased costs from less 
favorable contract terms could materially and adversely affect our ability to do business and our financial performance. 

Risks Relating to Our Business

If we fail to offer merchandise and services that our customers want, our sales may be limited, which would reduce our revenues 
and profits.

In order for our business to be successful, we must identify, obtain supplies of, and offer to our customers, attractive, 
innovative and high-quality merchandise on a continuous basis. Our products and services must satisfy the desires of our customers, 
whose preferences in appliances, hardware and lawn and garden products may change in the future. If we misjudge either the 
demand for the products we sell or our customers' purchasing habits and tastes, we may be faced with excess inventories of some 
products and missed opportunities for products we chose not to offer. In addition, our sales may decline or we may be required to 
sell the merchandise we have obtained at lower prices, increasing our inventory markdowns and promotional expenses. This would 
have a negative effect on our business and results of operations.

Our business has been and will continue to be affected by worldwide economic conditions; a failure of the economy to sustain 
its recovery, a renewed decline in consumer-spending levels and other conditions, including inflation, could lead to reduced 
revenues and gross margins, and negatively impact our results of operations.

Many economic and other factors are outside of our control, including, consumer confidence and spending levels, 
consumer and commercial credit availability, inflation, employment levels, housing sales and remodels, lower housing turnover, 
increased mortgage delinquency and foreclosure rates, consumer debt levels, fuel costs and other challenges currently affecting 
the global economy, the full impact of which on our business, results of operations and financial condition cannot be predicted 
with certainty. These economic conditions adversely affect the disposable income levels of, and the credit available to, our 
customers, which could lead to reduced demand for our merchandise. Also affected are our vendors, upon which we depend to 
provide us with inventory and services. Our vendors could seek to change the terms under which they sell inventory or other 
services to us which could negatively impact our financial condition. In addition, the inability of vendors to access liquidity, or 
the insolvency of vendors, could lead to their failure to deliver inventory or other services.

The domestic and international political situation also affects consumer confidence. The threat, outbreak or escalation of 
terrorism, military conflicts or other hostilities could lead to a decrease in consumer spending. Any of these events and factors 
could cause us to increase inventory markdowns and promotional expenses, thereby reducing our gross margins and operating 
results.

If we do not successfully manage our inventory levels, our operating results will be adversely affected.

We must maintain sufficient inventory levels to operate our business successfully. However, we also must avoid 
accumulating excess inventory as we seek to minimize out-of-stock levels across all product categories and to maintain in-stock 
levels. We continue to rely on and obtain significant portions of our inventory through the Sears Holdings buying organizations, 
which obtain a significant portion of inventory from vendors located outside the United States. Some of these vendors often require 
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us to provide, through Sears Holdings, lengthy advance notice of our requirements in order to be able to supply products in the 
quantities we request. This usually requires us, through Sears Holdings, to order merchandise, and enter into purchase order 
contracts for the purchase and manufacture of such merchandise, well in advance of the time these products will be offered for 
sale. As a result, we may experience difficulty in responding to a changing retail environment, which makes us vulnerable to 
changes in price. If we do not accurately anticipate the future demand for a particular product or the time it will take to obtain new 
inventory, our inventory levels will not be appropriate and our results of operations may be negatively impacted.

If we are unable to compete effectively in the highly competitive retail industry, our business and results of operations could 
be materially adversely affected.

 The retail industry is intensely competitive and highly fragmented. In addition, there are few barriers to entry into our 
current trade areas and new competitors may enter our trade areas at any time. We compete with a wide variety of retailers, including 
department stores, discounters, mass merchandisers, hardware stores, independent dealers, home improvement stores, home 
appliance and consumer electronics retailers, auto service providers, specialty retailers, wholesale clubs and many other competitors 
operating on a national, regional or local level. Some of our competitors are actively engaged in new store expansion. Online and 
catalog businesses, which handle similar lines of merchandise, also compete with us.

We may not be able to compete successfully against existing and future competitors.  Some of our competitors have 
financial resources that are substantially greater than ours and may be able to purchase inventory at lower costs and better endure 
the current or future economic downturns.  As a result, our sales may decline if we cannot offer competitive prices to our customers 
or we may be required to accept lower profit margins.  Our competitors may respond more quickly to new or emerging technologies 
and consumer preferences and may have greater resources to devote to promotion and sale of products and services.

Our existing competitors or new entrants into our industry may use a number of different strategies to compete against 
us, including the following:

• Expansion into the suburban and rural trade areas in which many of our stores operate;
• Lower pricing;
• Offering free delivery and installation of merchandise;
• Expanding online sales;
• Extension of credit to customers on terms more favorable than we offer; and
• Larger store size, which may result in greater operational efficiencies, or innovative store formats, and use of disruptive 

technology.

Competition from any of these sources could cause us to lose trade area share, sales and customers, increase expenditures 
or reduce prices, any of which could have a material adverse effect on our business and results of operations.

Our operating results are tied in part to the success of our dealers and franchisees, and the inability of our dealers and 
franchisees to continue operating their stores profitably could adversely affect our operating results.

As of February 1, 2014 the significant majority of stores in our Hometown business were operated by independent dealers 
and franchisees that sell our inventory on a consignment basis.  Our dealers’ and franchisees’ ability to continue operating their 
stores profitably depends on various factors, including their business abilities, financial capabilities (including their access to credit 
for operating capital), the negotiation of acceptable leases and general economic conditions.  Many of the foregoing factors are 
beyond the control of both SHO and our dealers and franchisees.  If our dealers and franchisees are unable to operate their stores 
profitably, this could have a material adverse effect on our business and results of operations. 

In addition, if our dealers are unable to operate their stores profitably or in a manner consistent with our concepts and 
standards, we may be required to take over one or more stores from our dealers from time to time. Generally, at any given time, 
we operate approximately 3-4% of our Sears Hometown Stores as a result of our taking such stores over from our authorized 
dealers.

Our dealers and franchisees may damage our business or increase our costs by failing to comply with our operating standards 
or our dealer and franchise agreements.

 Our authorized dealers operate their stores pursuant to dealer agreements with us.  Our franchise business is governed 
by franchise agreements and applicable franchise law.  If our dealers and franchisees do not comply with our established operating 
concepts and standards or the terms in the franchise or dealer agreements, our business may be damaged. We may incur significant 
additional costs, including time-consuming and expensive litigation, to enforce our rights under the dealer agreements and the 
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franchise agreements.  Furthermore, as a franchisor we have obligations to our franchisees.  Franchisees may challenge the 
performance of our obligations under the franchise agreements and subject us to costs in defending these claims and, if the claims 
are successful, costs in connection with their compliance.

 In addition, as a franchisor we are subject to regulation by the Federal Trade Commission and are subject to state laws 
that govern the offer, sale and termination of franchises and the refusal to renew franchises.  The failure to comply with these 
regulations in any jurisdiction or to obtain required approvals could result in a ban or temporary suspension on future franchise 
sales, fines or require us to make a rescission offer to franchisees, any of which could adversely affect our business and operating 
results.

Our sales may fluctuate for a variety of reasons, which could adversely affect our results of operations.

 Our business is sensitive to customers' spending patterns, which in turn are subject to prevailing and perceived longer-
term economic conditions. Our sales and results of operations have fluctuated in the past and we expect them to continue to 
fluctuate in the future. A variety of other factors affect our sales and financial performance, including the following:

• Actions by our competitors, including opening of new stores in our existing trade areas or changes to the way these 
competitors conduct business online;

• The availability on commercially reasonable terms of the various types of inventory that we need to sell for the profitable 
operation of our stores;

• Changes in our merchandise strategy and mix;
• Real estate and maintenance costs for our existing stores (including disagreements between SHO and Sears Holdings 

regarding their respective responsibilities for these costs);
• Changes in population and other demographics;
• Timing and effectiveness of our promotional events; 
• Weather conditions, including level of rainfall, particularly drought, level of snowfall, average temperature, major storms, 

and delays in, or advances to, the start of seasonal changes; and
• The availability of locations for new stores that can be operated profitability by the Company and by our dealers and 

franchisees. 

 Accordingly, our results for any one quarter or year are not necessarily indicative of the results to be expected for any 
other quarter or year, and comparable store sales for any particular future period may increase or decrease. For more information 
on our results of operations, see “Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” in 
this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

ESL Investments, Inc. and its affiliates, whose interests may be different from the interests of other stockholders, may be able 
to exert substantial influence over our Company.

 According to publicly available information, ESL Investments, Inc. and its investment affiliates including Edward S. 
Lampert (collectively, "ESL") beneficially own approximately 49% of our outstanding shares of common stock.  Accordingly, 
ESL could have substantial influence over many, if not all, actions to be taken or approved by our stockholders, and will have a 
significant voice in the election of directors and any transactions involving a change of control, among other matters affecting the 
Company.

 The interests of ESL, which has investments in other companies (including, according to publicly available information, 
ownership of approximately 48% of the outstanding common stock of Sears Holdings), may from time to time differ from, or be 
opposed to, the interests of our other stockholders. 

 Edward S. Lampert is the Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer of Sears Holdings.

We may be subject to product liability claims if people or properties are harmed by the products we sell or the services we offer.

 Some of the products we sell may expose us to product liability claims relating to personal injury, death, or property 
damage caused by such products, and may require us to take actions such as product recalls. Although we maintain liability 
insurance, we cannot be certain that our coverage will be adequate for liabilities actually incurred or that insurance will continue 
to be available to us on commercially reasonable terms, or at all.
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We may be subject to periodic litigation and regulatory proceedings. These proceedings may be affected by changes in laws 
and government regulations or changes in the enforcement thereof.

 From time to time, we may be involved in lawsuits and regulatory actions relating to our business, certain of which may 
be in jurisdictions with reputations for aggressive application of laws and procedures against corporate defendants. We are impacted 
by trends in litigation, including class-action allegations brought under various consumer protection and employment laws, 
including wage and hour laws.  We conduct business in jurisdictions with reputations for aggressive application of laws and 
procedures against corporate defendants.  Due to the inherent uncertainties of litigation and regulatory proceedings, we cannot 
accurately predict the ultimate outcome of any such proceedings. An unfavorable outcome could have a material adverse impact 
on our business, financial condition and results of operations. In addition, regardless of the outcome of any litigation or regulatory 
proceedings, these proceedings could result in substantial costs and may require that we devote substantial time and resources to 
defend our Company. Further, changes in governmental regulations in the United States could have adverse effects on our business 
and subject us to additional regulatory actions.

If we do not maintain the security of our customer, associate and company information, we could damage our reputation, incur 
substantial additional costs and become subject to litigation.

 In the ordinary course of our business, we collect, process, and store a large amount of customer, associate, and Company 
information, including financial information and sensitive personal information.  We rely heavily on Sears Holdings’ computer 
and communications hardware and software systems (such as the point-of-sale system used by the Company and its dealers and 
franchisees) and related security systems (collectively the "Sears Holdings Systems") to collect, process, and store this information.  
Sears Holdings Systems are subject to damage or interruption from power outages, computer and telecommunications failures, 
computer viruses, security breaches, catastrophic events such as fires, tornadoes and hurricanes, and usage errors by Sears Holdings' 
associates, our associates, and the associates of our dealers and franchisees.  The Sears Holdings Systems may be compromised 
as a result of criminal activity, negligence, or otherwise. Threats may result from human error, fraud, or malice on the part of Sears 
Holdings' associates, our associates, and the associates of our dealers, franchisees, and other third parties, or may result from 
accidental technological failure.  Any significant compromise or breach of the Sears Holdings Systems could significantly damage 
our reputation and result in additional costs, lost sales, fines, government investigations, and lawsuits against, or otherwise adversely 
affecting, SHO. The regulatory environment related to information security and privacy is increasingly rigorous and complex, 
with new and constantly changing requirements applicable to our business, and compliance with those requirements could result 
in additional costs. Additionally, several recent, highly publicized data-security breaches and cyber attacks at other large, nationwide 
retail companies have heightened consumer awareness of this issue and may embolden individuals or groups to target SHO and 
the Sears Holdings Systems. There is no guarantee that our reliance on the Sears Holdings Systems and related security measures 
provided by Sears Holdings will protect information against unauthorized access or that the Sears Holdings Systems and related 
security measures are adequate to safeguard against data-security breaches.  If the Sears Holdings Systems experience a significant 
data-security breach, or if Sears Holdings or SHO fails to detect and appropriately respond to a significant data-security breach, 
with respect to our customer, associate, or Company information, we could be exposed to government enforcement actions and 
private litigation.  In addition, our customers could lose confidence in our ability to protect their information, which could cause 
them to stop shopping with us altogether.

If we are unable to obtain consents to the assignment or subletting of our store locations from our third-party landlords or are 
unable to renew or enter into new store leases on competitive terms, our revenues or results of operations could be negatively 
impacted.

Sears Holdings (or one of its subsidiaries) assigned or sublet to us their interests in the leases for all of our stores where 
Sears Holdings (or one of its subsidiaries), and not SHO or an independent authorized dealer or a franchisee, is the tenant and 
either (i) the lease for such store permits assignment or subletting of the lease or (ii) Sears Holdings is able to obtain landlord 
consent to such assignment or sublease. However, a number of the leases for our stores (the “No-Consent Locations”), which 
number we do not believe is significant, do not permit assignment or subletting by Sears Holdings (or one of its subsidiaries) or 
may require landlord consent, which may be withheld. Sears Holdings (or one of its subsidiaries) entered into a sublease with us 
for each of the No-Consent Locations but if the landlord of a No-Consent Location were to claim that such sublease was a default 
under the applicable lease then we may be forced to close such store location, which could negatively impact our results of 
operations.

In addition, a small number of our stores are in locations where Sears Holdings currently operates one of its stores. In 
such cases we entered into a lease or sublease with Sears Holdings (or one of its subsidiaries) for the portion of the space in which 
our store will operate and pay rent directly to Sears Holdings (or one of its subsidiaries) on the terms negotiated in connection 
with the Separation. If we are unable to negotiate leases or subleases with Sears Holdings (or one of its subsidiaries) on commercially 
reasonable terms, or at all, we may be forced to close certain of our stores which could negatively impact our results of operations.
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As of February 1, 2014, we leased 61 Company-operated Sears Outlet store locations under long-term agreements with 
landlords that are unaffiliated with Sears Holdings, leased 51 locations with landlords affiliated with Sears Holdings, and owned 
three buildings.  Additionally, we are the obligor on 19 leases which are sublet to our franchisees that are unaffiliated with Sears 
Holdings and 9 leases are sublet to franchisees with landlords affiliated with Sears Holdings.  If our cost of leasing existing stores 
increases, we may be unable to maintain our existing store locations as leases expire. Our profitability may decline if we fail to 
enter into new leases on competitive terms or at all, or we may not be able to locate suitable alternative stores or additional sites 
for new-store expansion in a timely manner. Furthermore, 49 of our 138 Sears Outlet leases will expire within the next three years 
and, with respect to 33 of these locations, we do not have lease-renewal rights.  A failure to renew or enter into new leases could 
reduce our revenues and negatively impact our results of operations.

In addition, as of February 1, 2014, our Sears Hometown business leased 24 Company-operated locations under long-
term agreements with landlords that are unaffiliated with Sears Holdings and leased 6 Company-operated locations under long-
term agreements with landlords affiliated with Sears Holdings. Additionally, we are the obligor on an additional 101 leases which 
are sublet to our franchisees and  4 leases have been assigned to franchisees. If our franchisees are unable to maintain the payments 
under either our sublease or assigned lease arrangements, we will be required to make payments under the lease. In addition, upon 
the expiration of the initial lease term, our franchisees are responsible for entering into new leases with existing landlords. If our 
franchisees are unable to negotiate new leases with existing landlords on commercially reasonable terms, or at all, our franchisees 
may be required to move or close certain of our stores. A failure to maintain payments or to enter into new leases by our franchisees 
could negatively impact our results of operations.

In addition, a number of the leases for both our Outlet and Hometown stores were negotiated by and entered into by a 
subsidiary of Sears Holdings. Upon the expiration of these leases, we will be required to enter into new leases with the landlords 
for such properties and we may be unable to enter into new leases as a company independent from Sears Holdings on commercially 
reasonable terms, or at all. Further, a number of our leases were entered into at a time when the commercial real estate market was 
depressed. We may be required to enter into negotiations with landlords for new leases in the future at times when the commercial 
real estate market has rebounded and rental payments are generally higher for commercial real estate. Higher leasing costs could 
negatively impact our results of operations.

If we fail to timely and effectively obtain shipments of product from our vendors and deliver merchandise to our customers, 
our operating results will be adversely affected.

We cannot control all of the various factors that might affect our timely and effective procurement of supplies of product 
from our vendors, including Sears Holdings, and delivery of merchandise to our customers. Our utilization of foreign imports also 
makes us vulnerable to risks associated with products manufactured abroad, including, among other things, risks of damage, 
destruction or confiscation of products while in transit to our stores, work stoppages including as a result of events such as strikes, 
transportation and other delays in shipments including as a result of heightened security screening and inspection processes or 
other port-of-entry limitations or restrictions in the United States, lack of freight availability and freight cost increases. In addition, 
if we experience a shortage of a popular item, we may be required to arrange for additional quantities of the item, if available, to 
be delivered to us through airfreight, which is significantly more expensive than standard shipping by sea. As a result, we may 
not be able to obtain sufficient freight capacity on a timely basis or at favorable shipping rates and, therefore, we may not be able 
to timely receive merchandise from our vendors or deliver our products to our customers.

 We rely upon Sears Holdings and other third-party land-based carriers for merchandise shipments to our stores and 
customers. Accordingly, we are subject to the risks, including labor disputes, union organizing activity, inclement weather and 
increased transportation costs, associated with such carriers' ability to provide delivery services to meet our inbound and outbound 
shipping needs. In addition, if the cost of fuel continues to rise or remains at current levels, the cost to deliver merchandise to our 
stores may rise which could have an adverse impact on our profitability. Failure to procure and deliver merchandise either to us 
or to our customers in a timely, effective and economically viable manner could damage our reputation and adversely affect our 
business. In addition, any increase in distribution costs and expenses could adversely affect our future financial performance.

As a public company we have increased expenses and administrative burdens, in particular to comply with certain provisions 
of the Sarbanes Oxley Act of 2002.

As a public company, we are incurring legal, accounting and other expenses that we did not incur prior to the Separation. 
These increased costs and expenses have arisen from various factors, including financial reporting, costs associated with complying 
with federal securities laws (including compliance with the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002), tax administration, and legal and human-
resources related functions. Although a number of these functions continue to be performed for us by subsidiaries of Sears Holdings, 
we have been required to, among other things, create or revise the roles and duties of our board committees, adopt additional 
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internal controls and disclosure controls and procedures, retain a transfer agent and adopt an insider trading policy in compliance 
with our obligations under the securities laws.

Being a public company subject to additional laws, rules and regulations has required the investment of additional resources 
to ensure ongoing compliance with such laws, rules and regulations. In addition, these laws, rules and regulations have affected 
our ability to obtain director and officer liability insurance and we may be required to accept reduced policy limits and coverage 
or incur substantially higher costs to obtain the same or similar coverage. As a result, it may be more difficult for us to attract and 
retain qualified executive officers and qualified persons to serve on our board of directors, particularly to serve on our Audit 
Committee.

Failure to achieve and maintain effective internal controls in accordance with Section 404 of Sarbanes-Oxley could have a 
material adverse effect on our business and the market price of our common stock.

As a public company, we are required to document and test our internal control over financial reporting in order to satisfy 
the requirements of Section 404 of Sarbanes-Oxley, which requires annual management assessments of the effectiveness of our 
internal control over financial reporting along with a report by our independent registered public accounting firm that addresses 
the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting. During the course of our testing, we may at any time identify 
deficiencies which we may not be able to remediate in time to meet our deadline for compliance with Section 404.  Testing and 
maintaining internal control can divert our management’s attention from other matters that are also important to the operation of 
our business.  The imposition of these regulations has increased, and may continue to increase, our legal and financial compliance 
costs and make some activities more difficult, time consuming and costly. We may not be able to conclude on an ongoing basis 
that we have effective internal control over financial reporting in accordance with Section 404. If we are unable to conclude that 
we have effective internal control over financial reporting, investors could lose confidence in our reported financial information, 
which would likely have a negative effect on the trading price of our common stock. In addition, if we do not maintain effective 
internal controls, we may not be able to accurately report our financial information on a timely basis, which could harm the trading 
price of our common stock, impair our ability to raise additional capital, or jeopardize our continued listing on the NASDAQ 
Capital Market or any other stock exchange on which our common stock may be listed.

We could incur charges due to impairment of goodwill and long-lived assets.

 As of February 1, 2014 we had a goodwill balance of $167 million, which has been assigned to our Hometown Stores 
and Home Appliance Showrooms ("Hometown Reporting Unit") and is subject to periodic testing for impairment. Our long-lived 
assets, primarily stores, also are subject to periodic testing for impairment. A significant amount of judgment is involved in the 
periodic testing. Failure to achieve sufficient levels of cash flow within our Hometown Reporting Unit, or at individual store 
locations, could result in impairment charges for goodwill or fixed asset impairment for long-lived assets, which could have a 
material adverse effect on our reported results of operations.  Relative to goodwill, the 2013 annual impairment test concluded 
that no goodwill impairment existed.  However, the estimated fair value of the Hometown Reporting Unit exceeded its carrying 
value by 9.2%, which is a decrease from the step one test that was performed in 2012 that passed by 19.4%.  A continued decline 
in the estimated fair value of our Hometown Reporting Unit below its carrying amount could trigger an impairment of some or 
all of its goodwill.  Our goodwill impairment analysis also includes a comparison of the aggregate estimated fair value of all 
reporting units to our total market capitalization. If our stock trades below our book value a significant and sustained decline in 
our stock price and market capitalization could result in goodwill impairment charges. During times of financial market volatility, 
significant judgment will be used to determine the underlying cause of the decline and whether stock price declines are short-term 
in nature or indicative of an event or change in circumstances. Impairment charges, if any, resulting from the periodic testing are 
non-cash.  For additional information see "Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
—Application of Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates" and Note 1 to our Consolidated Financial Statements in this Annual 
Report on Form 10-K.

Risks Relating to our Indebtedness

We and our subsidiaries may incur additional debt, which could substantially reduce our profitability, limit our ability to pursue 
certain business opportunities, and reduce the value of your investment.

At February 1, 2014 we had approximately $99.1 million of debt outstanding. The instruments governing our indebtedness 
do not prevent us or our subsidiaries from incurring additional debt in the future or other obligations that do not constitute 
indebtedness, which could increase the risks described below and lead to other risks. In addition, we may, subject to certain 
conditions, increase the borrowing capacity under our Senior ABL Facility without the consent of any person other than the 
institutions agreeing to provide all or any portion of such increase, by an amount not to exceed $100 million. The amount of our 
debt or such other obligations could have important consequences for holders of our common stock, including, but not limited to:
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• our ability to satisfy obligations to lenders may be impaired, resulting in possible defaults on and acceleration of our 
indebtedness;

• our ability to obtain additional financing for refinancing of existing indebtedness, working capital, capital expenditures, 
product and service development, acquisitions, general corporate purposes and other purposes may be impaired;

• a substantial portion of our cash flow from operations could be dedicated to the payment of the principal and interest on 
our debt;

• we may be increasingly vulnerable to economic downturns and increases in interest rates;
• our flexibility in planning for and reacting to changes in our business and the retail industry may be limited; and
• we may be placed at a competitive disadvantage relative to other companies in our industry.

Our Senior ABL Facility contains financial and operating covenants and restrictions that limit our operations and could lead 
to adverse consequences if we fail to comply with them.

The Senior ABL Facility contains certain financial and operating covenants and other restrictions relating to, among other 
things, excess availability and fixed charge coverage ratios, as well as limitations on indebtedness (including guarantees of 
additional indebtedness) and liens, mergers, consolidations and dissolutions, sales of assets, investments and acquisitions, dividends 
and other restricted payments (such as stock repurchases), and certain transactions with affiliates. See “Management’s Discussion 
and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—Senior ABL Facility” in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Failure to comply with these financial and operating covenants could result from, among other things, changes in our 
results of operations, the incurrence of additional indebtedness, or changes in general economic conditions, which may be beyond 
our control. The breach of any of these covenants or restrictions could result in a default under the Senior ABL Facility that would 
permit the lenders to declare all amounts outstanding thereunder to be due and payable, together with accrued and unpaid interest. 
If we are unable to repay such amounts, lenders having secured obligations, such as the lenders under the Senior ABL Facility, 
could proceed against the collateral securing the secured obligations. In any such case, we may be unable to borrow under the 
Senior ABL Facility and may not be able to repay amounts due under such facility. This could have serious consequences to our 
financial condition and results of operations and could cause us to become bankrupt or insolvent. In addition, these covenants may 
restrict our ability to engage in transactions (i) that we believe would otherwise be in the best interests of our stockholders or (ii) 
without which our business and operations could be harmed.

Increases in interest rates would increase the cost of servicing our debt and could reduce our profitability.

A significant portion of our outstanding debt, including amounts under the Senior ABL Facility, bears interest at variable 
rates. As a result, increases in interest rates would increase the cost of servicing our debt and could materially reduce our profitability 
and cash flows. Assuming our Senior ABL Facility was fully drawn in a principal amount equal to $250 million, each one percentage 
point change in interest rates would result in a $2.5 million change in annual cash interest expense on our Senior ABL Facility.

We may have future capital needs and may not be able to obtain additional financing on acceptable terms.

Any reductions in our available borrowing capacity under the Senior ABL Facility, or our inability to renew or replace 
our Senior ABL Facility, when required or when business conditions warrant, could have a material adverse effect on our business, 
financial condition and results of operations. The economic conditions, credit market conditions and economic climate affecting 
the retail industry, as well as other factors, may constrain our financing abilities. Our ability to secure additional financing, if 
available, and to satisfy our financial obligations under indebtedness outstanding from time to time will depend upon our future 
operating performance, the availability of credit generally, economic conditions and financial, business and other factors, many 
of which are beyond our control. The market conditions and the macroeconomic conditions that affect the retail industry could 
have a material adverse effect on our ability to secure financing on favorable terms, if at all.

We may be unable to secure additional financing or financing on favorable terms or our operating cash flow may be 
insufficient to satisfy our financial obligations under the indebtedness outstanding from time to time. Furthermore, if financing is 
not available when needed, or is available on unfavorable terms, we may be unable to take advantage of business opportunities 
or respond to competitive pressures, any of which could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and 
results of operations. If additional funds are raised through the issuance of additional equity securities, our stockholders may 
experience significant dilution.

Risks Relating to Our Common Stock

Our common stock has limited trading history.  If our share price fluctuates, you could lose all or a significant part of your 
investment.
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Our common stock has traded on the NASDAQ Capital Market under the symbol “SHOS” only since October 2012. 
There can be no assurance that an active and liquid trading market for our common stock will be sustained in the future. The lack 
of an active market may make it more difficult for you to sell our shares and could lead to our share price being depressed or more 
volatile.

We cannot predict the prices at which our common stock may trade in the future. The market price of our common stock 
may fluctuate widely, depending on many factors, some of which may be beyond our control, including the following:

• Our business profile and market capitalization may not continue to fit the investment objectives of some stockholders and, 
as a result, these stockholders may sell our shares;

• Actual or anticipated fluctuations in our operating results due to factors related to our business;
• Our ability to decrease our reliance on products and services provided by Sears Holdings and ability to diversify our supply 

chain;
• Success or failure of our business strategy;
• Our relationship with Sears Holdings;
• Actual or anticipated changes in the U.S. economy or the retailing environment;
• Our quarterly or annual earnings, or those of other companies in our industry;
• Our ability to obtain third-party financing as needed;
• Announcements by us or our competitors of significant acquisitions or dispositions;
• The failure of securities analysts to cover our common stock;
• Changes in earnings estimates by securities analysts or our ability to meet those estimates;
• The operating and stock price performance of other comparable companies;
• Overall market fluctuations;
• Changes in laws and regulations affecting our business;
• Actual or anticipated sales or distributions of our capital stock by our officers, directors or significant stockholders;
• Terrorist acts or wars; and
• General economic conditions and other external factors.

In addition, the stock market in general has experienced extreme price and volume fluctuations that have often been unrelated 
or disproportionate to the operating performance of companies like us. These broad market and industry factors may materially 
reduce the market price of our common stock, regardless of our operating performance.

Our common stock may have a low trading volume and limited liquidity, resulting from a continued lack of analyst coverage 
and institutional interest.

Our common stock may continue to receive limited attention from market analysts. Lack of up-to-date analyst coverage 
may make it difficult for potential investors to fully understand our operations and business fundamentals, which may limit our 
trading volume. Low trading volumes and lack of analyst coverage may limit your ability to resell your common stock.

Our common stock price may decline if ESL decides to sell a portion of its holdings of our common stock.

According to publicly available information ESL beneficially owns approximately 49% of our outstanding common 
stock. ESL will, in its sole discretion, determine the timing and terms of any transactions with respect to its shares in us, taking 
into account business and market conditions and other factors that it deems relevant.  ESL is not subject to any contractual obligation 
to maintain its ownership position in us, although it may be subject to certain transfer restrictions imposed by securities laws. 
Consequently, we cannot assure you that ESL will maintain its ownership interest in us.  Any sale by ESL of our common stock 
or any announcement by ESL that it has decided to sell shares of our common stock, or the perception by the investment community 
that ESL has sold or decided to sell shares of our common stock, could have an adverse impact on the price of our common stock.

Your percentage ownership in us may be diluted in the future.

Your percentage ownership in SHO may be diluted in the future because of equity awards that may be granted to our 
directors, officers and employees in the future. During our fiscal year 2013, we made awards of restricted stock to members of 
our senior management including our executive officers and we may decide to make additional equity-based awards, as well as 
establish equity incentive plans that may provide for the grant of common stock-based equity awards to our directors, officers and 
other employees. In addition, we may issue equity in order to raise capital or in connection with future acquisitions and strategic 
investments, which would dilute your percentage ownership.

We do not expect to pay dividends for the foreseeable future.
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We do not expect to pay cash dividends on our common stock for the foreseeable future. We currently intend to retain 
any future earnings for use in our operations. As a result, you may not receive any return on an investment in our common stock 
in the form of cash dividends.
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Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

None.

Item 2. Properties

As of February 1, 2014, our Hometown business included 1,117 stores and our Outlet business included 143 stores.  

As of February 1, 2014, 931 of our Hometown Store locations were leased by independent dealers from landlords not 
affiliated with SHO.  Also as of that date SHO subleased to franchisees 101 Home Appliance Showrooms and Hardware Stores, 
and assigned to franchisees the leases for 4 locations, with 51 locations leased by franchisees directly from landlords not affiliated 
with SHO.  As part of the sublease arrangements the franchisees agree with SHO to pay rent to SHO and perform the other lease 
obligations.  As of February 1, 2014 SHO operated 25 leased Home Appliance Showrooms and Hardware Stores and operated 
five leased Hometown Stores.  Also as of that date SHO operated 112 leased Outlet Stores, owned and operated three Outlet Stores, 
and leased or subleased 28 Outlet Stores to franchisees. 

Sears Holdings (or one of its subsidiaries) has sublet (or in a smaller number of cases assigned) to us its interests in the 
leases for all of our stores where Sears Holdings (or one of its subsidiaries), and not SHO or a dealer or a franchisee, is the tenant 
and either (i) the lease for such store permits assignment or subletting of the lease or (ii) Sears Holdings was able to obtain landlord 
consent to such assignment or sublease. However, a number of the leases for our stores (the “No-Consent Locations”), which 
number we do not believe is significant, do not permit assignment or subletting by Sears Holdings (or one of its subsidiaries) or 
may require landlord consent, which may be withheld. Sears Holdings (or one of its subsidiaries) entered into a sublease with us 
for each of the No-Consent Locations but if the landlord of a No-Consent Location were to claim that such sublease was a default 
under the applicable lease then we may be forced to close such store location.    

As of February 1, 2014, SHO subleased or leased from Sears Holdings a total of 65 Company-operated locations.  In some 
of these locations Sears Holdings currently operates one of its stores or engages in other or, in some cases, no business activity. 
In most such circumstances we have entered into a sublease with Sears Holdings (or one of its subsidiaries) for the portion of the 
space in which our store operates and we pay rent directly to Sears Holdings on the terms negotiated in connection with the 
Separation.  In several locations Sears Holdings owns the premises, which we lease from Sears Holdings.  We also lease from 
Sears Holdings approximately 36,000 square feet of office space for our corporate headquarters in Hoffman Estates, Illinois. We 
believe that our facilities are adequately maintained and are sufficient to meet our current and projected needs. We review all 
subleases and leases set to expire in the near-term to determine the appropriate action to take with respect to them, including 
closing stores, entering into new store subleases or leases, or purchasing properties for new stores.
 
 Generally, the form of sublease from Sears Holdings to us with respect to our subleased premises provides for the following, 
among other terms and conditions: (1) the duration of the sublease and the rent payable by us to Sears Holdings are the same as 
the duration and the rent payable by Sears Holdings to its landlord; (2) the premises are subleased to us on an “as is” basis and 
that Sears Holdings, as sublandlord, makes no representation to us regarding the condition of the subleased premises; (3) we as 
subtenant (A) are subject to easements, covenants, conditions, and restrictions of Sears Holdings' lease from its landlord and (B) 
are required to comply with and perform obligations of Sears Holdings as tenant under its lease from its landlord; (4) we are 
required to indemnify and defend Sears Holdings from and against claims by (A) Sears Holdings' landlord that we have not 
performed Sears Holdings' obligations as tenant under Sears Holdings' lease from the landlord and (B) any person as a result of 
our use or occupancy of the subleased premises or our failure to comply with the terms of the sublease or Sears Holdings' lease 
from its landlord; (5) we may not sublet or assign the sublease without the consent of Sears Holdings; and (6) upon specified 
defaults by us (including our failure to observe and perform any provision of the sublease to be performed by us) Sears Holdings 
may, among other remedies, (A) reenter the subleased premises and expel us and (B) recover damages from us.

Logistics

         We support the distribution of product sold through our Outlet locations through 26 strategically located warehouses in 16 
states and 1 in Puerto Rico.  The total square footage of all distribution locations is 2,146,941.  On occasion, we may lease additional 
facilities to support additional warehousing needs.
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Store Openings and Closures

Store opening and closure data for fiscal years 2011, 2012, and 2013 is contained in the following table.  Store closings in 
2012 were above normal levels due to a decision taken in 2011 to close 84 stores, generally due to lower profitability.  Of these 
84 stores, 20 stores closed in 2011 and the remainder closed primarily in the first half of 2012.  In 2013, 21 closures resulted from 
the termination by Orchard Supply Hardware LLC ("OSH") during its bankruptcy proceeding of its Consignment Agreement with 
us pursuant to which OSH sold at 21 OSH locations home-appliance inventory consigned by us to OSH (the "OSH Termination").

      

Store Openings & Closures

Fiscal Year

2011 2012 2013

Beginning Store Count  (1) 1,205 1,275 1,245
Store Openings 96 53 68
Store Closures (2) (27) (83) (53)
Ending Store Count 1,274 1,245 1,260

(1) Our Bermuda location is included in the Beginning Store Count for fiscal years 2012 and 2013.  It was not included in the 
fiscal year 2011 store count.
(2) In fiscal year 2011 Sears Holdings announced and established a reserve for the closure of 84 stores, with the actual closing 
dates largely in early 2012.  In fiscal year 2013, 21 closures resulted from the OSH Termination.

As of February 1, 2014 we had 1,260 stores in operation, with stores in each state in the U.S., as well as a store in Bermuda and 
stores in Puerto Rico.

Store Count by State

Hometown Outlet

Company Operated Dealer/Franchise Company Operated Franchise

BR Bermuda — 1 — —
AK Alaska — 1 — —
AL Alabama — 32 1 —
AR Arkansas — 33 — —
AZ Arizona — 16 3 2
CA California — 46 13 4
CO Colorado 1 20 4 —
CT Connecticut 1 6 2 —
DC Washington, DC — 1 — —
DE Delaware — 5 1 —
FL Florida 1 31 8 5
GA Georgia 1 37 4 —
HI Hawaii — 1 1 —
IA Iowa — 20 — —
ID Idaho — 7 — —
IL Illinois 3 38 10 —
IN Indiana 1 37 1 1
KS Kansas — 23 1 1
KY Kentucky 1 25 2 —
LA Louisiana — 23 1 —
MA Massachusetts — 10 3 —
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MD Maryland 2 7 3 —
ME Maine — 11 — —
MI Michigan — 39 6 —
MN Minnesota — 35 2 —
MO Missouri 2 43 — 3
MS Mississippi — 26 — —
MT Montana — 9 — —
NC North Carolina — 40 4 —
ND North Dakota — 5 — —
NE Nebraska — 11 — —
NH New Hampshire — 8 — —
NJ New Jersey 3 14 4 —
NM New Mexico — 10 — —
NV Nevada — 6 3 —
NY New York 4 23 4 —
OH Ohio 4 40 8 —
OK Oklahoma — 21 — —
OR Oregon — 23 2 —
PA Pennsylvania 2 30 5 —
PR Puerto Rico — 10 1 —
RI Rhode Island — 3 — —
SC South Carolina — 15 1 —
SD South Dakota — 5 — —
TN Tennessee — 22 3 —
TX Texas 1 108 4 12
UT Utah 2 9 — —
VA Vermont — 24 4 —
VT Virginia — 9 — —
WA Washington 1 20 3 —
WI West Virginia — 32 3 —
WV Wisconsin — 9 — —
WY Wyoming — 7 — —

Total 30 1,087 115 28

Store Ownership Type

Hometown Outlet

Company operated stores owned — 3
Leased 30 112
Total company operated 30 115

Independently owned and operated 1,087 28

Total store count as of February 1, 2014 1,117 143
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Item 3. Legal Proceedings

As of the date hereof, we are not party to any litigation which we consider material to our operations.

Notwithstanding the above, from time to time we are, and will continue to be, subject to legal claims, including without 
limitation those alleging wage and hour violations, employment discrimination, unlawful employment practices, Americans with 
Disabilities Act claims, product liability claims as a result of the sale of certain products, as well as various legal and governmental 
proceedings.  Litigation is inherently unpredictable and each proceeding, claim, and regulatory action against us, whether 
meritorious or not, could be time consuming, result in significant legal expenses, require significant amounts of management time, 
result in the diversion of significant operational resources, require changes in our methods of doing business that could be costly 
to implement, reduce our net sales, increase our expenses, require us to make substantial payments to settle claims or satisfy 
judgments, require us to cease conducting certain operations or offering certain products in certain areas or generally, and otherwise 
harm our business, results of operations, financial condition and cash flows, perhaps materially.  See also “Risk Factors-Risks 
Relating to Our Relationship with, and Dependence on, Sears Holdings” and “Risk Factors-Risks Relating to Our Business” in 
this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
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Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosure

Not Applicable.

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT
The following table sets forth information regarding our executive officers as of the date hereof.

 

Name    Age      Position

W. Bruce Johnson    62    Chief Executive Officer, President and Director

Steven D. Barnhart    52    Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

William A. Powell    43    Senior Vice President and Chief Operating Officer

John E. Ethridge II 41 Vice President, Supply Chain and Technology

Charles J. Hansen    66    Vice President, General Counsel, and Secretary

Becky Iliff    45    Vice President, Human Resources

Mr. Johnson has been a director and Chief Executive Officer and President of SHO since July 2012.  He previously served 
as Executive Vice President Off-Mall Businesses of Sears Holdings, a retailer holding company, to which position he was elected 
in September 2011. From February 2011 until September 2011, he served as Sears Holdings' Executive Vice President-Off-Mall 
Business and Supply Chain. He served as Sears Holdings' interim Chief Executive Officer and President from February 2008 to 
February 2011 and as a member of the Board of Directors of Sears Holdings from May 2010 to May 2011.  He previously served 
as Sears Holdings' Executive Vice President, Supply Chain and Operations since the merger of Sears, Roebuck and Co. and Kmart 
Holding Corporation, both retailers, in 2005. He joined Kmart in October 2003 as Senior Vice President, Supply Chain and 
Operations.  Since July 2010, Mr. Johnson has served on the Board of Visitors of Duke Law School, and since January 2009 he 
has served on the Board of Directors of the Ann & Robert H. Lurie Children's Hospital of Chicago and is a member of its finance 
committee.  

Mr. Barnhart has been Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of SHO since August 2012.  He previously served 
as Chief Financial Officer of Bally Total Fitness, an operator of fitness centers, from January 2010 to June 2012. He served as 
Chief Executive Officer and President of Orbitz Worldwide, Inc., an online travel company, from April 2007 until January 2009. 
He served in various executive positions with Orbitz and its predecessors from May 2003 until April 2007. 

Mr. Powell has been Senior Vice President and Chief Operating Officer of SHO since October 2012.  Prior to his employment 
with SHO, he served as Sears Holdings' Senior Vice President and President, Hometown Stores (at that time a division of Sears 
Holdings), positions he held from November 2008 to October 2012.  From November 2007 until November 2008, Mr. Powell 
served as Sears Holdings' Vice President and General Manager, Outlet Stores (at that time a division of Sears Holdings), and from 
January 2006 to November 2007, he served as Sears Holdings' Divisional Vice President, Stores/Sales-Dealer Stores.  He joined 
Sears Holdings in August 2003.  

Mr. Ethridge has been Vice President, Supply Chain and Technology, of SHO since October 2012.  He served as Sears 
Holdings' Vice President and General Manager, Outlet Stores (at that time a division of Sears Holdings), from June 2011 to October 
2012.  Prior to that time, he served as Sears Holdings' Divisional Vice President and General Manager, Outlet Stores, from January 
2011 until June 2011; Sears Holdings' Director, Marketing, eCommerce and Business Development, from July 2010 to January 
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2011; and as Sears Holdings' Director, Marketing and eCommerce from November 2009 to July 2010.  Before he commenced his 
employment with Sears Holdings, Mr. Ethridge served in the U.S. Navy as Engagement Manager/Project Leader on the staff of 
the Chief of Naval Operations Assessment Division from September 2007 to November 2009.  

Mr. Hansen has been Vice President, General Counsel, and Secretary of SHO since October 2012.  From January 2008 until 
October 2012, he served as Vice President, Chief Counsel of Sears Holdings.  Prior to his employment with Sears Holdings, Mr. 
Hansen was the Executive Vice President and General Counsel of Saks Incorporated, an operator of retail and department stores, 
a position he held from September 2003 to May 2007.  

Ms. Iliff has been Vice President, Human Resources of SHO since August 2012. She served as Vice President of People of 
Cosi, Inc., an operator and franchisor of restaurants, from November 2005 to July 2012.  

Part II
Item 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters, and Issuer Purchases of Equity 
Securities

 Our common stock is listed and traded on the NASDAQ Stock Market under the ticker symbol SHOS. We had 
approximately 351 stockholders of record at the close of business on April 1, 2014.  The table below sets forth the high and low 
sales prices on NASDAQ of our common stock for each of the fiscal periods indicated.

2013 High Low

First Quarter $ 46.50 $ 35.89
Second Quarter 57.44 38.72
Third Quarter 44.91 26.90
Fourth Quarter 32.86 20.51

2012 High Low

First Quarter $ — $ —
Second Quarter — —
Third Quarter 34.85 30.25
Fourth Quarter 40.39 29.77

Dividends

We did not declare any cash dividends on our common stock during fiscal year 2013.  We paid a $100 million dividend  
to Sears Holdings prior to the Separation in 2012.  We do not expect to pay cash dividends on our common stock for the foreseeable 
future.  Cash dividends are dependent upon our results of operations, financial condition, cash requirements, the satisfaction of 
certain conditions (described below) under our Senior ABL Facility, availability of surplus, and such other factors as our Board 
of Directors may deem relevant. See "We do not expect to pay dividends for the foreseeable future" in Item 1A of this Annual 
Report on Form 10-K.

Share Repurchases

On August 28, 2013 the Company's Board of Directors authorized a $25 million repurchase program for the Company's 
outstanding shares of common stock. The timing and amount of repurchases depend on various factors, including market conditions, 
the Company's capital position and internal cash generation, and other factors. The Company's repurchase program does not include 
specific price targets, may be executed through open-market, privately negotiated, and other transactions that may be available, 
and may include utilization of Rule 10b5-1 plans. The repurchase program does not obligate the Company to repurchase any dollar 
amount, or any number of shares, of common stock. The repurchase program does not have a termination date, and the Company 
may suspend or terminate the repurchase program at any time. 

 Shares that are repurchased by the Company pursuant to the repurchase program will be retired and will resume the status 
of authorized and unissued shares of common stock. 

 We repurchased 155,151 shares of our common stock, valued at approximately $4.2 million, in the fourth quarter of 2013. 
Our share repurchase activity, on a monthly basis, for the quarter ended February 1, 2014 was as follows (in thousands, except per 
share data):
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Total Number of
Shares Purchased

Average
Price

Paid Per
Share

Total Number of
Shares Purchased
as Part of Publicly

Announced
Program (1)

Approximate Dollar 
Value of Shares that 

May Yet Be 
Purchased Under the 

Program

November 3, 2013 to November 30, 2013 12,651 $ 27.60 12,651 $ 16,280,734
December 1, 2013 to January 4, 2014 142,500 26.70 142,500 12,475,480
January 5, 2014 to February 1, 2014 — — — 12,475,480
    For the quarter ended February 1, 2014 155,151 $ 26.78 155,151

(1)  Our share repurchase program was initially announced on August 30, 2013 and has a total authorization, since inception 
of the program, of $25 million.  The program has no stated expiration date. 

The Senior ABL Facility limits SHO's ability to declare and pay cash dividends and repurchase its common stock.  SHO 
may declare and pay cash dividends to its stockholders and may repurchase stock if the following conditions are satisfied: either 
(a) (i) no specified default then exists or would arise as a result of the declaration or payment of the cash dividend or as a result 
of the stock repurchase, (ii) SHO and its subsidiaries that are also borrowers have demonstrated to the reasonable satisfaction of 
the agent for the lenders that monthly availability (as determined in accordance with the Senior ABL Facility), immediately 
following the declaration and payment of the cash dividend or the stock repurchase and as projected on a pro forma basis for the 
twelve months following and after giving effect to the declaration and payment of the cash dividend or the stock repurchase, would 
be at least equal to the greater of (x) 25% of the Loan Cap (which is the lesser of (A) the aggregate commitments of the lenders 
and (B) the borrowing base) and (y) $50,000,000, and (iii) after giving pro forma effect to the declaration and payment of the cash 
dividend or the stock repurchase as if it constituted a specified debt service charge, the specified consolidated fixed charge coverage 
ratio, as calculated on a trailing twelve months basis, would be equal to or greater than 1.1:1.0, or (b) (i) no specified default then 
exists or would arise as a result of the declaration or payment of the cash dividend or the stock repurchase, (ii) payment of the 
cash dividend or the stock repurchase is not made with the proceeds of any credit extension under the Senior ABL Facility, (iii) 
during the 120-day period prior to declaration and payment of the cash dividend or the stock repurchase, no credit extension was 
outstanding under the Senior ABL Facility, and (iv) SHO demonstrates to the reasonable satisfaction of the agent for the lenders 
that, on a pro forma and projected basis, no credit extensions would be outstanding under the Senior ABL Facility for the 120-day 
period following the declaration and payment of the cash dividend or the stock repurchase. 

 The Senior ABL Facility also imposes various other requirements, such as a cash dominion requirement and a requirement 
that the fixed charge ratio at any date of determination be not less than 1.0 to 1.0, which take effect if availability falls below 
designated thresholds and which may limit our ability to make share repurchases. 

Stock Performance Graph

 The following graph compares the cumulative stockholder return on our common stock with the return on the Total Return 
Index for The S&P 500 Stock Index and The S&P 500 Retailing Industry Group Total Return Index.  The graph assumes that $100 
was invested on October 12, 2012 in each of our common stock, The S&P 500 Stock Index and The S&P 500 Retailing Industry 
Group Total Return Index.  The following graph and related information shall not be deemed "soliciting material" or be deemed 
to be "filed" with the SEC, and such information shall not be incorporated by reference into any future filing with the SEC except 
to the extent that such filing specifically states that such graph and related information are incorporated by reference into such 
filing.
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 The table below assumes that $100 was invested on October 12, 2012 in each of our common stock, The S&P 500 Stock 
Index and The S&P 500 Retailing Industry Group Total Return Index.

10/12/2012 10/27/2012 2/2/2013 5/4/2013 8/3/2013 11/2/2013 2/1/2014

SHOS $ 100.000 $ 113.592 $ 131.649 $ 148.501 $ 144.003 $ 88.266 $ 68.416
S&P 500 INDEX $ 100.000 $ 98.835 $ 105.921 $ 113.008 $ 119.675 $ 123.313 $ 124.780
S&P 500 RETAILING INDEX $ 100.000 $ 99.333 $ 108.670 $ 117.899 $ 131.966 $ 138.247 $ 134.639
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Item 6.  Selected Financial Data

SELECTED HISTORICAL FINANCIAL AND OTHER DATA

The consolidated statements of income data set forth below for fiscal years 2013, 2012, 2011, 2010, and 2009 and the 
consolidated balance sheet data as of February 1, 2014, February 2, 2013,  January 28, 2012, and January 29, 2011 are derived from 
the audited Consolidated Financial Statements contained in this Annual Report on Form 10-K or our previously filed Registration 
Statement on Form S-1, as amended.  The consolidated balance sheet data as of January 30, 2010 is derived from the unaudited 
Consolidated Financial Statements that are not included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K or our previously filed Registration 
Statement on Form S-1, as amended.  All pre-Separation historical financial and other data reflects the consolidated Sears Hometown 
and Hardware and Sears Outlet businesses of Sears Holdings and is referred to herein as “our” historical financial and other data.

The selected historical consolidated financial and other financial data presented below should be read in conjunction with 
our Consolidated Financial Statements and accompanying notes and “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition 
and Results of Operations” included elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Our pre-Separation combined financial 
information may not be indicative of our future performance and does not necessarily reflect what our financial position and results 
of operations would have been had we operated during those periods as a publicly traded company separate from Sears Holdings.
 

Fiscal Year
thousands, except for per share amounts and
number of stores 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009

Consolidated Statement of Income
Data (1)
Net sales $ 2,421,562 $ 2,453,606 $ 2,344,199 $ 2,347,387 $ 2,329,925
Net income $ 35,550 $ 60,080 $ 33,056 $ 49,756 $ 60,115
Per Common Share (2)
Basic $ 1.55 $ 2.60 $ 1.43 $ 2.15 $ 2.60
Diluted $ 1.55 $ 2.60 $ 1.43 $ 2.15 $ 2.60

Consolidated Balance Sheet Data
Total assets $ 847,185 $ 785,803 $ 651,838 $ 641,441 $ 629,415
Long-term debt — — — — —
Long-term capital lease obligations $ 95 $ 769 $ 1,937 $ 3,998 $ 6,209
Other Financial and Operational
Data
Adjusted EBITDA (3) $ 71,514 $ 109,796 $ 80,919 $ 93,864 $ 108,723
Number of stores 1,260 1,245 1,275 1,205 1,166
Sears Outlet - Comparable Store Sales
% 1.2 % (0.8)% 8.7 % (0.4)% 1.3 %
Sears Hometown and Hardware -
Comparable Store Sales % (3.2)% 1.0 % (6.1)% (3.7)% (5.9)%

 
(1) Our fiscal year end is the Saturday closest to January 31 each year. Fiscal year 2012 was a 53-week year and fiscal 

years 2013, 2011, 2010, and 2009 were 52-week years.

(2) 23,100,000 shares outstanding effective upon completion of the Separation are used for all periods prior to the 
Separation.

(3) Adjusted EBITDA—In addition to our net income determined in accordance with GAAP, for purposes of evaluating 
operating performance, we use  Adjusted Earnings Before Interest, Taxes, Depreciation and Amortization, or “Adjusted 
EBITDA,” which is adjusted to exclude certain significant items as set forth below.  Our management uses Adjusted 
EBITDA, among other metrics, to evaluate the operating performance of our business for comparable periods.  Adjusted 
EBITDA should not be used by investors or other third parties as the sole basis for formulating investment decisions 
as it excludes a number of important cash and non-cash recurring items, and may not be comparable to similarly titled 
measures reported by other companies. Adjusted EBITDA should not be considered as a substitute for GAAP 
measurements.
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While Adjusted EBITDA is a non-GAAP measurement, management believes that it is an important indicator of operating 
performance because:

• EBITDA excludes the effects of financing and investing activities by eliminating the effects of interest and depreciation 
costs; and

• Other significant items, while periodically affecting our results, may vary significantly from period to period and have a 
disproportionate effect in a given period, which affects comparability of results.

The following table presents a reconciliation of Adjusted EBITDA to net income, the most comparable GAAP measure for 
each of the periods indicated:

 

  Fiscal

thousands 2013 2012 2011

Net income $ 35,550 $ 60,080 $ 33,056
Income tax expense 24,333 39,900 21,727
Other income (1,854) (1,354) (422)
Interest expense (income) 3,046 899 913
Operating income 61,075 99,525 55,274
Depreciation 12,006 9,474 9,774
Store closing charges and severance costs (1) — 797 15,871
Gain on the sale of assets (1,567) — —
Adjusted EBITDA $ 71,514 $ 109,796 $ 80,919

 
(1) See Note 6 to our Consolidated Financial Statements included herein.
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Item 7.  MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF 
OPERATIONS

The following discussion should be read in conjunction with the Consolidated Financial Statements and notes contained 
elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.  For pre-Separation periods these financial statements and notes reflect the 
combined Sears Hometown and Hardware and Sears Outlet businesses of Sears Holdings, which, together with our operation of 
these businesses following the Separation, are referred to herein as “our” financial condition and results of operations. This 
discussion contains forward-looking statements that reflect our plans, estimates and beliefs. Our actual results could differ 
materially from those discussed in these forward-looking statements. Factors that could cause or contribute to these differences 
include those factors discussed below and elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K, particularly in “Risk Factors” and 
“Cautionary Statement Regarding Forward-Looking Information.”

Overview

We are a national retailer primarily focused on selling home appliances, lawn and garden equipment, tools, and hardware. 
In addition to merchandise, we provide our customers with access to a full suite of services, including home delivery and extended-
service plans.  As of February 1, 2014, we and our dealers and franchisees operated 1,260 stores across all 50 states, Puerto Rico, 
and Bermuda.  In fiscal year 2013, the Company opened 68 stores and closed 53 stores.

Our Hometown stores are designed to provide our customers with in-store and online access to a wide selection of national 
brands of home appliances, lawn and garden equipment, tools, sporting goods, and household goods, depending on the format. 
Our Outlet stores are designed to provide our customers with in-store and online access to purchase, at prices that are significantly 
lower than manufacturers' suggested retail prices, new, one-of-a-kind, out-of-carton, discontinued, obsolete, used, reconditioned, 
overstocked, and scratched and dented products across a broad assortment of merchandise categories, including home appliances, 
apparel, mattresses, lawn and garden equipment, sporting goods and tools.

As of February 1, 2014, Hometown consisted of 1,117 stores as follows:

• 931 Hometown Stores—Primarily independently operated stores, predominantly located in smaller communities and 
offering home appliances, lawn and garden equipment, tools, sporting goods, and household goods.  Most of our Hometown 
Stores carry proprietary Sears brand products, such as Kenmore, Craftsman, and DieHard, as well as a wide assortment 
of other national brands.

• 85 Hardware Stores—Hardware stores that offer primarily home appliances, lawn and garden equipment, tools, and other 
home improvement products, and featuring Kenmore, Craftsman, and DieHard, as well as a wide assortment of other 
national brands.  83 of these locations offer a selection of Kenmore and other national brands of home appliances.

• 101 Home Appliance Showrooms—Stores that have a simple, primarily appliance showroom design that are positioned 
in metropolitan areas.

As of February 1, 2014, our Hometown segment included 928 dealer-operated stores, 159 franchisee-operated stores and 
30 Company-operated stores.  The business model and economic structure of the dealer-operated and franchisee-operated stores, 
which are independently owned, are substantially similar to Company-operated stores. The Company requires all of the stores to 
operate according to the Company’s standards. Stores must display the required merchandise, offer all required products and 
services and use the Company’s point of sale system. Also, the Company has the right to approve advertising and promotional and 
marketing materials and imposes certain advertising requirements on the owners.  The Company owns the merchandise, establishes 
all selling prices for the merchandise, and bears general inventory risk (with specific exceptions) until sale of the merchandise and 
if the customer returns the merchandise. In addition, because each transaction is recorded in the Company’s point of sale system, 
the Company bears customer credit risk.  The Company establishes a commission structure for stores operated by dealers and 
franchisees and pays commissions when the dealers and franchisees sell the merchandise and provide services.

Historically, all of the Company's Outlet stores have been owned by the Company. The Company began a trial program 
for franchising Outlet stores in late 2012. The initial franchise transfers under this program were completed in the first quarter of 
2013 and, since that time, the Company has continued to franchise Outlet stores.  As of February 1, 2014, 28 of the 143 Sears 
Outlet stores were operated by franchisees.

Dealers and franchisees exercise control over the day-to-day operations of their stores, including supervising management 
and employees and making capital decisions.
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The primary difference between Company-operated stores and dealer/franchisee-operated stores is that the Company is 
responsible for occupancy and payroll costs associated with Company-owned stores.  Dealers and franchisees are responsible for 
the occupancy costs in their stores and the payrolls of their employees, and we pay commissions to the dealers and franchisees.

In the normal course of business, stores can transition from Company-operated to franchisee or dealer-operated, and vice-
versa.  Potential new store locations may be identified by the Company, an existing dealer or franchisee, or a potential dealer or 
franchisee.  If the Company identifies and develops a location, it will generally seek to transfer that store to a dealer or franchisee.  
When a dealer or franchisee exits a location, the Company may take over the operation of a store, generally on an interim basis, 
until the location can be transferred to another dealer or franchisee.  At any given time the Company is generally operating a 
number of stores that are in transition from one dealer or franchisee to another dealer or franchisee.  Transition stores are not 
included in our count of Company-operated locations due to the expected short-term nature of transition operation.

 The Company's sale of a store to a franchisee generally will increase the Company's gross margin and increase the 
Company's selling and administrative expense, as the Company's cost of occupancy, which is reflected in cost of sales and occupancy, 
will be reduced, while the Company's commission payments, which are reflected in selling and administrative expense, will 
increase.  The increase in commission payments will be partially offset by lower payroll and benefits expense.

Initial franchise revenues (shown in the table below) consist of franchise fees paid with respect to new and existing 
Company-operated stores that we transfer to franchisees plus the net gain or loss on any related transfer of assets to the franchisees.  
The number of new franchised stores, the number of Company-operated stores transferred, and the net gain or loss per store 
transferred are highly variable from quarter to quarter.  The variation is driven by a number of factors, including general economic 
conditions, which influence both the level of new store development and the level of interest of existing or potential franchisees 
in acquiring store locations, and economic factors specific to our major product categories, such as appliances.  Each of these 
factors impacts the expected returns on new store development and the number of Company-operated locations available for sale 
to franchisees.  Initial franchise revenues were $25.6 million, $11.2 million, and $11.6 million in the 2013, 2012, and 2011 fiscal 
years, respectively.

Initial franchise revenues by quarter for the 2013, 2012, and 2011 fiscal years:

thousands
First

Quarter
Second
Quarter

Third
Quarter

Fourth
Quarter

Fiscal Year
Total

2013

Hometown $ 2,247 $ 774 $ 1,607 $ 908 $ 5,536
Outlet 2,965 989 6,175 9,942 20,071
  Total $ 5,212 $ 1,763 $ 7,782 $ 10,850 $ 25,607

2012

Hometown $ 5,008 $ 4,639 $ 1,511 $ — $ 11,158
Outlet — — — — —
  Total $ 5,008 $ 4,639 $ 1,511 $ — $ 11,158

2011

Hometown $ 1,800 $ 814 $ 6,467 $ 2,550 $ 11,631
Outlet — — — — —
  Total $ 1,800 $ 814 $ 6,467 $ 2,550 $ 11,631

Impacts from the Separation
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SHO consists of what were formerly the Sears Hometown and Hardware and Sears Outlet businesses owned by Sears 
Holdings.  SHO separated from Sears Holdings via a rights offering in October 2012 and since the Separation has operated as a 
publicly traded company separate from Sears Holdings.  The Separation has had several impacts on our operations.  Pre-Separation, 
we used the corporate functions of Sears Holdings for a variety of services including treasury, accounting, tax, legal, and other 
shared services, which include the costs of payroll, employee benefits, and other payroll-related costs.  Sears Holdings also provided, 
pre-Separation,  other corporate functions such as senior management and centrally managed employee-benefit arrangements.  For 
these services we were allocated $19.8 million of shared services costs incurred by Sears Holdings in 2011.  As part of the Separation 
Sears Holdings agreed to continue to provide services to the Company (see Note 5 to our Consolidated Financial Statements in 
this Annual Report on Form 10-K).  For 2012 we were allocated $12.3 million of services costs pre-Separation and charged $6.6 
million for services costs post-Separation.  The pre-Separation allocated portion of these costs may not be indicative of the actual 
level of expense that we would have incurred if we had operated as a publicly traded company separate from Sears Holdings. 

Sears Holdings charged the Company $22.2 million for services in fiscal 2013.  The Company estimates that it incurred 
$17.1 million in costs above the level incurred in 2012 in categories impacted by the Separation.  These higher costs included $3.1 
million in commissions paid to Sears Holdings' online business, where such a commission arrangement was not in place pre-
Separation. $3.9 million of the higher cost resulted from additional staffing, home office rent, D&O insurance, and other costs 
related to operating as a publicly traded company separate from Sears Holdings.  Another $10.1 million of the higher costs was 
associated with staffing, marketing, and other corporate services that had been provided by Sears Holdings but only some of which 
had been allocated to the combined Hometown and Hardware and Outlet business units prior to the Separation.

Fiscal Year

Our fiscal years end on the Saturday closest to January 31.  Fiscal years 2013 and 2011 consisted of 52 weeks.  Fiscal 
year 2012 consisted of 53 weeks.  Unless otherwise stated, references to specific years in this Annual Report on Form 10-K are 
to fiscal years. The following fiscal periods are presented herein:
 

Fiscal year    Ended    Weeks

2013    February 1, 2014    52
2012    February 2, 2013    53
2011    January 28, 2012    52

Results of Operations

The following table sets forth items derived from our consolidated results of operations for 2013, 2012 and 2011.
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  Fiscal

thousands 2013 2012 2011

NET SALES $ 2,421,562 $ 2,453,606 $ 2,344,199
COSTS AND EXPENSES
Cost of sales and occupancy 1,843,418 1,840,207 1,820,516
Gross margin 578,144 613,399 523,683
Margin rate 23.9% 25.0% 22.3%
Selling and administrative 506,630 504,400 458,635
Selling and administrative expense as a percentage of net sales 20.9% 20.6% 19.6%
Depreciation 12,006 9,474 9,774
Gain on the sale of assets (1,567) — —

Total costs and expenses 2,360,487 2,354,081 2,288,925
Operating income 61,075 99,525 55,274
Interest income (expense) (3,046) (899) (913)
Other income 1,854 1,354 422
Income before income taxes 59,883 99,980 54,783
Income tax expense (24,333) (39,900) (21,727)
NET INCOME $ 35,550 $ 60,080 $ 33,056

References to comparable store sales amounts in the following discussion include sales for all stores operating for a period 
of at least 12 full months, including remodeled and expanded stores, but excluding store relocations and stores that have undergone 
format changes. Online sales are included in comparable store sales.

In addition to our net income determined in accordance with GAAP, for purposes of evaluating operating performance, 
we use an Adjusted Earnings Before Interest, Taxes, Depreciation and Amortization, or “Adjusted EBITDA,” which is adjusted 
to exclude certain significant items as set forth below. Our management uses Adjusted EBITDA, along with other metrics, to 
evaluate the operating performance of our business for comparable periods. Adjusted EBITDA should not be used by investors or 
other third parties as the sole basis for formulating investment decisions as it excludes a number of important cash and non-cash 
recurring items. Adjusted EBITDA should not be considered as a substitute for GAAP measurements.

While Adjusted EBITDA is a non-GAAP measurement, management believes that it is an important indicator of operating 
performance because:

• EBITDA excludes the effects of financing and investing activities by eliminating the effects of interest and depreciation 
costs; and

• Other significant items, while periodically affecting our results, may vary significantly from period to period and have a 
disproportionate effect in a given period, which affects comparability of results.

The following table presents a reconciliation of Adjusted EBITDA to net income, the most comparable GAAP measure 
for each of the periods indicated:
 

  Fiscal

thousands 2013 2012 2011

Net income $ 35,550 $ 60,080 $ 33,056
Income tax expense 24,333 39,900 21,727
Other income (1,854) (1,354) (422)
Interest expense (income) 3,046 899 913
Operating income 61,075 99,525 55,274
Depreciation 12,006 9,474 9,774
Store closing charges and severance costs (1) — 797 15,871
Gain on the sale of assets (1,567) — —
Adjusted EBITDA $ 71,514 $ 109,796 $ 80,919
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(1) See Note 6 to our Consolidated Financial Statements included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

52 Week Period Ended February 1, 2014 Compared to the 53 Week Period Ended February 2, 2013

Net Sales

Net sales for the 2013 fiscal year (52 weeks) decreased $32.0 million, or 1.3%, to $2.4 billion from the 2012 fiscal year 
(53 weeks).  This decrease in sales was driven by a 2.2% decrease in comparable store sales and $36.5 million in sales in the 53rd 
week of 2012 partially offset by sales from new stores (net of closures) and higher initial franchise revenues, which were $25.6 
million in 2013 compared to $11.2 million in 2012.  The comparable store sales decrease was comprised of a 3.2% decrease in 
Hometown partially offset by a 1.2% increase in Outlet.   The 2.2% comparable store sales decrease was primarily driven by lower 
consumer electronics sales due to the completed exit of the category in the majority of Hometown stores, lower sales of lawn and 
garden in Hometown due to weather-related late starts to the spring/summer and fall seasons, lower Outlet apparel sales due to a 
narrower assortment, and lower tools-category sales in both segments.  These decreases were partially offset by higher major 
appliances sales in both segments.  Excluding consumer electronics, same store sales decreased 1.5% in Hometown, increased 
1.4% in Outlet, and decreased 0.8% overall.

Gross Margin

Gross margin was $578.1 million or 23.9% of sales in 2013, compared to $613.4 million or 25.0% of sales in 2012.  The 
decrease in gross margin rate was primarily driven by (1) lower margins on merchandise sales, (2) $14.4 million of distribution 
center costs that were separated from selling store costs and were reflected in selling and administrative expense in 2012 and are 
now reflected in gross margin, (3) $3.8 million in warranty expense timing benefit in the third and fourth quarters of 2012, (4) 
$3.7 million in benefit in the first and second quarters of 2012 from the impact of store closing reserves established in 2011, and 
(5) $2.2 million of additional occupancy and other costs incurred as a result of the Separation.  These decreases were partially 
offset by a $14.4 million increase in initial franchise revenues, lower occupancy costs (excluding the additional $2.2 million of 
additional occupancy and other costs) resulting from the conversion of Company-operated stores to franchisee-operated stores, 
and a $2.1 million increase in warranty-estimate reserves in 2012.

Selling and Administrative Expenses

Selling and administrative costs increased to $506.6 million, or 20.9% of sales, in 2013 as compared to $504.4 million, 
or 20.6% of sales in 2012.  This increase primarily resulted from higher owner commissions in Hometown related to the conversion 
of Company-operated stores to franchisee-operated stores and an estimated $14.9 million of higher operating costs incurred as a 
result of operating as a separate, publicly held company.  These increases were partially offset by $14.4 million in Outlet distribution-
center costs that were separated from selling store costs and were reflected in selling and administrative expense in 2012 and a 
reduction in payroll and benefits related to the Company-operated stores conversions and $7.3 million of expense incurred in the 
53rd week of 2012.

Operating Income

Full year operating income decreased to $61.1 million in 2013 compared to $99.5 million in 2012.  The $38.4 million 
decrease was primarily due to the lower sales, lower gross margin rate, and higher selling and administrative expenses noted above, 
and includes the impact of an estimated $3.1 million earned during the 53rd week of 2012.

Income Taxes

Income tax expense of $24.3 million and $39.9 million was recorded for 2013 and 2012, respectively. The effective tax 
rate was 40.6% and 39.9% for 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Net Income

Net income for 2013 was $35.6 million as compared to $60.1 million for 2012. The decrease in net income was attributable 
to the factors discussed above.

53 Week Period Ended February 2, 2013 Compared to the 52 Week Period Ended January 28, 2012
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Net Sales

Net sales for 2012 increased $109.4 million, or 4.7%, to $2.5 billion from 2011.  This increase in sales was primarily 
driven by new stores (net of closings), the impact of the 53rd week, a 0.6% increase in comparable store sales, an increase in 
delivery revenues and higher Outlet liquidation revenues.  The comparable store sales increase was driven by a 1.0% increase in 
Hometown and a 0.8% decrease in Outlet

Gross Margin

Gross margin was $613.4 million, or 25.0% of sales, in 2012 compared to $523.7 million or 22.3% of sales in 2011.  The 
270 basis point increase in gross margin primarily resulted from $27.4 million in lower Hometown occupancy costs due to 
franchising Company-operated stores, $12.1 million of store closing reserve charges in 2011, an $11.1 million improvement in 
Hometown delivery margins, a 25 basis point impact from higher merchandise margins in Hometown partially offset by lower 
merchandise margins in Outlet, $3.5 million in higher online commissions in Hometown for sales fulfilled through Sears.com and 
$2.1 million in higher income from outlet merchandise liquidated via a third party.  The 270 basis point increase also reflects 
approximately $3.8 million in warranty-expense timing benefit and a $3.7 million benefit in 2012 from the impact of store closing 
reserves established in 2011.  These favorable impacts were partially offset by $7.2 million of warranty reserve estimate changes, 
which resulted from a $5.1 million reduction in reserves in 2011 and a $2.1 million increase in reserves in 2012.  In addition, gross 
margins were unfavorably impacted by a $2.8 million impact of Hometown consumer electronics clearance activity in 2012 as a 
result of the decision to exit the category in the majority of Hometown stores and $1.4 million primarily due to additional occupancy 
costs as a result of operating as a separate, publicly held company since the Separation.  

Selling and Administrative Expenses

Selling and administrative costs increased to $504.4 million, or 20.6% of sales, in 2012 as compared to $458.6 million, 
or 19.6% of sales in 2011.  This increase primarily resulted from a $54.0 million increase in owner commissions in Hometown 
related to the conversion of company-operated stores to franchisee-operated stores and overall sales growth.  Also adding to the 
increase in Selling and Administrative Expenses were the 53rd week, additional marketing investments, and an estimated $3.6 
million in higher costs from operating as a separate, publicly held company since the Separation.  These increases were partially 
offset by a decrease in payroll and benefits, which also resulted from the franchise conversions.  Additional offsets to the increase 
include $0.8 million in store closing and severance costs in 2012 compared to $3.8 million in 2011.  

Operating Income

Full year operating income increased to $99.5 million in 2012 compared to $55.3 million in 2011.  The $44.2 million 
increase is primarily due to the higher sales and the higher gross margin rate partially offset by higher selling and administrative 
expenses as noted above.

Income Taxes

Income tax expense of $39.9 million and $21.7 million was recorded for 2012 and 2011, respectively. The effective tax 
rate was 39.9% and 39.7% for 2012 and 2011, respectively.

Net Income

Net income for 2012 was $60.1 million  as compared to $33.1 million for 2011. The increase in net income was attributable 
to the factors discussed above.

Business Segment Results

Hometown

Hometown results and key statistics were as follows:
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  Fiscal Year

thousands, except for number of stores 2013 2012 2011

Net sales $ 1,811,519 $ 1,889,263 $ 1,838,797
Comparable store sales % (3.2)% 1.0% (6.1)%
Cost of sales and occupancy 1,389,627 1,433,880 1,463,636
Gross margin 421,892 455,383 375,161
Margin rate 23.3 % 24.1% 20.4 %
Selling and administrative 396,073 394,335 356,351
Selling and administrative expense as a percentage of net sales 21.9 % 20.9% 19.4 %
Depreciation 6,321 3,658 4,083

Total costs and expenses 1,792,021 1,831,873 1,824,070
Operating income $ 19,498 $ 57,390 $ 14,727
Total Sears Hometown and Hardware stores 1,117 1,118 1,158

52 Week Period Ended February 1, 2014 Compared to the 53 Week Period Ended February 2, 2013 -- Hometown

Net Sales

Net sales for 2013 decreased $77.7 million, or 4.1%, to $1.8 billion from 2012. This decrease in sales was driven by a 
3.2% decrease in comparable store sales, $25.8 million in sales in the 53rd week of 2012 and lower initial franchise revenues 
which were $5.5 million in 2013 compared to $11.2 million in 2012 partially offset by sales from new stores (net of closures).  
The 3.2% comparable store sales decrease was primarily driven by lower consumer electronics sales due to the completed exit of 
the category in the majority of Hometown stores, lower sales of lawn and garden due to weather-related late starts to the spring/
summer and fall seasons, and lower tools-category sales.  These decreases were partially offset by higher major appliances sales.  
Excluding consumer electronics, same store sales decreased 1.5%.

Gross Margin

Gross margin was $421.9 million, or 23.3% of sales, in 2013, compared to $455.4 million or 24.1% of sales in 2012.  The 
decrease in gross margin rate was primarily driven by (1) lower margins on merchandise sales, (2) lower initial franchise revenues, 
(3) $4.0 million in warranty expense timing benefit in the third and fourth quarters of 2012, and (4) $3.7 million in benefit in the 
first and second quarters of 2012 from the impact of store closing reserves established in 2011.  These decreases were partially 
offset by lower occupancy costs resulting from the conversion of Company-operated stores to franchisee-operated stores and a 
$1.7 million increase in warranty-estimate reserves in 2012.

Selling and Administrative Expenses

Selling and administrative costs increased to $396.1 million, or 21.9% of sales, in 2013 as compared to $394.3 million, 
or 20.9% of sales, in 2012.  This increase primarily resulted from higher owner commissions related to the conversion of Company-
operated stores to franchisee-operated stores and an estimated $10.0 million of higher operating costs incurred as a result of 
operating as a separate, publicly held company.  These increases were partially offset by a reduction in payroll and benefits related 
to the Company-operated stores conversions and $5.2 million of expense incurred in the 53rd week of 2012.

Operating Income

Operating income decreased to $19.5 million in 2013 compared to $57.4 million in 2012.  The $37.9 million decrease is 
primarily due to the lower sales, lower gross margin rate, and higher selling and administrative expenses as noted above, and 
includes the impact of an estimated $1.3 million earned during the 53rd week of 2012.

53 Week Period Ended February 2, 2013 Compared to the 52 Week Period Ended January 28, 2012 -- Hometown

Net Sales
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Net sales for 2012 increased $50.5 million, or 2.7%, to $1.9 billion from 2011.  This increase in sales was primarily driven 
by the impact of the 53rd week, a 1.0% increase in comparable store sales and higher delivery revenues partially offset by the 
impact of store closings (net of new stores).  The 1.0% comparable store sales increase was due to higher sales of home appliances 
resulting from pricing, promotion, and margin optimization strategies and improved assortments.  Partially offsetting these increases 
were declines in lawn and garden sales due to drought conditions experienced in large portions of the U.S. and in consumer 
electronics resulting from our strategy to exit the category in the majority of Hometown stores.  The higher delivery revenues were 
due to a promotional strategy change that relied less on free-delivery offers.

Gross Margin

Gross margin was $455.4 million, or 24.1% of sales, in 2012, compared to $375.2 million or 20.4% of sales in 2011.  The 
370 basis point increase in gross margin primarily resulted from (1) a $27.4 million reduction in occupancy costs due to franchising 
additional Company-operated stores, (2) $12.1 million of store-closing reserve charges in 2011, (3) an $11.1 million increase in 
delivery margins, (4) a 61 basis-point impact from higher merchandise margins resulting from a higher proportion of home appliance 
sales and higher margins in the lawn and garden and tools categories, and (5) a $3.5 million increase in online commissions for 
sales fulfilled through Sears.com.  The increase in gross margin also reflects approximately $4.0 million in warranty expense 
timing benefit in 2012 and $3.7 million in benefit in 2012 from the impact of store closing reserves established in 2011.  These 
favorable impacts were partially offset by $5.7 million of warranty reserve estimate changes (which resulted from a $4.0 million 
reduction in reserves in 2011 and a $1.7 million increase in reserves in 2012) and a $2.8 million impact of consumer electronics 
clearance activity in 2012 as a result of the decision to exit the category in the majority of Hometown stores.

Selling and Administrative Expenses

Selling and administrative costs increased to $394.3 million, or 20.9% of sales, in 2012 as compared to $356.4 million, 
or 19.4% of sales, in 2011.  This increase primarily resulted from higher owner commissions related to the conversion of Company-
operated stores to franchisee-operated stores, additional selling and administrative expense from the 53rd week in 2012, an estimated 
$2.5 million in higher costs from operating as a separate, publicly held company since the Separation, and increased marketing 
investments.  These increases were partially offset by a decrease in payroll and benefits that also resulted from the franchise 
conversions.  Additional offsets to the increase include $0.8 million in store closing and severance costs in 2012 compared to $3.8 
million in 2011.

Operating Income

Operating income increased to $57.4 million in 2012 compared to $14.7 million in 2011.  The $42.7 million increase is 
primarily due to the higher sales and higher gross margin rate partially offset by higher selling and administrative expenses as 
noted above.
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Outlet

Outlet results and key statistics were as follows:
 

  Fiscal

thousands, except for number of stores 2013 2012 2011

Net sales $ 610,043 $ 564,343 $ 505,402
Comparable store sales % 1.2% (0.8)% 8.7%
Cost of sales and occupancy 453,791 406,327 356,880
Gross margin 156,252 158,016 148,522
Margin rate 25.6% 28.0 % 29.4%
Selling and administrative 110,557 110,065 102,284
Selling and administrative expense as a percentage of net sales 18.1% 19.5 % 20.2%
Depreciation 5,685 5,816 5,691
Gain on the sale of assets (1,567) — —

Total costs and expenses 568,466 522,208 464,855
Operating income $ 41,577 $ 42,135 $ 40,547
Total Sears Outlet stores 143 127 116

52 Week Period Ended February 1, 2014 Compared to the 53 Week Period Ended February 2, 2013 -- Outlet

Net Sales

Net sales for 2013 increased $45.7 million, or 8.1%, to $610.0 million from 2012. This increase in sales was driven by 
sales from new stores (net of closures), higher initial franchise revenues (which were $20.1 million in 2013 compared to zero in 
2012), and an increase in comparable store sales of 1.2%.  These increases were partially offset by $10.7 million in sales in the 
53rd week of 2012 and lower liquidation revenues on primarily excess apparel inventory (end-of-season markout merchandise) 
received from Sears Holdings.  The 1.2% comparable store sales increase was primarily driven by (1) higher major appliances 
sales, (2) higher sales in the furniture category, which was introduced in the second quarter of 2013 and was expanded into the 
majority of Outlet stores in the third quarter of 2013, (3) increases in lawn and garden driven by tractors and mowers, and (4) 
higher sales in mattresses due to category expansion.  Partially offsetting these increases were lower sales in apparel and tools due 
to narrower assortments and insufficient inventory.

Gross Margin

Gross margin was $156.3 million, or 25.6% of sales, in 2013 compared to $158.0 million, or 28.0% of sales, in 2012.  
The decrease in gross margin rate was primarily driven by (1) lower margins on merchandise sales, (2) $14.4 million of distribution 
center costs that were separated from selling store costs and were reflected in selling and administrative expense in 2012 and are 
now reflected in gross margin, (3) lower apparel liquidation income, and (4) $2.2 million of additional occupancy and other costs 
incurred as a result of the Separation.  These decreases were partially offset by (1) $20.1 million from higher initial franchise 
revenues, (2) lower occupancy costs (excluding the additional $2.2 million of occupancy and other costs) resulting from the 
conversion of Company-operated stores to franchisee-operated stores, (3) a $0.4 million increase in warranty estimate reserves in 
2012 and (4) $0.2 million in unfavorable warranty expense timing in 2012.

Selling and Administrative Expenses

Selling and administrative costs increased to $110.6 million, or 18.1% of sales, in 2013 compared to $110.1 million, or 
19.5% of sales, in 2012.  This decrease in selling and administrative expenses as a percent of sales primarily resulted from $14.4 
million in Outlet distribution-center costs that were separated from selling-store costs and were reflected in selling and 
administrative expense in 2012, a lower payroll rate related to the conversion of Company-operated stores to franchisee-operated 
stores, and $2.1 million of expense incurred during the 53rd week of 2012.   These decreases were partially offset by an estimated 
$4.9 million in higher operating costs incurred as a result of operating as a separate, publicly held company and higher commissions 
related to franchise conversions.
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Operating Income

Operating income decreased to $41.6 million in 2013 compared to $42.1 million in 2012.  The $0.5 million decrease is 
primarily due to the lower sales and a lower gross margin rate partially offset by a lower selling and administrative expense rate 
as noted above, and includes the impact of an estimated $1.8 million earned during the 53rd week of 2012.

53 Week Period Ended February 2, 2013 Compared to the 52 Week Period Ended January 28, 2012 -- Outlet

Net Sales

Net sales for 2012 increased $58.9 million, or 11.7% to $564.3 million from 2011.  This increase in sales was primarily 
driven by new stores, the impact of the 53rd week in 2012, higher liquidation income on primarily excess apparel inventory (end-
of-season markout merchandise) received from Sears Holdings, and higher delivery revenues partially offset by a 0.8% decrease 
in comparable store sales.  The comparable sales decrease was driven by declines in home appliances due to the level and mix of 
inventory, lawn and garden due to drought conditions experienced in large portions of the U.S., and  consumer electronics resulting 
from our strategy to de-emphasize the category.  These declines were partially offset by assortment expansion in tools and mattresses, 
sales increases in stores that carry apparel; an increase in the number of stores that carry apparel contributed to comparable store 
sales increases in these categories.  We opened 14 new Outlet stores in 2012 which resulted in an increase of approximately $34.1 
million in net sales, excluding the impact of the 53rd week.

Gross Margin

Gross margin was $158.0 million, or 28.0% of sales, in 2012 compared to $148.5 million, or 29.4% of sales, in 2011.  
The 140 basis point decrease in gross margin rate was primarily driven by a 152 basis point impact from a decline in merchandise 
margin rates (which was due primarily to a reduced supply of higher margin, "as-is" home appliances), partially offset by a shift 
in the balance of sales into higher-margin categories such as mattresses and apparel.  Gross margin was also unfavorably impacted 
by (1) $1.5 million of warranty-reserve estimate changes (due to a $1.1 million reduction in reserves in 2011 and a $0.4 million 
increase in reserves in 2012), (2) $1.4 million of additional occupancy and other costs as a result of operating as a separate, publicly 
held company since the Separation, and (3) approximately $0.2 million unfavorable impact of warranty expense timing in 2012,  
offset by a $2.1 million increase in liquidation income.

Selling and Administrative Expenses

Selling and administrative costs increased to $110.1 million, or 19.5% of sales, in 2012 compared to $102.3 million, or 
20.2% of sales, in 2011.  This increase primarily resulted from additional investments in marketing, additional selling and 
administrative expenses associated with the 53rd week, higher payroll and benefits, and an estimated $1.1 million in higher costs 
due to operating as a separate, publicly held company since the Separation.

Operating Income

 Operating income increased to $42.1 million in 2012 compared to $40.5 million in 2011.  The $1.6 million increase is 
primarily due to the higher sales partially offset by a lower gross margin rate and higher selling and administrative expenses as 
noted above.  

Analysis of Financial Condition

Cash Balances

We had cash and cash equivalents of $23.5 million as of February 1, 2014, and $20.1 million as of February 2, 2013.

During 2013 we financed our operations and investments with borrowings under our Senior ABL Facility.  Our primary 
liquidity needs are for funding inventory purchases, capital expenditures, and general corporate purposes.

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Cash used in operating activities in 2013 was $54.4 million compared to $121.6 million generated in 2012. The decrease 
in operating cash flows compared to 2012 was due predominately to a decrease in the payable to Sears Holdings and other accounts 
payable, lower net income, lower accrued expenses, increased investments in inventory, and higher accounts receivables, partially 
offset by favorability in deferred income taxes.
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Total merchandise inventories were $482.1 million at February 1, 2014 and $428.4 million at February 2, 2013.  
Merchandise inventories increased primarily due to higher inventory in home appliances.  The largest increase was in Outlet, 
where home appliance inventory increased primarily due to (1) higher out-of-box inventory resulting from sourcing initiatives, 
(2) higher in-box inventory, and (3) an increased store count due to new store openings.  In Hometown, home appliance inventories 
increased primarily due to merchandise resets and cost increases.  In addition, due to category expansion, furniture inventory 
increased in Outlet and tools inventory increased in Hometown.  These increases were partially offset by reduced consumer 
electronics inventory due to our exit of this category in most Hometown stores and reduced Hometown lawn and garden inventory 
due to a sell-down of mower inventory and high demand for snowthrowers.

We obtain our merchandise through agreements with Sears Holdings or through vendors. For  2013, merchandise acquired 
from subsidiaries of Sears Holdings (including Kenmore, Craftsman, DieHard, and other products) accounted for approximately 
84% of total purchases of all inventory from all vendors. The loss of or a material reduction in the amount of merchandise made 
available to us by Sears Holdings could have a material adverse effect on our business and results of operations.

In addition, our merchandise-vendor arrangements generally are not long-term agreements (except the Merchandising 
Agreement) and none of them guarantees the availability of merchandise inventory in the future. Our growth strategy depends to 
a significant extent on the willingness and ability of our vendors to supply us with sufficient merchandise inventory. As a result, 
our success depends on maintaining good relations with our existing vendors and on developing relationships with new vendors, 
especially with respect to merchandise inventory to be sold by Outlet. If we fail to maintain our relations with our existing vendors 
or to maintain the quality of merchandise inventory they supply us, or if we cannot maintain or acquire new vendors of favored 
brand-name merchandise inventory, and if we cannot acquire new vendors of merchandise inventory to be sold by Outlet, our 
ability to obtain a sufficient amount and variety of merchandise at acceptable prices may be limited, which would have a negative 
impact on our competitive position. In addition, merchandise inventory acquired from alternative sources, if any, may be of a 
lesser quality and more expensive than the merchandise inventory that we currently purchase.

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Cash used in investing activities was $8.1 million in both 2013 and 2012.  Cash used in investing activities in both periods 
was for purchases of property and equipment partially offset by $2.6 million in proceeds from sales of property and investments 
in 2013.

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

Cash provided by financing activities was $65.8 million for 2013 compared to cash used of $94.1 million for 2012. The 
increase of $159.9 million in cash provided by financing activities in 2013 from 2012 was primarily due to a $100 million cash 
dividend paid to Sears Holdings at the time of the Separation, $12.3 million in other transfers to SHC in 2012, a $59.1 million 
increase in net borrowings under our Senior ABL Facility in 2013 compared to 2012, and $12.5 million in share repurchases in 
2013.

Financing Arrangements

Under the Senior ABL Facility the Company initially borrowed $100 million which was used to pay a cash dividend to 
Sears Holdings prior to the Separation.  As of February 1, 2014 we had $99.1 million outstanding under the Senior ABL Facility, 
which approximated the fair value of these borrowings.  The Senior ABL Facility provides (subject to availability under a borrowing 
base) for maximum borrowings up to the aggregate commitments of all of the lenders, which as of February 1, 2014 totaled $250 
million. Up to $75 million of the Senior ABL Facility is available for the issuance of letters of credit and up to $25 million is 
available for swingline loans.  The Senior ABL Facility permits us to request commitment increases in an aggregate principal 
amount of up to $100 million.  Availability under the Senior ABL Facility as of February 1, 2014 was $145.3 million, with $5.6 
million of letters of credit outstanding under the facility.

The principal terms of the Senior ABL Facility are summarized below.

Senior ABL Facility

Maturity; Amortization and Prepayments

The Senior ABL Facility will mature on the earlier of (i) October 11, 2017 or (ii) six months prior to the expiration of 
the Merchandising Agreement and the other agreements with Sears Holdings or its subsidiaries in connection with the Separation 
that are specified in the Senior ABL Facility, unless such agreements have been extended to a date later than October 11, 2017 or 
terminated on a basis reasonably satisfactory to the administrative agent under the Senior ABL Facility.
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The Senior ABL Facility is subject to mandatory prepayment in amounts equal to the amount by which the outstanding 
extensions of credit exceed the lesser of the borrowing base and the commitments then in effect.

Guarantees; Security

The obligations under the Senior ABL Facility are guaranteed by us and each of our existing and future direct and indirect 
wholly owned domestic subsidiaries (subject to certain exceptions). The Senior ABL Facility and the guarantees thereunder are 
secured by a first priority security interest in certain assets of the borrowers and guarantors consisting primarily of accounts 
receivable, inventory, cash, cash equivalents, deposit accounts and securities accounts, as well as certain other assets (other than 
intellectual property) ancillary to the foregoing and all proceeds of all of the foregoing, including cash proceeds and the proceeds 
of applicable insurance.

Interest; Fees

The interest rates per annum applicable to the loans under the Senior ABL Facility are based on a fluctuating rate of 
interest measured by reference to, at our election, either (1) an adjusted London inter-bank offered rate (LIBOR) plus a borrowing 
margin or (2) an alternate base rate plus a borrowing margin, with the borrowing margin subject to adjustment based on the average 
excess availability under the Senior ABL Facility for the preceding fiscal quarter. The interest rate was approximately 4.25% at 
February 1, 2014.

Customary fees are payable in respect of the Senior ABL Facility, including letter of credit fees and commitment fees.

Covenants

The Senior ABL Facility includes a number of covenants that, among other things, limit or restrict our ability to, subject 
to specified exceptions, incur additional indebtedness (including guarantees), grant liens, make investments, make prepayments 
on other indebtedness, engage in mergers, or change the nature of our business.

The Senior ABL Facility limits SHO's ability to declare and pay cash dividends and repurchase its common stock.  SHO 
may declare and pay cash dividends to its stockholders and may repurchase stock if the following conditions are satisfied: either 
(a) (i) no specified default then exists or would arise as a result of the declaration or payment of the cash dividend or as a result 
of the stock repurchase, (ii) SHO and its subsidiaries that are also borrowers have demonstrated to the reasonable satisfaction of 
the agent for the lenders that monthly availability (as determined in accordance with the Senior ABL Facility), immediately 
following the declaration and payment of the cash dividend or the stock repurchase and as projected on a pro forma basis for the 
twelve months following and after giving effect to the declaration and payment of the cash dividend or the stock repurchase, would 
be at least equal to the greater of (x) 25% of the Loan Cap (which is the lesser of (A) the aggregate commitments of the lenders 
and (B) the borrowing base) and (y) $50,000,000, and (iii) after giving pro forma effect to the declaration and payment of the cash 
dividend or the stock repurchase as if it constituted a specified debt service charge, the specified consolidated fixed charge coverage 
ratio, as calculated on a trailing twelve months basis, would be equal to or greater than 1.1:1.0, or (b) (i) no specified default then 
exists or would arise as a result of the declaration or payment of the cash dividend or the stock repurchase, (ii) payment of the 
cash dividend or the stock repurchase is not made with the proceeds of any credit extension under the Senior ABL Facility, (iii) 
during the 120-day period prior to declaration and payment of the cash dividend or the stock repurchase, no credit extension was 
outstanding under the Senior ABL Facility, and (iv) SHO demonstrates to the reasonable satisfaction of the agent for the lenders 
that, on a pro forma and projected basis, no credit extensions would be outstanding under the Senior ABL Facility for the 120-day 
period following the declaration and payment of the cash dividend or the stock repurchase.  No default or event of default presently 
exists.

The Senior ABL Facility also contains certain affirmative covenants, including financial and other reporting requirements.

Events of Default

The Senior ABL Facility includes customary events of default including non-payment of principal, interest or fees, 
violation of covenants, inaccuracy of representations or warranties, cross default to certain other material indebtedness, bankruptcy 
and insolvency events, invalidity or impairment of guarantees or security interests, material judgments, and change of control.

Uses and Sources of Liquidity

We believe that our existing cash and cash equivalents, cash flows from our operating activities, and, to the extent necessary, 
availability under the Senior ABL Facility will be sufficient to meet our anticipated liquidity needs for at least the next 12 months. 
As a result, we expect to fund our ongoing operations through existing cash and cash equivalents, cash generated by operating 
activities, and with funds available under the Senior ABL Facility.  The adequacy of our available funds will depend on many 
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factors, including the macroeconomic environment and the operating performance of our stores.  As of February 1, 2014, we had 
cash and cash equivalents of $23.5 million.

Capital lease obligations as of February 1, 2014 and February 2, 2013 were $0.8 million and $2.2 million, respectively.

Contractual Obligations and Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

Information concerning our obligations and commitments to make future payments under contract such as debt and lease 
agreements and under contingent commitments as of February 1, 2014 is as aggregated in the following table:

thousands Total
Within
1 Year

1-3
Years

4-5
Years

After 5
Years

Short-term borrowings $ 99,100 $ 99,100 $ — $ — $ —
Capital leases 757 662 95 — —
Operating leases 239,523 60,321 98,752 54,504 25,946
Total Contractual Obligations $ 339,380 $ 160,083 $ 98,847 $ 54,504 $ 25,946
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Application of Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

In preparing the financial statements, certain accounting policies require considerable judgment to select the appropriate 
assumptions to calculate financial estimates. These estimates are complex and subject to an inherent degree of uncertainty. We 
base our estimates on historical experience, terms of existing contracts, evaluation of trends and other assumptions that we believe 
to be reasonable under the circumstances. We continually evaluate the information used to make these estimates as our business 
and the economic environment change. Although the use of estimates is pervasive throughout the financial statements, we consider 
an accounting estimate to be critical if:

• it requires assumptions to be made about matters that were highly uncertain at the time the estimate was made, and

• changes in the estimate that are reasonably likely to occur from period to period or different estimates that could have been 
selected would have a material effect on our financial condition, cash flows or results of operations.

We believe that the current assumptions and other considerations used to estimate amounts reflected in the financial 
statements are appropriate. However, if actual experience differs from the assumptions and the considerations used in estimating 
amounts, the resulting changes could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations, and in certain situations, could 
have a material adverse effect on our financial condition.

The following is a summary of our most critical policies and estimates. See Note 1 of the Notes to the Consolidated 
Financial Statements for a listing of our other significant accounting policies.

Valuation of Inventory

Our inventory is valued at the lower of cost or market determined primarily using the retail inventory method, or “RIM.” 
RIM is an averaging method that is commonly used in the retail industry. To determine inventory cost under RIM, inventory at 
its retail selling value is segregated into groupings of merchandise having similar characteristics, which are then converted to a 
cost basis by applying specific average cost factors for each grouping of merchandise. Cost factors represent the average cost-to-
retail ratio for each merchandise group based upon the year’s purchasing activity for each store location. Accordingly, a significant 
assumption under the retail method is that inventory in each group is similar in terms of its cost-to-retail relationship and has 
similar turnover rates. We monitor the content of merchandise in these groupings to prevent distortions that would have a material 
effect on inventory valuation.

RIM inherently requires management judgment and certain estimates that may significantly affect the ending inventory 
valuation, as well as gross margin. The methodologies utilized by SHO in its application of RIM are consistent for all periods 
presented. Such methodologies include the development of the cost-to-retail ratios, the groupings of homogeneous classes of 
merchandise, the development of shrinkage and obsolescence reserves, and the accounting for retail price changes. We believe 
that SHO’s RIM provides an inventory valuation that reasonably approximates cost. Among others, two significant estimates used 
in inventory valuation are the level and timing of permanent markdowns (clearance markdowns used to clear unproductive or 
slow-moving inventory) and shrinkage. Amounts are charged to cost of sales at the time the retail value of inventory is reduced 
through the use of permanent markdowns.

Factors considered in the determination of permanent markdowns include current and anticipated demand, customer 
preferences, age of the merchandise, fashion and design trends and weather conditions. In addition, inventory is also evaluated 
against corporate pre-determined historical markdown cadences. When a decision is made to permanently markdown merchandise, 
the resulting gross margin reduction is recognized in the period the markdown is recorded. The timing of the decision, particularly 
surrounding the balance sheet date, can have a significant effect on the results of operations.

Income Taxes

Our deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between 
the financial reporting and tax bases of recorded assets and liabilities. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted 
tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or 
settled. If future utilization of deferred tax assets is uncertain, we may record a valuation allowance against certain deferred tax 
assets. In evaluating our ability to recover our deferred tax assets within the jurisdiction from which they arise, we consider all 
available positive and negative evidence, including scheduled reversals of deferred tax liabilities, projected future taxable income, 
tax planning strategies, and results of recent operations. In projecting future taxable income, we begin with historical results and 
incorporate assumptions including the amount of future state, federal and foreign pre-tax operating income, the reversal of temporary 



46

differences, and the implementation of feasible and prudent tax planning strategies. These assumptions require significant judgment 
about the forecasts of future taxable income.

We account for uncertainties in income taxes according to accounting standards for uncertain tax positions. We are present 
in a large number of taxable jurisdictions, and at any point in time, can have audits underway at various stages of completion in 
any of these jurisdictions. We evaluate our tax positions and establish liabilities for uncertain tax positions that may be challenged 
by local authorities and may not be fully sustained, despite the belief that the underlying tax positions are fully supportable. 
Unrecognized tax benefits are reviewed on an ongoing basis and are adjusted in light of changing facts and circumstances, including 
progress of tax audits, developments in case law, and closing of statute of limitations. Such adjustments are reflected in the tax 
provision as appropriate. Pursuant to a Tax Sharing Agreement between the Company and Sears Holdings, which governs the 
rights and obligations of the parties with respect to pre-Separation and post-Separation tax matters (the "Tax Sharing Agreement"), 
Sears Holdings is responsible for any unrecognized tax benefits through the date of the Separation.

Significant management judgment is required in determining our provision for income taxes, deferred tax assets and 
liabilities and the valuation allowance recorded against our net deferred tax assets, if any. As further described above, we consider 
estimates of the amount and character of future taxable income in assessing the likelihood of realization of deferred tax assets. 
Our actual effective tax rate and income tax expense could vary from estimated amounts due to the future impacts of various items, 
including changes in income tax laws, tax planning and our forecasted financial condition and results of operations in future 
periods. Although we believe current estimates are reasonable, actual results could differ from these estimates.

In accordance with the Tax Sharing Agreement, Sears Holdings is responsible for any federal, state or foreign income 
tax liability relating to tax periods ending on or before the Separation.

Goodwill Impairment Assessment

We had a goodwill balance of $167 million as of February 1, 2014 and February 2, 2013. We evaluate the carrying value 
of goodwill for possible impairment under accounting standards governing goodwill and other intangible assets.  As required by 
accounting standards, we perform annual goodwill impairment tests in the fourth quarter and update the tests between annual tests 
if events or circumstances occur that would more likely than not reduce the fair value of a reporting unit below its carrying amount.

A significant amount of judgment is involved in determining if an indicator of impairment has occurred. Such indicators 
may include, among others: a significant decline in our expected future cash flows; a significant adverse change in legal factors 
or in the business climate; unanticipated competition; and the testing for recoverability of a significant asset group within a reporting 
unit. Following the Separation, our goodwill impairment analysis also includes a comparison of the aggregate estimated fair value 
of all reporting units to our total market capitalization. Therefore, following the Separation, our stock may trade below our book 
value and a significant and sustained decline in our stock price and market capitalization could result in goodwill impairment 
charges.  Any adverse change in these factors could have a significant impact on the recoverability of these assets and could have 
a material impact on our Consolidated Financial Statements.

Our goodwill resides in the Hometown Reporting Unit within our Hometown business segment.  The goodwill impairment 
test involves a two-step process.  The first step is a comparison of our reporting unit’s fair value to its carrying value. We estimate 
fair value using the best information available, using both a market participant approach, as well as a discounted cash flow model, 
commonly referred to as the income approach.  The market participant approach determines the value of a reporting unit by deriving 
market multiples for reporting units based on assumptions that potential market participants would use in establishing a bid price 
for the unit and applies the selected market multiples to the reporting unit's projection of EBITDA.  This approach therefore 
assumes strategic initiatives will result in improvements in operational performance in the event of purchase, and includes the 
application of a discount rate based on market participant assumptions with respect to capital structure and access to capital markets.  
The income approach uses a reporting unit’s projection of estimated operating results and cash flows that is discounted using a 
weighted-average cost of capital that reflects current market conditions appropriate to our reporting unit.  The projection uses our 
best estimates of economic and market conditions over the projected period, including growth rates in sales and costs and our best 
estimates of future expected changes in operating margins and cash expenditures. Other significant estimates used in the income 
approach and assumptions include terminal value growth rates, future estimates of capital expenditures, and changes in future 
working capital requirements.  Our final estimate of fair value of our reporting unit is developed by equally weighting the fair 
values determined through both the market participant and income approaches, where comparable market participant information 
is available.

If the carrying value of the reporting unit is higher than its fair value, there is an indication that impairment may exist 
and the second step must be performed to measure the amount of impairment loss.  The amount of impairment is determined by 
comparing the implied fair value of reporting unit goodwill to the carrying value of the goodwill in the same manner as if the 
reporting unit was being acquired in a business combination. Specifically, we allocate the fair value to all of the assets and liabilities 
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of the reporting unit, including any unrecognized intangible assets, in a hypothetical analysis that would calculate the implied fair 
value of goodwill.  If the implied fair value of goodwill is less than the recorded goodwill, we record an impairment charge for 
the difference.

We did not record any goodwill impairment charges in 2013, 2012, or 2011.

At the 2013 annual impairment test date, the fair value of our Hometown Reporting Unit exceeded its carrying value by 
9.2%.  This is a decrease from the step one test that was performed in 2012, which passed by 19.4%.  The use of different assumptions, 
estimates or judgments in either step of the goodwill impairment testing process, such as the estimated future cash flows of our 
Hometown Reporting Unit, the rate used to discount such cash flows, or the estimated fair value of the reporting units' tangible 
and intangible assets and liabilities, could significantly increase or decrease the estimated fair value of our Hometown Reporting 
Unit or its net assets, and therefore, impact the related estimate of fair value and potential impairment charge.  The projected 
operating results and cash flows included in our step one test for 2013 assume improvement from our actual 2013 operating results. 
Sales growth is expected from new store openings and to a lesser extent improvement in comparable store sales, along with expected 
improvement in our gross margin and operating margin rates.  In addition, the market price of our common stock experienced 
significant fluctuations during 2013.  Our market capitalization significantly exceeded our total book value for most of 2013 and 
as of our annual impairment test date.  However, our market capitalization dropped below book value by as much as 20% during 
the fourth quarter of 2013 and into early 2014.  We do not view this subsequent drop in market capitalization to be significantly 
below book value and believe an assumed control premium (the valuation methodology assumes a premium to current market 
price for control of the company, such as might result in connection with an acquisition) would offset these declines.  If our common 
stock continues to trade below our book value, a significant and sustained decline in our common stock price and market 
capitalization could result in a goodwill impairment charge.

Due to the narrow margin of passing the step one impairment test in 2013, the recorded goodwill balance could be at risk 
of full or partial impairment during 2014 if we do not achieve our projected operating results and/or there is an increase to the rate 
used to discount our estimated cash flows or if we experience a continued and sustained decline in our common stock price and 
market capitalization.  An impairment charge may also be recognized in future periods to the extent changes in factors or 
circumstances occur, including deterioration in the macroeconomic environment, retail industry or in the equity markets, which 
includes the market value of our common shares, deterioration in our performance or our future projections, or changes in our 
plans for Hometown.
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CAUTIONARY STATEMENT REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING INFORMATION

Certain statements made in this Annual Report on Form 10-K contain forward-looking statements.  Forward-looking 
statements are subject to risks and uncertainties that may cause our actual results, performance, or achievements to be materially 
different from any future results, performance, or achievements expressed or implied by these forward-looking statements. Forward-
looking statements include without limitation information concerning our future financial performance, business strategy, plans, 
goals, and objectives.

Statements preceded or followed by, or that otherwise include, the words  "believes,” “expects,” “anticipates,” “intends,” 
“project,” “estimates,” “plans,” “forecast,” “is likely to,” and similar expressions or future or conditional verbs such as “will,” 
“may,” “would,” “should,” and “could” are generally forward-looking in nature and not historical facts. Such statements are based 
upon the current beliefs and expectations of our management and are subject to significant risks and uncertainties. Actual results 
may differ materially from those set forth in the forward-looking statements.

The following factors, among others, could cause our actual results, performance, and achievements to differ from those 
described in the forward-looking statements: our continued reliance on Sears Holdings for most products and services that are 
important to the successful operation of our business; our potential need to depend on Sears Holdings beyond the expiration or 
earlier termination by Sears Holdings of certain of our agreements with Sears Holdings; the possible material adverse effects on 
us if Sears Holdings’ financial condition were perceived to significantly deteriorate, including if as a consequence Sears Holdings 
were to choose to seek the protection of the U.S. bankruptcy laws; the willingness and ability of Sears Holdings to meet its 
contractual obligations to us; our ability to offer merchandise and services that our customers want, including those under the 
Kenmore, Craftsman, and DieHard brands; the sale by Sears Holdings and its subsidiaries to other retailers that compete with us 
of major home appliances and other products branded with the Kenmore, Craftsman, or DieHard brands; our ability to successfully 
manage our inventory levels and implement initiatives to improve inventory management and other capabilities; competitive 
conditions in the retail industry; worldwide economic conditions and business uncertainty, the availability of consumer and 
commercial credit, changes in consumer confidence, tastes, preferences and spending, and changes in vendor relationships; the 
fact that our past performance generally, as reflected on our historical financial statements, may not be indicative of our future 
performance as a result of, among other things, the consolidation of Hometown and Outlet into a single business entity, the 
Separation, operating as a standalone business entity, and the impact of increased costs due to a decrease in our purchasing power 
following the Separation and other losses of benefits associated with being wholly owned by Sears Holdings and its subsidiaries 
prior to the Separation; our agreements related to the Separation and our continuing relationship with Sears Holdings were negotiated 
while we were a subsidiary of Sears Holdings and we may have received different terms from unaffiliated third parties (including 
with respect to merchandise-vendor and service-provider indemnification and defense for negligence claims and claims arising 
out of failure to comply with contractual obligations); our reliance on Sears Holdings to provide computer systems to process 
transactions with our customers (including the point-of-sale system for the stores we operate and the stores that our independent 
dealers and franchisees operate, which point-of-sale system captures, among other things, credit-card information supplied by our 
customers) and others, quantify our results of operations, and manage our business ("SHO's SHC-Supplied Systems"); SHO's 
SHC-Supplied Systems may be subject to disruptions and data/security breaches for which Sears Holdings may be unwilling or 
unable to indemnify and defend us against third-party claims and other losses resulting from such disruptions and data/security 
breaches, which could have one or more material adverse effects on SHO; limitations and restrictions in the Senior ABL Facility 
and related agreements governing our indebtedness and our ability to service our indebtedness; our ability to obtain additional 
financing on acceptable terms; our dependence on independent dealers and independent franchisees to operate their stores profitably 
and in a manner consistent with our concepts and standards; our dependence on sources outside the U.S. for significant amounts 
of our merchandise inventories; impairment charges for goodwill or fixed-asset impairment for long-lived assets; our ability to 
attract, motivate and retain key executives and other employees; the impact of increased costs associated with being a public 
company; our ability to maintain effective internal controls as a public company; our ability to realize the benefits that we expect 
to achieve from the Separation; low trading volume of our common stock due to limited liquidity or a lack of analyst coverage; 
and the impact on our common stock and our overall performance as a result of our principal stockholders' ability to exert control 
over us.

The foregoing factors should not be understood as exhaustive and should be read in conjunction with the other cautionary 
statements, including the "Risk Factors," that are included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K and in our other filings with the 
Securities and Exchange Commission and our other public announcements.  While we believe that our forecasts and assumptions 
are reasonable, we caution that actual results may differ materially.  If one or more of these or other risks or uncertainties materialize, 
or if our underlying assumptions prove to be incorrect, actual results may vary materially from what we projected. Consequently, 
actual events and results may vary significantly from those included in or contemplated or implied by our forward-looking 
statements.  The forward-looking statements included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K are made only as of the date of this 
Annual Report on Form 10-K, and we undertake no obligation to publicly update or review any forward-looking statement made 
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by us or on our behalf, whether as a result of new information, future developments, subsequent events or circumstances, or 
otherwise, except as required by law.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

We are subject to interest rate risk associated with our Senior ABL Facility, which bears interest at a variable rate. Assuming 
our Senior ABL Facility were fully drawn in principal amount equal to $250 million, each one percentage point change in interest 
rates would result in a $2.5 million change in annual cash interest expense on our Senior ABL Facility.
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SEARS HOMETOWN AND OUTLET STORES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME 

 

  Fiscal Year Ended

thousands, except per share amounts February 1, 2014 February 2, 2013 January 28, 2012

NET SALES $ 2,421,562 $ 2,453,606 $ 2,344,199
COSTS AND EXPENSES
Cost of sales and occupancy 1,843,418 1,840,207 1,820,516
Selling and administrative 506,630 504,400 458,635
Depreciation 12,006 9,474 9,774
Gain on the sale of assets (1,567) — —

Total costs and expenses 2,360,487 2,354,081 2,288,925
Operating income 61,075 99,525 55,274
Interest income (expense) (3,046) (899) (913)
Other income 1,854 1,354 422
Income before income taxes 59,883 99,980 54,783
Income tax expense (24,333) (39,900) (21,727)
NET INCOME $ 35,550 $ 60,080 $ 33,056

NET INCOME PER COMMON SHARE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO STOCKHOLDERS

Basic: $ 1.55 $ 2.60 $ 1.43
Diluted: $ 1.55 $ 2.60 $ 1.43

Basic weighted average common shares outstanding 22,984 23,100 23,100
Diluted weighted average common shares outstanding 22,989 23,100 23,100

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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SEARS HOMETOWN AND OUTLET STORES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 

 

thousands
February 1,

2014
February 2,

2013

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents $ 23,475 $ 20,068
Accounts receivable 19,252 10,986
Merchandise inventories 482,107 428,437
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 13,216 14,321

Total current assets 538,050 473,812
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, net 48,973 53,383
GOODWILL 167,000 167,000
LONG-TERM DEFERRED TAXES 52,672 69,001
OTHER ASSETS 40,490 22,607
TOTAL ASSETS $ 847,185 $ 785,803
LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES

Short-term borrowings $ 99,100 $ 20,000
Payable to Sears Holdings Corporation 68,396 79,491
Accounts payable 24,129 31,830
Other current liabilities 60,319 83,211
Current portion of capital lease obligations 662 1,463

Total current liabilities 252,606 215,995
CAPITAL LEASE OBLIGATIONS 95 769
OTHER LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 4,259 2,752
TOTAL LIABILITIES 256,960 219,516
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Note 10)
STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Common stock: $.01 par value; 228 231
Authorized shares: 400,000
Issued shares: 22,753 and 23,100, respectively
Outstanding shares: 22,753 and 23,100, respectively

Capital in excess of par value 547,021 556,575
Retained earnings 42,976 9,481
TOTAL STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 590,225 566,287

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY $ 847,185 $ 785,803

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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SEARS HOMETOWN AND OUTLET STORES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

 

  Fiscal Year Ended

thousands
February 1,

2014
February 2,

2013
January 28,

2012

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income $ 35,550 $ 60,080 $ 33,056
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating
activities:

Depreciation 12,006 9,474 9,774
Share based compensation 911 — —
Gain on the sale of assets (1,567) — —
Change in operating assets and liabilities:

Accounts receivable (26,823) (10,301) (11,042)
Merchandise inventories (53,670) (34,779) 947
Payable to Sears Holdings Corporation (11,095) 79,491 —
Accounts payable (7,701) 14,674 623
Store closing accruals — (2,201) 2,201
Customer deposits 633 3,046 4,903
Deferred income taxes 18,614 (1,641) 904
Other operating assets 1,525 (2,602) (1,654)
Other operating liabilities (22,751) 6,343 (1,247)

Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities (54,368) 121,584 38,465
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from sales of property and investments 2,641 — —
Purchases of property and equipment (10,704) (8,110) (9,991)

Net cash used in investing activities (8,063) (8,110) (9,991)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Transfers to Sears Holdings Corporation — (12,264) (26,533)
Dividend paid to Sears Holdings Corporation — (100,000) —
Common stock repurchased and retired (12,523) — —
Payments of capital lease obligations (739) (1,836) (2,061)
Net short-term borrowings 79,100 20,000 —

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 65,838 (94,100) (28,594)
NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 3,407 19,374 (120)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS—Beginning of period 20,068 694 814
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS—End of period $ 23,475 $ 20,068 $ 694
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW
INFORMATION

Cash paid for interest $ 3,226 $ 899 $ 913
Cash paid for income taxes $ 21,022 $ — $ —

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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SEARS HOMETOWN AND OUTLET STORES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 

 

thousands

Number of
Shares of
Common

Stock
Common

Stock

Capital in
Excess of
Par Value

Retained
Earnings

Divisional
Equity prior to
the Separation

Total
Stockholders'

Equity

Balance at January 29, 2011 — $ — $ — $ — $ 531,583 $ 531,583

Net income — — — — 33,056 33,056
Net transfer to Sears Holdings Corporation — — — — (26,533) (26,533)

Balance at January 28, 2012 — — — — 538,106 538,106

Net income — — — 9,481 50,599 60,080
Net transfer to Sears Holdings Corporation — — — — (12,264) (12,264)

Dividend paid to Sears Holdings
Corporation — — — — (100,000) (100,000)

Reclassification of divisional equity to
common stock and additional paid in capital
in conjunction with the Separation 23,100 231 476,210 — (476,441) —
Tax adjustment related to the Separation — — 80,365 — — 80,365

Balance at  February 2, 2013 23,100 231 556,575 9,481 — 566,287

Net income — — — 35,550 — 35,550
Share-based compensation 87 1 910 — — 911
Common stock repurchased and retired (434) (4) (10,464) (2,055) — (12,523)

Balance at February 1, 2014 22,753 $ 228 $ 547,021 $ 42,976 $ — $ 590,225

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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NOTE 1—BACKGROUND, BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Background

Sears Hometown and Outlet Stores, Inc. is a national retailer primarily focused on selling home appliances, hardware, 
tools and lawn and garden equipment. As of February 1, 2014, the Company and its dealers and franchisees operated 1,260 stores 
across all 50 states and in Puerto Rico and Bermuda.  In these notes the terms “we,” “us,” “our,” “SHO,” and the “Company” refer 
to Sears Hometown and Outlet Stores, Inc. and its subsidiaries.

Description of the Separation

On October 11, 2012, Sears Holdings Corporation (“Sears Holdings”) completed the separation of its Sears Hometown 
and Hardware and Sears Outlet businesses (the “Separation”). As part of the Separation, on August 31, 2012 through a series of 
intercompany transactions Sears Holdings and several of its subsidiaries transferred the assets and liabilities comprising the Sears 
Hometown and Hardware and Sears Outlet businesses to SHO, which was formed on April 23, 2012 as a wholly owned subsidiary 
of Sears Holdings.  Effective upon the Separation, Sears Holdings ceased to own shares of our common stock, and thereafter our 
common stock began trading on the NASDAQ Stock Market under the trading symbol “SHOS.”

As part of the Separation, Sears Holdings contributed to SHO equity intercompany balances due to/from Sears Holdings, 
which included amounts arising from pre-Separation purchases of merchandise inventories and which are included in Divisional 
Equity.  After the Separation, the Company continues to purchase most of its merchandise from Sears Holdings and amounts 
payable to Sears Holdings are reflected separately on the consolidated balance sheet.

Basis of Presentation

These consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly owned subsidiaries. All 
intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated.

Prior to the Separation, the financial statements represented the Hometown and Hardware and Outlet businesses of Sears 
Holdings and with respect to all periods prior to the Separation were derived from the consolidated financial statements and 
accounting records of Sears Holdings, principally representing the historical results of operations and the historical basis of assets 
and liabilities of the Company's business.  As pre-Separation business operations of Sears Holdings, we did not maintain our own 
legal, tax, and certain other corporate support functions. In connection with the Separation, Sears Holdings and SHO entered into 
services agreements to provide SHO with certain support services under the terms described in Note 5. The costs and allocations 
charged to the Company by Sears Holdings do not necessarily reflect the costs of obtaining the services from unaffiliated third 
parties or of the Company providing the applicable services itself. The consolidated financial statements contained herein, as they 
reflect information from 2012 and 2011, may not be indicative of (1) the Company’s financial position, operating results, and cash 
flows in the future or (2) what the Company’s financial position, operating results, and cash flows would have been if the Hometown 
and Hardware and Outlet businesses of Sears Holdings had been a combined stand-alone business during all periods prior to the 
Separation.

 
 We operate through two segments--our Sears Hometown and Hardware segment ("Hometown") and our Sears Outlet 
segment ("Outlet").

Income Per Common Share

In connection with the Separation, holders of subscription rights that had been distributed to Sears Holdings' stockholders 
purchased from Sears Holdings a total of 23.1 million shares of our common stock.  This share amount has been utilized for the 
calculation of basic and diluted income per share for all periods prior to the Separation.  For the share amount for any time period 
post-Separation, we utilized the weighted-average common stock outstanding during the period.  Dilutive income per share includes 
the dilutive effect of potential common shares. 

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Fiscal Year

Our fiscal years end on the Saturday closest to January 31. Unless otherwise stated, references to specific years in these 
notes are to fiscal years. The following fiscal periods are presented herein.
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Fiscal
Year Ended Weeks        

2013 February 1, 2014 52
2012 February 2, 2013 53
2011 January 28, 2012 52

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States 
of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions about future events. The estimates and assumptions affect 
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, 
as well as reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. We evaluate our estimates and assumptions on 
an ongoing basis using historical experience and other factors that management believes to be reasonable under the circumstances. 
Adjustments to estimates and assumptions are made when facts and circumstances dictate. As future events and their effects cannot 
be determined with absolute certainty, actual results may differ from the estimates used in preparing the accompanying consolidated 
financial statements. Significant estimates and assumptions are required as part of determining inventory and accounts receivable 
valuation, estimating depreciation and recoverability of long-lived assets, establishing insurance, warranty, legal and other reserves, 
performing goodwill and long-lived asset impairment analysis, and establishing valuation allowances on deferred income tax assets 
and reserves for tax examination exposures.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash equivalents include (1) all highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less at the date of 
purchase and (2) deposits in-transit from banks for payments related to third-party credit card and debit card transactions.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

We provide an allowance for doubtful accounts based on both historical experience and a specific identification basis. 
Allowances for doubtful accounts on accounts and notes receivable balances were $0 at February 1, 2014 and February 2, 2013. 
Our accounts receivable balance is comprised of various vendor-related and customer-related accounts receivable.  Our notes 
receivable balance is comprised of promissory notes that relate primarily to the sale of assets for our franchised locations. 

Merchandise Inventories

Merchandise inventories are valued at the lower of cost or market. Merchandise inventories are valued under the retail 
inventory method, or “RIM,” using primarily a last-in, first-out, or “LIFO,” cost-flow assumption.

Inherent in RIM calculation are certain significant management judgments and estimates including, among others, 
merchandise markons, markups, markdowns, and shrinkage, which significantly impact the ending inventory valuation at cost and 
resulting gross margins. The methodologies utilized by us in our application of RIM are consistent for all periods presented. Such 
methodologies include the development of the cost-to-retail ratios, the groupings of homogeneous classes of merchandise, the 
development of shrinkage and obsolescence reserves, the accounting for price changes, and the computations inherent in the LIFO 
adjustment (where applicable). Management believes that RIM provides an inventory valuation that reasonably approximates cost 
and results in carrying inventory at the lower of cost or market. The inventory allowance for shrinkage and obsolescence was $11.5 
million at February 1, 2014 and $10.2 million at February 2, 2013.

In connection with our LIFO calculation we estimate the effects of inflation on inventories by utilizing external price 
indices determined by the U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics. If we had used the first-in, first-out, or "FIFO" method of inventory 
valuation instead of the LIFO method, merchandise inventories would have been $1.1 million higher at February 1, 2014 and $0.7 
million higher at February 2, 2013.

Vendor Rebates and Allowances

Sears Holdings receives rebates and allowances from vendors through a variety of programs and arrangements intended 
to offset the costs of promoting and selling the vendors' products. Sears Holdings allocates a portion of the rebates and allowances 
to us based on shipments to or sales of the related products to the Company. These vendor payments are recognized and recorded 
as a reduction to the cost of merchandise inventories when earned and, thereafter, as a reduction of cost of sales and occupancy 
as the merchandise is sold. Up-front consideration received from vendors linked to purchases or other commitments is initially 
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deferred and amortized ratably to cost of sales and occupancy over the life of the contract or as performance of the activities 
specified by the vendor to earn the fee is completed.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost, less accumulated depreciation. Additions and substantial improvements are 
capitalized and include expenditures that materially extend the useful lives of existing facilities and equipment. Maintenance and 
repairs that do not materially improve or extend the lives of the respective assets are expensed as incurred.

Property and equipment consists of the following:
 

thousands February 1, 2014 February 2, 2013

Land $ 1,978 $ 2,903
Buildings and improvements 54,291 57,281
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 32,388 29,378
Capitalized leases 8,458 11,760

Total property and equipment 97,115 101,322
Less: accumulated depreciation (48,142) (47,939)
Total property and equipment, net $ 48,973 $ 53,383

Depreciation expense, which includes depreciation on assets under capital leases, is recorded over the estimated useful 
lives of the respective assets using the straight-line method for financial statement purposes and accelerated methods for tax 
purposes. The range of lives are generally 15 to 25 years for buildings, 3 to 10 years for furniture, fixtures, and equipment, and 3 
to 5 years for computer systems and equipment. Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the shorter of the associated lease 
term or the estimated useful life of the asset.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and Costs Associated with Exit Activities

In accordance with accounting standards governing the impairment or disposal of long-lived assets, the carrying value 
of long-lived assets, including property and equipment, is evaluated whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that a 
potential impairment has occurred. Factors that could result in an impairment review include, but are not limited to, a current 
period cash flow loss combined with a history of cash flow losses, current cash flows that may be insufficient to recover the 
investment in the property over the remaining useful life, or a projection that demonstrates continuing losses associated with the 
use of a long-lived asset, significant changes in the manner of use of the assets, or significant changes in business strategies. An 
impairment loss is recognized when the estimated undiscounted cash flows expected to result from the use of the asset plus net 
proceeds expected from disposition of the asset (if any) are less than the carrying value of the asset. When an impairment loss is 
recognized, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its estimated fair value as determined based on quoted market prices or 
through the use of other valuation techniques. There were no impairment charges recorded with respect to the 2013, 2012, or 2011 
fiscal years.

We account for costs associated with location closings in accordance with accounting standards pertaining to accounting 
for costs associated with exit or disposal activities and compensation.  When management makes a decision to close a location we 
record a liability as of that date for the costs associated with the closing.  The recorded liability includes employee severance, 
inventory markdowns, and other liquidation fees.  We record a liability for future lease costs (net of estimated sublease income) 
when we cease to use the location. See Note 6 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Goodwill Impairment Assessments

As required by accounting standards, we perform annual goodwill impairment tests in the fourth quarter and update the 
tests between annual tests if events or circumstances occur that would more likely than not reduce the fair value of a reporting unit 
below its carrying amount.  A significant amount of judgment is involved in determining if an indicator of impairment has occurred. 
Such indicators may include, among others: a significant decline in our expected future cash flows; a significant adverse change 
in legal factors or in the business climate; unanticipated competition; and the testing for recoverability of a significant asset group 
within a reporting unit. Following the Separation, our goodwill impairment analysis also includes a comparison of the aggregate 
estimated fair value of all reporting units to our total market capitalization. Therefore, following the Separation, our stock may 
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trade below our book value and a significant and sustained decline in our stock price and market capitalization could result in 
goodwill impairment charges.  Any adverse change in these factors could have a significant impact on the recoverability of these 
assets and could have a material impact on our Consolidated Financial Statements.

Our goodwill resides in the Hometown Reporting Unit within our Hometown business segment.  The goodwill impairment 
test involves a two-step process.  The first step is a comparison of our reporting unit’s fair value to its carrying value. We estimate 
fair value using the best information available, using both a market participant approach, as well as a discounted cash flow model, 
commonly referred to as the income approach.  The market participant approach determines the value of a reporting unit by deriving 
market multiples for reporting units based on assumptions that potential market participants would use in establishing a bid price 
for the unit and applies the selected market multiples to the reporting unit's projection of EBITDA.  This approach therefore assumes 
strategic initiatives will result in improvements in operational performance in the event of purchase, and includes the application 
of a discount rate based on market participant assumptions with respect to capital structure and access to capital markets.  The 
income approach uses a reporting unit’s projection of estimated operating results and cash flows that is discounted using a weighted-
average cost of capital that reflects current market conditions appropriate to our reporting unit.  The projection uses our best 
estimates of economic and market conditions over the projected period, including growth rates in sales and costs and our best 
estimates of future expected changes in operating margins and cash expenditures. Other significant estimates used in the income 
approach and assumptions include terminal value growth rates, future estimates of capital expenditures, and changes in future 
working capital requirements.  Our final estimate of fair value of our reporting unit is developed by equally weighting the fair 
values determined through both the market participant and income approaches, where comparable market participant information 
is available.

If the carrying value of the reporting unit is higher than its fair value, there is an indication that impairment may exist 
and the second step must be performed to measure the amount of impairment loss. The amount of impairment is determined by 
comparing the implied fair value of reporting unit goodwill to the carrying value of the goodwill in the same manner as if the 
reporting unit was being acquired in a business combination. There were no impairment charges recorded during the 2013, 2012, 
or 2011 fiscal years.

Leases

We lease certain stores, office facilities, computers and transportation equipment. The determination of operating and 
capital lease obligations is based on the expected durations of the leases and contractual minimum lease payments specified in the 
lease agreements. For certain stores, amounts in excess of these minimum lease payments are payable based upon a specified 
percentage of sales. Contingent rent is accrued during the period it becomes probable that a particular store will achieve a specified 
sales level thereby triggering a contingent rental obligation. Certain leases also include an escalation clause or clauses and renewal 
option clauses calling for increased rents. Where the lease contains an escalation clause or concession such as a rent holiday, rent 
expense is recognized using the straight-line method over the term of the lease.   We have subleases with Sears Holdings for 113 
locations.  We had rent expense paid to Sears Holdings of $27.3 million, $30.9 million and $26.8 million in 2013, 2012 and 2011, 
respectively.

Rental expense for operating leases was as follows:

Fiscal Year

thousands 2013 2012 2011

Minimum rentals $ 57,679 $ 52,294 $ 47,938
Less-Sublease rentals (19,678) (14,626) (3,307)
Total $ 38,001 $ 37,668 $ 44,631

Minimum lease obligations excluding taxes, insurance and other expenses are as follows:
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Fiscal Year  Capital Leases  Operating Leases

thousands
2014 $ 662 $ 60,321
2015 65 53,645
2016 30 45,107
2017 — 34,541
2018 — 19,963
Thereafter — 25,946

  Total Minimum Lease Payments 757 239,523
  Less - Sublease Income on Leased
Properties — (79,388)

   Net Minimum Lease Payments 757 $ 160,135

Less:
  Implicit Interest —

  Capital Lease Obligations 757
  Less Current Portion of Capital Lease
Obligations (662)
  Long-term Capital Lease Obligations $ 95

Warranty Reserves

Prior to the Separation, we were responsible for providing warranty coverage on certain Kenmore, Craftsman and DieHard 
products that we sold. We were self-insured for certain costs related to these claims. Our liability reflected on the Consolidated 
Balance Sheet, classified within other current liabilities, represents an estimate of the ultimate cost of claims incurred and includes 
those not yet reported at the balance sheet date. In estimating this liability, we utilize loss development factors based on Company-
specific data to project the future development of incurred losses. Loss estimates are adjusted based upon actual claims settlements 
and reported claims.   

The following table presents changes in the Company’s warranty reserves:
 

thousands February 1, 2014 February 2, 2013

Warranty reserve, beginning of period $ 3,734 $ 11,765
Expense accruals during the period — 2,090
Payments made under warranties (3,734) (10,121)
Warranty reserve, end of period $ — $ 3,734

Post-Separation, the Company purchases merchandise from Sears Holdings with warranty. The Company expects the 
incrementally higher product costs to be similar to the warranty costs incurred to service products that were purchased without 
warranty prior to the Separation.
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Insurance Programs

Prior to the Separation the Company participated in Sears Holdings’ insurance programs.  Post-Separation we maintain 
with third-party insurance companies our own insurance arrangements for exposures incurred post-Separation for a number of 
risks including worker’s compensation and general liability claims. Insurance expense of $7 million, $6 million and $6 million 
was recorded during 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively. 

Loss Contingencies

We account for contingent losses in accordance with accounting standards pertaining to loss contingencies. Under 
accounting standards, loss contingency provisions are recorded for probable losses at management’s best estimate of a loss, or 
when a best estimate cannot be made, a minimum loss contingency amount is recorded. These estimates are often initially developed 
substantially earlier than the ultimate loss is known, and the estimates are refined each accounting period, as additional information 
is known.

Revenue Recognition

Revenues include sales of merchandise, commissions on merchandise sales made through www.sears.com and 
www.searsoutlet.com, services and extended-service plans, and delivery and handling revenues related to merchandise sold. We 
recognize revenues from retail operations at the later of the point of sale or the delivery of goods to the end user. Net sales are 
presented net of any taxes collected from customers and remitted to governmental authorities. We recognize revenues from 
commissions on services and extended-service plans, and delivery and handling revenues related to merchandise sold, at the point 
of sale as we are not the primary obligor with respect to such services and have no future obligations for future performance.

The Company accepts Sears Holdings gift cards as tender for purchases and is reimbursed by Sears Holdings for gift 
cards tendered.

Reserve for Sales Returns and Allowances

Revenues from merchandise sales and services are reported net of estimated returns and allowances and exclude sales 
taxes. The reserve for returns and allowances is calculated as a percentage of sales based on historical return percentages. Estimated 
returns are recorded as a reduction of sales and cost of sales. The reserve for returns and allowances was $2 million  at February 
1, 2014 and $2 million at February 2, 2013. 

Cost of Sales and Occupancy

Cost of sales and occupancy are comprised principally of merchandise costs, warehousing and distribution (including 
receiving and store delivery) costs, retail store occupancy costs, home services and installation costs, warranty cost, royalties 
related to the sale of Kenmore, Craftsman and DieHard products, customer shipping and handling costs, vendor allowances, 
markdowns, and physical inventory losses.

Dealer and Franchisee Commissions

Based on the terms of our dealer and franchisee agreements, we pay commissions to our dealers and franchisees on the 
net sales of merchandise and extended-service plans. In addition, each dealer and franchisee can earn commissions for third-party 
gift cards sold and can earn marketing support, home improvement referrals, rent support, and other items. Commission costs are 
expensed as incurred and reflected within selling and administrative expenses. Commission costs were $261 million, $242 million, 
and $188 million in 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

Selling and Administrative Expenses

Selling and administrative expenses are comprised principally of dealer and franchisee commissions, payroll and benefits 
costs for retail and support employees, advertising, pre-opening costs, and other administrative expenses.

Pre-Opening Costs

Pre-opening and start-up activity costs are expensed in the period in which they occur.
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Advertising Costs

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred, generally the first time the advertising occurs, and were $67 million, $67 
million and $65 million for 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively. These costs are included within selling and administrative expenses 
in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Income.

Income Taxes

We provide deferred income tax assets and liabilities based on the estimated future tax effects of differences between the 
financial and tax basis of assets and liabilities based on currently enacted tax laws. The tax balances and income tax expense 
recognized by us are based on management’s interpretation of the tax laws of multiple jurisdictions. Income tax expense also 
reflects our best estimates and assumptions regarding, among other things, the level of future taxable income, tax planning, and 
any valuation allowance. Future changes in tax laws, changes in projected levels of taxable income, tax planning, and adoption 
and implementation of new accounting standards could impact the effective tax rate and tax balances recorded by us. In evaluating 
our ability to recover our deferred tax assets within the jurisdiction from which they arise, we consider all available positive and 
negative evidence, including scheduled reversals of deferred tax liabilities, projected future taxable income, tax planning strategies, 
and results of recent operations. In projecting future taxable income, we begin with historical results and incorporate assumptions 
including the amount of future state, federal and foreign pre-tax operating income, the reversal of temporary differences, and the 
implementation of feasible and prudent tax planning strategies. These assumptions require significant judgment about the forecasts 
of future taxable income.

Tax positions are recognized when they are more likely than not to be sustained upon examination. The amount recognized 
is measured as the largest amount of benefit that is more likely than not of being recognized upon settlement. We will be subject 
to periodic audits by the Internal Revenue Service and other state and local taxing authorities. Theses audits may challenge certain 
of the Company’s tax positions such as the timing and amount of income and deductions and the allocation of taxable income to 
various tax jurisdictions. We evaluate our tax positions and establish liabilities in accordance with the applicable guidance on 
uncertainty in income taxes. These tax uncertainties are reviewed as facts and circumstances change and are adjusted accordingly. 
This requires significant management judgment in estimating final outcomes. Actual results could materially differ from these 
estimates and could significantly affect the effective tax rate and cash flows in future years. Interest and penalties are classified 
as income tax expense in the Consolidated Statement of Income.

Prior to the Separation, our taxable income was included in the federal consolidated, state and foreign income tax returns 
of Sears Holdings or its affiliates. Income taxes in these consolidated financial statements have been recognized on a separate 
return basis. Under a Tax Sharing Agreement between the Company and Sears Holdings entered into prior to the Separation (the 
"Tax Sharing Agreement"), Sears Holdings is responsible for any federal, state or foreign income tax liability relating to tax periods 
ending on or before the Separation and the Company is responsible for any federal, state or foreign tax liability relating to tax 
periods ending after the Separation.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

We determine the fair value of financial instruments in accordance with standards pertaining to fair value measurements. 
Such standards define fair value and establish a framework for measuring fair value in GAAP. Under fair value measurement 
accounting standards, fair value is considered to be the exchange price in an orderly transaction between market participants to 
sell an asset or transfer a liability at the measurement date. We report the fair value of financial assets and liabilities based on the 
fair value hierarchy prescribed by accounting standards for fair value measurements, which prioritizes the inputs to valuation 
techniques used to measure fair value into three levels, as follows:

Level 1 inputs—unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that we have the ability to 
access. An active market for the asset or liability is one in which transactions for the asset or liability occurs with sufficient frequency 
and volume to provide ongoing pricing information.

Level 2 inputs—inputs other than quoted market prices included in Level 1 that are observable, either directly or indirectly, 
for the asset or liability. Level 2 inputs include, but are not limited to, quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in an active 
market, quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active and inputs other than quoted market 
prices that are observable for the asset or liability, such as interest rate curves and yield curves observable at commonly quoted 
intervals, volatilities, credit risk and default rates.

Level 3 inputs—unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
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Cash and cash equivalents (level 1), accounts receivable, short-term debt (level 2), merchandise payables and accrued 
expenses are reflected in the Consolidated Balance Sheet at cost, which approximates fair value due to the short-term nature of 
these instruments.  For short-term debt, the variable interest rate is a significant input in our fair value assessment that compares 
our current interest rate to estimated market rates.

We measure certain non-financial assets and liabilities, including long-lived assets at fair value on a non-recurring basis.

The Company was not required to measure any other significant non-financial assets and liabilities at fair value as of 
February 1, 2014 and February 2, 2013.

New Accounting Pronouncements

Presentation of an Unrecognized Tax Benefit When a Net Operating Loss Carryforward, a Similar Tax Loss, or a Tax 
Credit Carryforward Exists

In July 2013, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued an accounting standards update which requires 
an unrecognized tax benefit to be presented as a reduction to a deferred tax asset for a net operating loss carryforward, a similar 
tax loss or a tax credit carryforward that the entity intends to use and is available for settlement at the reporting date. The update 
will be effective in the first quarter of 2014 and is not expected to have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial 
position, results of operations or cash flows.

Disclosures about Reclassification Adjustments out of Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income

In February 2013, the FASB issued an accounting standards update which adds new disclosure requirements for items 
reclassified out of accumulated other comprehensive income. The update requires entities to disclose additional information about 
reclassification adjustments, including changes in accumulated other comprehensive income balances by component and significant 
items reclassified out of accumulated other comprehensive income. The update was effective for us in the first quarter of 2013 
and did not have a  material impact on our consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

Testing Indefinite-Lived Intangible Assets for Impairment

In July 2012, the FASB issued an accounting standards update which provides, subject to certain conditions, the option 
to perform a qualitative, rather than quantitative, assessment to determine whether it is more likely than not that the fair value of 
an indefinite-lived intangible asset is less than its carrying amount. The update was effective for us in the first quarter of 2013 and 
did not have a material impact on the Company's consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows.
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NOTE 2 - EQUITY

Stock-based Compensation

At the Company's Annual Meeting of Stockholders held on May 14, 2013 the stockholders approved the Sears Hometown 
and Outlet Stores, Inc. Amended and Restated 2012 Stock Plan (the "Stock Plan").  Four million shares of the Company's common 
stock are reserved for issuance under the Stock Plan.  In the second quarter of 2013 the Company granted a total of 89,221 shares 
of restricted stock under the Stock Plan to a group of eligible individuals (as defined in the Stock Plan), all of whom were employees 
of the Company at the time of the grant.  We are also authorized to grant stock options and to make other awards to eligible plan 
participants pursuant to the Stock Plan.

We account for stock-based compensation using the fair value method in accordance with accounting standards regarding 
share-based payment transactions.  During 2013 we have recorded $0.9 million in total compensation expense related to the 86,806 
shares of restricted stock (none of which had vested and excluding 2,415 shares forfeited as of February 1, 2014).  At February 1, 
2014, we had $3.0 million in total unrecognized compensation cost, which we expect to recognize over approximately the next 
2.25 years.

The 86,806 shares of restricted stock will vest, if at all, on May 16, 2016 in accordance with, and subject to the terms and 
conditions of, restricted stock agreements governing the awards, including forfeiture conditions, and the Stock Plan.  The fair value 
of these awards is equal to the market price of our common stock on the date of grant.  We do not currently have a broad-based 
program that provides for restricted stock awards on an annual basis.  Changes in restricted stock awards for 2013 were as follows:

  52 Weeks Ended February 1, 2014

(Shares in Thousands) Shares
Weighted-Average Fair
Value on Date of Grant

Beginning of year balance — —
Granted 89 $ 44.45
Vested — —
Forfeited (2) 44.45

Balance at 2/1/2014 87 $ 44.45

 
The aggregate fair value of the restricted stock awards based on the weighted average fair value at the date of grant was 

$3.9 million.

Share Repurchase Program 

On August 28, 2013 the Company's Board of Directors authorized a $25 million repurchase program for the Company's 
outstanding shares of common stock.  The timing and amount of repurchases depend on various factors, including market conditions, 
the Company's capital position and internal cash generation, and other factors.  The Company's repurchase program does not 
include specific price targets, may be executed through open-market, privately negotiated, and other transactions that may be 
available, and may include utilization of Rule 10b5-1 plans.  The repurchase program does not obligate the Company to repurchase 
any dollar amount, or any number of shares, of common stock.  The repurchase program does not have a termination date, and the 
Company may suspend or terminate the repurchase program at any time.  Shares that are repurchased by the Company pursuant 
to the repurchase program are retired and resume the status of authorized and unissued shares of common stock.  During the third 
quarter of 2013 the Company adopted a Rule 10b5-1 plan that terminated on December 6, 2013.

During the 2013 fiscal year we repurchased 434,398 shares of our common stock at a total cost of $12.5 million. Our 
repurchases for the fiscal year ended February 1, 2014 were made at an average price of $28.83.  We account for the repurchased 
and retired shares by reducing par value and capital in excess of par value up to the per share amount recorded in connection with 
the Separation, with the excess repurchase price recorded as a reduction to retained earnings.  At February 1, 2014 we had $12.5 
million of remaining authorization under the repurchase program.   
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NOTE 3—OTHER CURRENT AND LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Other current and long-term liabilities consist of the following:
 

thousands February 1, 2014 February 2, 2013

Customer deposits $ 35,547 $ 34,914
Sales and other taxes 11,403 13,607
Accrued expenses 9,523 24,703
Warranty accrual — 3,734
Payroll and related items 8,105 9,005
Total Other current and long-term liabilities $ 64,578 $ 85,963
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NOTE 4—INCOME TAXES

The Tax Sharing Agreement governs the rights and obligations of the parties with respect to pre-Separation and post-
Separation tax matters. Under the Tax Sharing Agreement, Sears Holdings is responsible for any federal, state or foreign income 
tax liability relating to tax periods ending on or before the Separation. For all periods after the Separation, the Company is responsible 
for any federal, state or foreign tax liability. Current income taxes payable for any federal, state or foreign income tax returns is 
reported in the period incurred.

We account for uncertainties in income taxes according to accounting standards for uncertain tax positions. The Company 
is present in a large number of taxable jurisdictions and, at any point in time, can have audits underway at various stages of 
completion in one or more of these jurisdictions. We evaluate our tax positions and establish liabilities for uncertain tax positions 
that may be challenged by local authorities and may not be fully sustained, despite the belief that the underlying tax positions are 
fully supportable. Unrecognized tax benefits are reviewed on an ongoing basis and are adjusted in light of changing facts and 
circumstances, including progress of tax audits, developments in case law, and closings of statutes of limitation. Such adjustments 
are reflected in the tax provision as appropriate. Pursuant to the Tax Sharing Agreement, Sears Holdings is responsible for any 
unrecognized tax liabilities or benefits through the date of the Separation and the Company is responsible for any uncertain tax 
positions after the Separation. For 2013, 2012 and 2011, no unrecognized tax benefits have been identified and reflected in the 
financial statements.

 
We classify interest expense and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits and interest income on tax overpayments 

as components of income tax expense. As no unrecognized tax benefits have been identified and reflected in the consolidated 
financial statements, no interest or penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits are reflected in the consolidated balance sheets 
or statements of income.

As of January 28, 2012 the assets and liabilities of the Sears Hometown and Hardware and Sears Outlet businesses were 
owned by subsidiaries of Sears Holdings.  On August 31, 2012, through a series of intercompany transactions Sears Holdings and 
several of its subsidiaries transferred the assets and liabilities comprising the Sears Hometown and Hardware and Sears Outlet 
businesses to SHO.  In connection with the intercompany transactions, for tax purposes the transferred assets and liabilities were 
stepped up to their estimated fair market values as of August 31, 2012, but for financial statement purposes the book value of the 
assets and liabilities remained unchanged at their historical cost bases.  This tax adjustment related to the Separation was accounted 
for as an equity contribution that increased net deferred tax assets by $80.4 million reflecting the stepped-up tax basis in excess 
of the book basis that occurred in connection with the intercompany transactions described above, primarily for merchandise 
inventories, favorable leases, fixed assets, and royalty-free licenses to use the "Sears" name.
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The provisions for income tax expense for 2013, 2012 and 2011 consist of the following:

Fiscal Year Ended
thousands 2013 2012 2011

Income before income taxes:
U.S. $ 58,713 $ 95,966 $ 52,423
Foreign 1,170 4,014 2,360

Total $ 59,883 $ 99,980 $ 54,783

Income tax expense (benefit):
Current:

Federal $ 3,808 $ 33,469 $ 16,329
State 1,341 6,848 3,808
Foreign 570 1,224 686

Total 5,719 41,541 20,823
Deferred:

Federal 15,859 (2,226) 787
State 2,847 585 117
Foreign (92) — —

Total 18,614 (1,641) 904
Income tax provision $ 24,333 $ 39,900 $ 21,727

The provisions for income taxes for financial reporting purposes is different from the tax provision computed by applying 
the statutory federal tax rate. The reconciliation of the tax rate follows:

Fiscal Year Ended
2013 2012 2011

Federal tax rate 35.0% 35.0% 35.0%
State income tax (net of federal benefit) 4.5% 4.9% 4.7%
Other 1.1% —% —%
Effective tax rate 40.6% 39.9% 39.7%
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The major components of the deferred tax assets and liabilities as of February 1, 2014 and February 2, 2013 are as follows:

Fiscal Year Ended

thousands February 1, 2014 February 2, 2013

Deferred tax assets
Capital Leases $ 183 $ 426
Deferred Compensation 2,030 3,249
Deferred Rent 1,856 1,820
Favorable Leases 1,155 2,393
Inventory — 1,627
Property — 2,943
Property Taxes 608 —
Royalty-free License 57,131 61,418
Store Closing Reserve 149 47
Warranty — 1,447
Other 2,539 1,813

Total deferred tax
assets 65,651 77,183

Deferred tax liabilities
Inventory (5,098) —
Other (2,526) (542)

Total deferred tax
liabilities (7,624) (542)

Net deferred tax assets $ 58,027 $ 76,641

We account for income taxes in accordance with accounting standards for such taxes, which require that deferred tax 
assets and liabilities be recognized using enacted tax rates for the effect of temporary differences between the financial reporting 
and tax bases of recorded assets and liabilities.  Accounting standards also require that deferred tax assets be reduced by a valuation 
allowance if it is more likely than not that some portion of or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized.

Management assesses the available positive and negative evidence to estimate if sufficient future taxable income will be 
generated to use the existing deferred tax assets.  A significant piece of negative evidence evaluated concerned the estimated future 
foreign taxable income available to use the foreign tax credit carryforward deferred tax asset of $0.3 million.  On the basis of this 
analysis, for the year ended February 1, 2014, a valuation allowance of $0.3 million was added through tax expense to reduce this 
deferred tax asset since it does not meet the more likely than not standard for realization.  We will continue to evaluate our valuation 
allowance in future years for any change in circumstances that causes a change in judgment about the realization of the deferred 
tax asset.
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NOTE 5—RELATED-PARTY AGREEMENTS AND TRANSACTIONS

According to publicly available information, ESL beneficially owns approximately 49% of our outstanding shares of 
common stock and approximately 48% of Sears Holdings' outstanding shares of common stock. 

We are party to various agreements with Sears Holdings which, among other things, (1) govern specified aspects of our 
relationship with Sears Holdings, (2) establish terms under which subsidiaries of Sears Holdings are providing services to us, and 
(3) establish terms pursuant to which subsidiaries of Sears Holdings are obtaining merchandise inventories for us. The terms of 
these agreements were agreed to prior to the Separation in the context of a parent-subsidiary relationship and in the overall context 
of the Separation.  

The following is a summary of the nature of the related-party transactions between SHO and Sears Holdings:

• We are party to a Separation Agreement with Sears Holdings pursuant to which Sears Holdings consummated the 
Separation.  The Separation Agreement, among other things, provided for the allocation and transfer, through a series of 
intercompany transactions, of the assets and the liabilities comprising the Sears Hometown and Hardware and Sears 
Outlet businesses of Sears Holdings.  In the Separation Agreement SHO and Sears Holdings agree to release each other 
from all pre-separation claims (other than with respect to the agreements executed in connection with the Separation) and 
each agrees to defend and indemnify the other with respect to its post-separation business.  

• We obtain a significant amount of our merchandise inventories from Sears Holdings.  This enables us to take advantage 
of the amount and scope of Sears Holdings purchasing activities. We are party to a Merchandising Agreement with Sears 
Holdings, Kmart and SRC (the "Merchandising Agreement") pursuant to which Kmart and SRC (1) sell to us, with respect 
to certain specified product categories, Sears brand products (including products branded with the KCD Marks, or, 
collectively, the “KCD Products”) and vendor-branded products obtained from Kmart’s and SRC’s vendors and suppliers 
and (2) grant us licenses to use the trademarks owned by Kmart, SRC or other subsidiaries of Sears Holdings, or the 
“Sears marks,” including the KCD Marks in connection with the marketing and sale of products sold under the Sears 
marks. The initial term of the Merchandising Agreement will expire in 2018, subject to two three-year renewal terms 
with respect to the KCD Products. We pay, on a weekly basis, a royalty determined by multiplying our net sales of the 
KCD Products by specified fixed royalties rates for each brand’s licensed products, subject to  adjustments based on the 
extent to which we feature Kenmore brand products in certain of our advertising and the extent to which we pay specified 
minimum commissions to our franchisees and Hometown Store owners.  We are also party to agreements with Sears 
Holdings for related logistics, handling, warehouse and transportation services, the charges for which are based generally 
on merchandise inventory units.  We also pay fees for participation in Sears Holdings' SYW program.

• We obtain our merchandise from Sears Holdings and other vendors. For the year ended February 1, 2014, products which 
we acquired from Sears Holdings, including KCD Products and other products, accounted for approximately 84% of our 
total purchases of inventory from all vendors with a comparable level of purchases from Sears Holdings in 2012 and 
2011.  The loss of or a reduction in the amount of merchandise made available to us by Sears Holdings could have a 
material adverse effect on our business and results of operations.

• Sears Holdings provides the Company with specified corporate services.  These services include tax, accounting, 
procurement, risk management and insurance, advertising and marketing, human resources, loss prevention, 
environmental, product and human safety, facilities, logistics and distribution, information technology (including the 
point-of-sale system used by the Company and its dealers and franchisees), online, payment clearing, and other financial, 
real estate management, merchandise-related and other support services.  Sears Holdings charges the Company for these 
corporate services generally based on actual usage, a pro rata charge based upon sales, head count, or square footage, or 
a fixed fee or commission as agreed between the parties.

• Sears Holdings has licensed the Company until October 11, 2029, on a royalty-free basis, to use under specified conditions 
(1) the name “Sears” in our corporate name and to promote our businesses and (2) the www.searsoutlet.com, 
www.searshomeapplianceshowroom.com, www.searshometownstores.com, and www.searshardwarestores.com domain 
names to promote our businesses.  Also, Sears Holdings has licensed the Company until October 11, 2029, on an exclusive, 
royalty-free basis, under specified conditions to use for the purpose of operating our stores the names “Sears Appliance 
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& Hardware,” “Sears Authorized Hometown Stores,” “Sears Hometown Store,” “Sears Home Appliance Showroom,” 
“Sears Hardware,” and “Sears Outlet Store.”

• Sears Holdings has assigned to us leases for, or has subleased to us, many of the stores that we operate or that we have, 
in turn, subleased to franchisees.  Generally, the terms of the subleases match the terms, including the payment of rent 
and expiration date, of the existing leases between Sears Holdings (or one of its subsidiaries) and the landlord. In addition, 
a small number of our stores are in locations where Sears Holdings currently operates one of its stores or a distribution 
facility.  In such cases we have entered into a lease or sublease with Sears Holdings (or one of its subsidiaries) for the 
portion of the space in which our store will operate, and we pay rent directly to Sears Holdings on the terms negotiated 
in connection with the Separation. We also lease from Sears Holdings office space for our corporate headquarters. 

• SHO receives commissions from Sears Holdings for specified sales of merchandise made through www.sears.com and 
www.searsoutlet.com, the sale of extended-service plans, delivery and handling services and relating to the use in our 
stores of credit cards branded with the Sears name.  For certain transactions SHO pays a commission to Sears Holdings. 

These agreements may be terminated by either party upon a material breach if the breaching party fails to cure such breach 
within 30 days following written notice of such breach or, if such breach is not curable, immediately upon delivery of notice of 
the non-breaching party’s intention to terminate.  For additional, more comprehensive information regarding these agreements 
(including termination rights) see "Certain Relationships and Transactions" in the 2014 Proxy Statement, which is incorporated 
by reference into Item 13 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K. 

The following table summarizes the transactions with Sears Holdings included in the Company’s Consolidated Financial 
Statements:
 

  Fiscal Year Ended
  February 1,

2014
February 2,

2013
January 28,

2012thousands

Net Commissions from Sears Holdings Corporation (1) $ 90,085 $ 83,756 $ 76,018
Purchases related to cost of sales and occupancy 1,691,300 1,673,832 1,756,274
Services included in selling and administrative 22,156 18,912 19,823

(1) We reduced the amounts previously presented for fiscal years ended  2012 and 2011 by $84.3 million and $69.2 
million, respectively to exclude all transactions in which SHO received the entire sales revenue for on-line sales 
made to unrelated third-parties that were generated through Sears Holding's websites. 

"Services included in selling and administrative" were $22.2 million in 2013.  In 2012 they were $18.9 million which 
consisted of allocations of $12.3 million of shared services costs pre-Separation and charges of $6.6 million of shared services 
costs post-Separation.  We were allocated pre-Separation expenses of  $19.8 million from Sears Holdings in 2011.  

Following the Separation we incur payables to Sears Holdings for merchandise inventory purchases and service and 
occupancy charges (net of commissions) based on our Separation agreements.  Amounts due to or from Sears Holding are non-
interest bearing, settled on a net basis, and have payments terms of 10 days after the invoice date.  Prior to the Separation these 
amounts were recorded and settled through intercompany transfers to Sears Holdings.
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NOTE 6—STORE CLOSING CHARGES AND SEVERANCE COSTS

In accordance with accounting standards governing costs associated with exit or disposal activities, expenses related to 
future rent payments for which the Company no longer intends to receive any economic benefit are accrued for when we cease to 
use the leased space and have been reduced for any income that the Company believes can be realized through subleasing the 
leased space. During 2013 we closed 53 stores which did not require additional store-closing or severance reserves compared to 
closing 83 stores in 2012.  In 2011, the Company made the decision to establish closing reserves for 84 stores, with 20 stores 
closing in 2011 and the remainder closing primarily in the first half of 2012. We recorded $0.8 million in charges for related lease 
obligations in 2012 compared to $0.2 million in 2011.

Store closing activity recorded during the 52-week period ended January 28, 2012 and the 53-week period ended February 
2, 2013, and the remaining store closing accruals were as follows:

thousands Markdowns (1)
Severance
Costs (2)

Lease
Termination

Costs (2)
Other

Costs (2)
Accelerated

Depreciation (3) Total

Balance at January 29, 2011 $ — $ — $ — $ — $ — $ —
Store closing costs $ 12,071 $ 330 $ 215 $ 3,255 $ 272 $ 16,143
Payments/utilizations $ (3,924) $ (180) $ (159) $ (1,260) $ (272) $ (5,795)

Balance at January 28, 2012 $ 8,147 $ 150 $ 56 $ 1,995 $ — $ 10,348
Store closing costs — — 797 — — 797
Payments/utilizations (8,147) (150) (853) (1,995) — (11,145)

Balance at February 2, 2013 $ — $ — $ — $ — $ — $ —

(1) Store closing activity recorded within Cost of sales and occupancy on the Consolidated Statements of Income and 
remaining store closing cost accruals reported within Merchandise inventories on the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

(2) Store closing activity recorded within Selling and administrative on the Consolidated Statements of Income and 
remaining store closing cost accruals reported within Other current liabilities on the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

(3) Store closing activity recorded within Depreciation on the Consolidated Statements of Income and remaining store 
closing cost accruals reported within Property and equipment, net on the Consolidated Balance Sheets.
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NOTE 7—FINANCING ARRANGEMENT

Under the Senior ABL Facility the Company initially borrowed $100 million which was used to pay a cash dividend to 
Sears Holdings prior to the Separation.  As of February 1, 2014 we had $99.1 million outstanding under the Senior ABL Facility, 
which approximated the fair value of these borrowings.  The Senior ABL Facility provides (subject to availability under a borrowing 
base) for maximum borrowings up to the aggregate commitments of all of the lenders, which as of February 1, 2014 totaled $250 
million. Up to $75 million of the Senior ABL Facility is available for the issuance of letters of credit and up to $25 million is 
available for swingline loans.  The Senior ABL Facility permits us to request commitment increases in an aggregate principal 
amount of up to $100 million.  Availability under the Senior ABL Facility as of February 1, 2014 was $145.3 million, with $5.6 
million of letters of credit outstanding under the facility.

The principal terms of the Senior ABL Facility are summarized below.

Senior ABL Facility

Maturity; Amortization and Prepayments

The Senior ABL Facility will mature on the earlier of (i) October 11, 2017 or (ii) six months prior to the expiration of the 
Merchandising Agreement and the other agreements with Sears Holdings or its subsidiaries in connection with the Separation that 
are specified in the Senior ABL Facility, unless such agreements have been extended to a date later than October 11, 2017 or 
terminated on a basis reasonably satisfactory to the administrative agent under the Senior ABL Facility.

The Senior ABL Facility is subject to mandatory prepayment in amounts equal to the amount by which the outstanding 
extensions of credit exceed the lesser of the borrowing base and the commitments then in effect.

Guarantees; Security

The obligations under the Senior ABL Facility are guaranteed by us and each of our existing and future direct and indirect 
wholly owned domestic subsidiaries (subject to certain exceptions). The Senior ABL Facility and the guarantees thereunder are 
secured by a first priority security interest in certain assets of the borrowers and guarantors consisting primarily of accounts 
receivable, inventory, cash, cash equivalents, deposit accounts and securities accounts, as well as certain other assets (other than 
intellectual property) ancillary to the foregoing and all proceeds of all of the foregoing, including cash proceeds and the proceeds 
of applicable insurance.

Interest; Fees

The interest rates per annum applicable to the loans under the Senior ABL Facility are based on a fluctuating rate of 
interest measured by reference to, at our election, either (1) an adjusted London inter-bank offered rate (LIBOR) plus a borrowing 
margin or (2) an alternate base rate plus a borrowing margin, with the borrowing margin subject to adjustment based on the average 
excess availability under the Senior ABL Facility for the preceding fiscal quarter. The interest rate was approximately 4.25% at 
February 1, 2014.

Customary fees are payable in respect of the Senior ABL Facility, including letter of credit fees and commitment fees.

Covenants

The Senior ABL Facility includes a number of covenants that, among other things, limit or restrict our ability to, subject 
to specified exceptions, incur additional indebtedness (including guarantees), grant liens, make investments, make prepayments 
on other indebtedness, engage in mergers, or change the nature of our business.

The Senior ABL Facility limits SHO's ability to declare and pay cash dividends and repurchase its common stock.  SHO 
may declare and pay cash dividends to its stockholders and may repurchase stock if the following conditions are satisfied: either 
(a) (i) no specified default then exists or would arise as a result of the declaration or payment of the cash dividend or as a result 
of the stock repurchase, (ii) SHO and its subsidiaries that are also borrowers have demonstrated to the reasonable satisfaction of 
the agent for the lenders that monthly availability (as determined in accordance with the Senior ABL Facility), immediately 
following the declaration and payment of the cash dividend or the stock repurchase and as projected on a pro forma basis for the 
twelve months following and after giving effect to the declaration and payment of the cash dividend or the stock repurchase, would 
be at least equal to the greater of (x) 25% of the Loan Cap (which is the lesser of (A) the aggregate commitments of the lenders 
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and (B) the borrowing base) and (y) $50,000,000, and (iii) after giving pro forma effect to the declaration and payment of the cash 
dividend or the stock repurchase as if it constituted a specified debt service charge, the specified consolidated fixed charge coverage 
ratio, as calculated on a trailing twelve months basis, would be equal to or greater than 1.1:1.0, or (b) (i) no specified default then 
exists or would arise as a result of the declaration or payment of the cash dividend or the stock repurchase, (ii) payment of the 
cash dividend or the stock repurchase is not made with the proceeds of any credit extension under the Senior ABL Facility, (iii) 
during the 120-day period prior to declaration and payment of the cash dividend or the stock repurchase, no credit extension was 
outstanding under the Senior ABL Facility, and (iv) SHO demonstrates to the reasonable satisfaction of the agent for the lenders 
that, on a pro forma and projected basis, no credit extensions would be outstanding under the Senior ABL Facility for the 120-day 
period following the declaration and payment of the cash dividend or the stock repurchase.  No default or event of default presently 
exists.

The Senior ABL Facility also contains certain affirmative covenants, including financial and other reporting requirements.

Events of Default

The Senior ABL Facility includes customary events of default including non-payment of principal, interest or fees, 
violation of covenants, inaccuracy of representations or warranties, cross default to certain other material indebtedness, bankruptcy 
and insolvency events, invalidity or impairment of guarantees or security interests, material judgments, and change of control.
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NOTE 8—SUMMARY OF SEGMENT DATA

The Hometown reportable segment consists of the aggregation of our Hometown Stores, Hardware Stores and Home 
Appliance Showroom formats.  The Outlet reportable segment also represents an operating format.  For the 52 weeks ended 
February 1, 2014, the Outlet reportable segment reclassified $14.4 million  of distribution center costs that were previously reflected 
in selling and administrative expense and now are reflected in cost of sales and occupancy.  Amounts for the comparable 52 weeks 
ended February 2, 2013 have not been adjusted for the reclassification because it is impracticable to do so.  These segments are 
evaluated by our Chief Operating Decision Maker to make decisions about resource allocation and to assess performance. Each 
of these segments derives its revenues from the sale of merchandise and related services to customers, primarily in the United 
States. The Net Sales categories include appliances, lawn and garden, tools and paint and other.  The other category includes initial 
franchise revenue of  $5.5 million, $11.2 million and $11.6 million from Hometown in 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively, and 
$20.1 million from Outlet in 2013.  Initial franchise revenues consist of franchise fees paid with respect to new and existing 
Company-operated stores that we transfer to franchisees plus the net gain or loss on any related transfer of assets to the franchisees.

  2013

thousands Hometown Outlet Total

Net sales
Appliances $ 1,160,894 $ 478,435 $ 1,639,329
Lawn and garden 319,725 23,743 343,468
Tools and paint 213,575 14,674 228,249
Other 117,325 93,191 210,516

Total 1,811,519 610,043 2,421,562
Costs and expenses

Cost of sales and occupancy 1,389,627 453,791 1,843,418
Selling and administrative 396,073 110,557 506,630
Depreciation 6,321 5,685 12,006
Gain on the sale of assets — (1,567) (1,567)

Total 1,792,021 568,466 2,360,487
Operating income $ 19,498 $ 41,577 $ 61,075
Total assets $ 632,437 $ 214,748 $ 847,185
Capital expenditures $ 3,731 $ 6,973 $ 10,704

 

  2012

thousands Hometown Outlet Total

Net sales
Appliances $ 1,151,356 $ 452,201 $ 1,603,557
Lawn and garden 343,575 19,034 362,609
Tools and paint 234,457 15,859 250,316
Other 159,875 77,249 237,124

Total 1,889,263 564,343 2,453,606
Costs and expenses

Cost of sales and occupancy 1,433,880 406,327 1,840,207
Selling and administrative 394,335 110,065 504,400
Depreciation 3,658 5,816 9,474

Total 1,831,873 522,208 2,354,081
Operating income $ 57,390 $ 42,135 $ 99,525
Total assets $ 633,060 $ 152,743 $ 785,803
Capital expenditures $ 3,338 $ 4,772 $ 8,110
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  2011

thousands Hometown Outlet Total

Net sales
Appliances $ 1,041,447 $ 418,245 $ 1,459,692
Lawn and garden 357,661 21,805 379,466
Tools and paint 244,192 7,984 252,176
Other 195,497 57,368 252,865

Total 1,838,797 505,402 2,344,199
Costs and expenses

Cost of sales and occupancy 1,463,636 356,880 1,820,516
Selling and administrative 356,351 102,284 458,635
Depreciation 4,083 5,691 9,774

Total 1,824,070 464,855 2,288,925
Operating income $ 14,727 $ 40,547 $ 55,274
Total assets $ 525,826 $ 126,012 $ 651,838
Capital expenditures $ 3,604 $ 6,387 $ 9,991
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NOTE 9 —QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (UNAUDITED)

The following tables reflect the quarterly consolidated statements of income for the periods indicated.
                 

  Fiscal Year Ended February 1, 2014

thousands, except per share amounts First Quarter
Second
Quarter

Third
Quarter

Fourth
Quarter

NET SALES $ 601,117 $ 656,899 $ 561,068 $ 602,478
COSTS AND EXPENSES
Cost of sales and occupancy 446,869 508,502 425,596 462,451
Selling and administrative 127,188 130,928 121,698 126,816
Depreciation 2,341 2,050 2,177 5,438
Gain on the sale of assets — — (1,567) —

Total costs and expenses 576,398 641,480 547,904 594,705
Operating income 24,719 15,419 13,164 7,773
Interest income (expense) (589) (642) (738) (1,077)
Other income 415 431 460 548
Income before income taxes 24,545 15,208 12,886 7,244
Income tax expense (9,548) (6,073) (5,191) (3,521)
NET INCOME $ 14,997 $ 9,135 $ 7,695 $ 3,723

NET INCOME PER COMMON SHARE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO STOCKHOLDERS

Basic: $ 0.65 $ 0.40 $ 0.33 0.16
Diluted: $ 0.65 $ 0.40 $ 0.33 0.16

Basic weighted average common shares outstanding 23,100 23,100 22,999 22,729
Diluted weighted average common shares outstanding 23,100 23,106 22,999 22,729

  Fiscal Year Ended February 2, 2013

thousands, except per share amounts First Quarter
Second
Quarter

Third
Quarter

Fourth
Quarter

NET SALES 621,078 644,464 556,903 631,161
COSTS AND EXPENSES
Cost of sales and occupancy 462,379 484,478 418,490 474,860
Selling and administrative 121,904 124,072 122,054 136,370
Depreciation 2,305 2,228 2,282 2,659

Total costs and expenses 586,588 610,778 542,826 613,889
Operating income 34,490 33,685 14,077 17,273
Interest income (expense) (669) 628 (70) (788)
Other income 226 360 383 385
Income before income taxes 34,047 34,673 14,390 16,870
Income tax expense (13,454) (13,606) (5,629) (7,211)
NET INCOME $ 20,593 $ 21,067 $ 8,761 $ 9,659

Table of Contents
SEARS HOMETOWN AND OUTLET STORES, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 



76

NET INCOME PER COMMON SHARE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO STOCKHOLDERS

Basic: $ 0.89 $ 0.91 $ 0.38 0.42
Diluted: $ 0.89 $ 0.91 $ 0.38 0.42

Basic weighted average common shares outstanding 23,100 23,100 23,100 23,100
Diluted weighted average common shares outstanding 23,100 23,100 23,100 23,100
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NOTE 10—COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

We are subject to various legal and governmental proceedings arising out of the ordinary course of business, the outcome 
of which, individually or in the aggregate, in the opinion of management, would not have a material adverse effect on our business, 
financial position, or results of operations or cash flows.
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NOTE 11—INCOME PER COMMON SHARE

 Basic income per common share is calculated by dividing net income by the weighted average number of common shares 
outstanding for each period.  Diluted income per common share also includes the dilutive effect of potential common shares.  In 
connection with the Separation, stockholders purchased from Sears Holdings a total of 23.1 million shares of our common stock 
upon the exercise of subscription rights distributed to Sears Holdings' stockholders.  This share amount has been utilized for the 
calculation of basic and diluted income per share for all periods prior to the Separation. 

 The following table sets forth the components used to calculate basic and diluted income per common share attributable 
to our stockholders.  

  Fiscal Year Ended

February 1, 2014 February 2, 2013 January 28, 2012

Thousands except income per common share

Basic weighted average shares 22,984 23,100 23,100
Dilutive effect of restricted stock 5 — —
Diluted weighted average shares 22,989 23,100 23,100

Net income $ 35,550 $ 60,080 $ 33,056

Income per common share:

  Basic $ 1.55 $ 2.60 $ 1.43
  Diluted $ 1.55 $ 2.60 $ 1.43
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NOTE 12—DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN

 We sponsor a Sears Hometown and Outlet Stores, Inc. 401(k) savings plan for employees meeting service-eligibility 
requirements. The Company offers a discretionary match contribution.  The expense related to the post-retirement plan has been 
determined in accordance with U.S. GAAP and the Company accrues the cost of these benefits during the years that employees 
render service. 

 Expenses for the retirement savings plan were as follows: 

thousands 2013 2012 2011

Retirement/401(k) Savings Plan $ 289 $ — $ —
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Sears Hometown and Outlet Stores, Inc.
Hoffman Estates, Illinois

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Sears Hometown and Outlet Stores (the “Company”) as of 
February 1, 2014 and February 2, 2013 and the related consolidated statements of income, stockholders’ equity, and cash flows 
for each of the three years in the period ended February 1, 2014.  These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility 
of the Company’s management.  Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on 
our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States).  
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements 
are free of material misstatement.  An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures 
in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as 
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.  We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position 
of the Company at February 1, 2014 and February 2, 2013, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three 
years in the period ended February 1, 2014, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America.

As described in Note 1, prior to October 11, 2012, the Company operated as part of Sears Holdings Corporation (“Sears Holdings”). 
The accompanying consolidated financial statements, prior to October 11, 2012, were prepared from accounting records maintained 
by Sears Holdings and the Company and may not be indicative of what the financial position, results or operations, and cash flows 
would have been if the Company had been a stand-alone entity. As more fully described in Notes 1 and 5, certain costs included 
in the accompanying consolidated financial statements represent allocations from Sears Holdings.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the 
Company's internal control over financial reporting as of February 1, 2014 based on criteria established in Internal Control - 
Integrated Framework (1992) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO) and 
our report dated April 3, 2014 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

BDO USA, LLP 
Chicago, Illinois 
April 3, 2014 
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our principal executive officer and principal 
financial officer, we conducted an evaluation of our disclosure controls and procedures, as such term is defined in Rule 13a-15(e) 
promulgated under the Exchange Act.  Based on this evaluation, our principal executive officer and our principal financial officer 
concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of the end of the period covered by this Annual Report 
on Form 10-K.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

There were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the company's fourth fiscal 
quarter ended February 1, 2014 that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over 
financial reporting.

Management's Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

 Management of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial 
reporting as defined in Rule 13a-15(f) under the Exchange Act.  The Company’s internal control system was designed to provide 
reasonable assurance to the Company’s management and Board of Directors regarding the reliability of financial reporting and 
the preparation and fair presentation of published financial statements.

 All  control systems, no matter how well designed, have inherent limitations. Therefore, even those systems determined 
to be effective can only provide reasonable assurance with respect to the reliability of financial reporting and financial statement 
preparation and presentation.

Management assessed the effectiveness of the Company's internal control over financial reporting as of February 1, 2014, 
with the participation of our principal executive and principal financial officers.  In making this assessment, it used the criteria 
set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO) in Internal Control - Integrated 
Framework (1992). Based on management's assessment, management believes that as of February 1, 2014, the Company’s internal 
controls over financial reporting were effective based on those criteria. 

The effectiveness of the Company's internal control over financial reporting as of February 1, 2014 has been audited by 
BDO USA LLP as stated in their Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm included in this Annual Report on 
Form 10-K.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm 

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Sears Hometown and Outlet Stores, Inc.
Hoffman Estates, Illinois

We have audited the internal control over financial reporting of Sears Hometown and Outlet Stores (the “Company”) as of February 
1, 2014, based on criteria established in Internal Control - Integrated Framework (1992) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring 
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (the COSO criteria). The Company’s management is responsible for maintaining 
effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial 
reporting, included in the accompanying “Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting”. Our responsibility 
is to express an opinion on the company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). 
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control 
over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control 
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating 
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. Our audit also included performing such other procedures as we 
considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability 
of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain 
to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets 
of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial 
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are 
being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable 
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that 
could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, 
projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because 
of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

In our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of February 
1, 2014, based on the COSO criteria. 

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the 
consolidated balance sheets of the Company as of February 1, 2014 and February 2, 2013 and the related consolidated statements 
of income, stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended February 1, 2014 and our report 
dated April 3, 2014 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

BDO USA, LLP
Chicago, Illinois
April 3, 2014
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Item 9B. Other Information

On April 2, 2014 the Company and Becky Iliff amended and restated Ms. Iliff's offer letter of August 28, 2012, pursuant 
to which she serves as the Company's Vice President, Human Resources.  The amended and restated offer letter (the "Offer Letter") 
provides, among other things, that Ms. Iliff (1) will be paid an annual base salary of $240,000, (2) is eligible to participate in the 
Company's annual incentive plans and long-term incentive plans, to the extent such plans are established by the Company's Board 
of Directors, (3) will repay her $25,000 sign-on bonus to the Company if she voluntarily terminates her employment or is terminated 
by the Company for misconduct or integrity issues prior to August 19, 2014, (4) is eligible to receive a special cash retention bonus 
of $100,000 paid in two equal installments on the first and third anniversaries of her start date with the Company provided that 
she is actively employed by the Company on the applicable payment dates (Ms. Iliff received the first installment in 2013), and 
(5) is eligible to receive, subject to certain limitations, six months of salary continuation as a severance payment if her employment 
with the Company is terminated by the Company or Ms. Iliff for a good reason (as defined in the Offer Letter).  The above 
description of the Offer Letter is subject to, and qualified in its entirety by, the terms and conditions of the Offer Letter, a copy of 
which is filed as Exhibit 10.31 to this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Also on April 2, 2014 Elizabeth Darst Leykum, a member of the Company's Board of Directors, notified the Company 
that, due to her other responsibilities, she declined to stand for reelection to the Board of Directors at the Company's 2014 Annual 
Meeting of Stockholders.
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Part III

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance. 
Information required by this Item 10 with respect to directors, the Audit Committee, audit committee financial experts 

and Section 16(a) beneficial ownership reporting compliance is included under the headings “Item 1. Election of Directors,” 
“Corporate Governance-Independence of Audit Committee Members; Audit Committee Financial Experts,” and “Other 
Information-Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance” of the 2014 Proxy Statement and is incorporated herein 
by reference. 

The information required by this Item 10 regarding the Company's executive officers is included under the heading 
“Executive Officers of the Registrant” in Part I of this Annual Report on Form 10-K and is incorporated herein by reference. 

SHO has adopted a Code of Conduct, which applies to all employees, including our principal executive officer, principal 
financial officer and principal accounting officer, and a Code of Conduct for its Board of Directors.  Directors who are also officers 
of SHO are subject to both codes of conduct.  Each code of conduct is a code of ethics as defined in Item 406 of SEC Regulation 
S-K. The codes of conduct are available on the Corporate Governance section of our website at www.shos.com. Any amendment 
to, or waiver from, a provision of either code of conduct will be posted to the above-referenced website. 

During the Company's 2013 fiscal year there were no changes to the process by which stockholders may recommend 
nominees to the Board of Directors. 

Item 11. Executive Compensation

Information regarding executive and director compensation is incorporated by reference to information under the headings 
“Item 1-Election of Directors-Executive Compensation,” “Item 1-Election of Directors-Compensation of Directors,” and “Item 
1-Election of Directors-Executive Compensation-Compensation Committee Report” of the 2014 Proxy Statement.  The material 
incorporated herein by reference to the information set forth under the heading "Item 1-Election of Directors-Compensation 
Committee Report" of the 2014 Proxy Statement shall be deemed furnished, and not filed, in this Annual Report on Form 10-K 
and shall not be deemed incorporated by reference in any filing under the Securities Act of 1933 or the Exchange Act as a result 
of this furnishing except to the extent that it is specifically incorporated by reference by the Company.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters 
Information regarding security ownership of certain beneficial owners and management is incorporated herein by reference 

to the material under the heading “Item 1-Election of Directors-Amount and Nature of Beneficial Ownership” of the 2014 Proxy 
Statement.
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Equity Compensation Plan Information

The below table reflects information, as of February 1, 2014, about securities authorized for issuance under our equity 
compensation plans.

Plan Category

(a)
Number of Securities to 
be Issued Upon Exercise 
of Outstanding Options, 
Warrants and Rights (1)

(b)
Weighted-Average 
Exercise Price of 

Outstanding Options, 
Warrants and Rights (1)

(c)
Number of Securities 

Remaining Available for 
Future Issuances Under 
Equity Compensation 

Plans (Excluding 
Securities Reflected in 

Column (a))

Equity Compensation Plans Approved by
Security Holders -- -- 3,913,194 (2)

Equity Compensation Plans Not Approved by
Security Holders -- -- --

Total -- -- 3,913,194 (2)

(1)  To date, we have not issued any options, warrants, or other rights under the Sears Hometown and Outlet 
Stores, Inc. Amended and Restated 2012 Stock Plan that are exercisable for the purchase of shares of our 
common stock.

(2)  Represents shares of common stock that may be issued pursuant to the Sears Hometown and Outlet Stores, 
Inc. Amended and Restated 2012 Stock Plan.  Awards under the Sears Hometown and Outlet Stores, Inc. 
Amended and Restated 2012 Stock Plan may be in the form of restricted stock, stock units representing rights 
to receive cash or shares of our common stock, stock options, stock appreciation rights, and other awards.  
The amount reported excludes 86,806 shares of restricted stock that were awarded to eligible employees on 
May 16, 2013 and that remained outstanding as of February 1, 2014.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence 
Information regarding certain relationships and related transactions, director independence, and independence of members 

of the Audit Committee of the Company's Board of Directors is incorporated herein by reference to the material under the headings 
“Certain Relationships and Transactions” and “Corporate Governance” of the 2014 Proxy Statement. 

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services 
Information regarding principal accountant fees and services is incorporated herein by reference to the material under 

the heading “Item 3-Ratification of Appointment of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm — Independent Registered 
Accounting Firm Fees” of the 2014 Proxy Statement. 
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               Part IV

Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules. 
Documents filed as part of this report: 

(1) Financial Statements

Financial Statements filed in Part II, Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

(2) Schedules to Financial Statements: 

All financial statement schedules have been omitted because they are either inapplicable or the information required is 
provided in the Company's Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes thereto or included in Part II, Item 8 of this 
Annual Report on Form 10-K. 

(3) List of Exhibits 

Incorporated herein by reference is a list of the Exhibits contained in the Exhibit Index. 
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly 
caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.
 

Sears Hometown and Outlet Stores, Inc.

By:   /S/ STEVEN D. BARNHART
Name:   Steven D. Barnhart
Title:

 

Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer

and Principal Accounting Officer)

Date: April 3, 2014

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following 
persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities stated and on the dates indicated. 

* W. Bruce Johnson
W. Bruce Johnson

Director, Chief Executive Officer and
President (principal executive officer)

April 3, 2014

* William R. Harker
William R. Harker Chairman of the Board of Directors

April 3, 2014

* E.J. Bird
E.J. Bird

Director April 3, 2014

* Jeffrey Flug
Jeffrey Flug

Director April 3, 2014

* James F. Gooch
James F. Gooch 

Director April 3, 2014

* Elizabeth Darst Leykum
Elizabeth Darst Leykum

Director April 3, 2014

* Josephine Linden
Josephine Linden

Director April 3, 2014

By: /S/Steven D. Barnhart April 3, 2014
* Steven D. Barnhart

as Attorney-in-fact
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Exhibit
Number   Document Description

3.1
 

Certificate of Incorporation of Sears Hometown and Outlet Stores, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 
to Registrant's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended July 28, 2012 (File No. 001-35641)).

3.2
 

Certificate of Amendment of Certificate of Incorporation of Sears Hometown and Outlet Stores, Inc. (incorporated 
by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to Registrant's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended July 28, 
2012 (File No. 001-35641)).

3.3
 
Amended and Restated Bylaws of Sears Hometown and Outlet Stores, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 
3.1 to Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K filed December 9, 2013 (File No. 001-35641)).

4.1
 
Form of common stock certificate (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Registrant's Form S-1/A filed 
on August 31, 2012 (File No. 333-181051)).

10.1
 

Separation Agreement between Sears Holdings Corporation and Sears Hometown and Outlet Stores, Inc. dated as 
of August 8, 2012 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Registrant's Form S-1/A filed on August 31, 2012 
(File No. 333-181051)).

10.2
Amendment No. 1 to Separation Agreement between Sears Hometown and Outlet Stores, Inc. and Sears Holdings 
Corporation dated December 9, 2013 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Registrant's Quarterly Report 
on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended November 2, 2013 (File No. 001-35641)).

10.3
 

Store License Agreement between Sears, Roebuck and Co. and Sears Authorized Hometown Stores, LLC dated 
August 8, 2012 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Registrant's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the 
quarterly period ended July 28, 2012 (File No. 001-35641)).

10.4
 

Store License Agreement between Sears, Roebuck and Co. and Sears Home Appliance Showrooms, LLC dated 
August 8, 2012 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to Registrant's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the 
quarterly period ended July 28, 2012 (File No. 001-35641)).

10.5
 

Store License Agreement between Sears, Roebuck and Co. and Sears Outlet Stores, L.L.C. dated August 8, 2012 
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to Registrant's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period 
ended July 28, 2012 (File No. 001-35641)).

10.6(2) Amendment No. 1 to Store License Agreement (Outlet) between Sears, Roebuck and Co. and Sears Outlet Stores, 
L.L.C. dated December 9, 2013. 

10.7
 

Trademark License Agreement between Sears, Roebuck and Co. and Sears Hometown and Outlet Stores, Inc. 
dated August 8, 2012 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to Registrant's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q 
for the quarterly period ended July 28, 2012 (File No. 001-35641)).

10.8(1)

 

Merchandising Agreement between Sears, Roebuck and Co., Kmart Corporation and Sears Holdings Corporation 
and Sears Hometown and Outlet Stores, Inc., Sears Authorized Hometown Stores, LLC and Sears Outlet Stores, 
L.L.C. dated August 8, 2012 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to Registrant's Quarterly Report on Form 
10-Q for the quarterly period ended July 28, 2012 (File No. 001-35641)).

10.9(1)
Amendment No. 1 to Merchandising Agreement between (i) Sears, Roebuck and Co. and Kmart Corporation and 
(ii) Sears Hometown and Outlet Stores, Inc., Sears Authorized Hometown Stores, LLC, and Sears Outlet Stores, 
L.L.C. dated July 5, 2013 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Registrant's Quarterly Report on Form 10-
Q for the quarterly period ended August 3, 2013 (File No. 001-35641)).

10.10(1)
Amendment No. 2 to Merchandising Agreement between (i) Sears, Roebuck and Co. and Kmart Corporation and 
(ii) Sears Hometown and Outlet Stores, Inc., Sears Authorized Hometown Stores, LLC, and Sears Outlet Stores, 
L.L.C. dated December 9, 2013 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Registrant's Quarterly Report on 
Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended November 2, 2013 (File No. 001-35641)).

10.11
 

Services Agreement between Sears Holdings Management Corporation and Sears Hometown and Outlet Stores, 
Inc. dated August 8, 2012 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7 to Registrant's Quarterly Report on Form 10-
Q for the quarterly period ended July 28, 2012 (File No. 001-35641)).

10.12
Amendment No. 1 to Services Agreement between Sears Hometown and Outlet Stores, Inc. and Sears Holdings 
Management Corporation dated December 9, 2013 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to Registrant's 
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended November 2, 2013 (File No. 001-35641)).

10.13(1)
 

Retail Establishment Agreement between Sears Holdings Management Corporation and Sears Hometown and 
Outlet Stores, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8 to Registrant's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for 
the quarterly period ended July 28, 2012 (File No. 001-35641))
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10.14
 

Tax Sharing Agreement between Sears Holdings and Sears Hometown and Outlet Stores, Inc. dated as of August 
8, 2012 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.9 to Registrant's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly 
period ended July 28, 2012 (File No. 001-35641)).

10.15

 

Employee Transition and Administrative Services Agreement between Sears, Roebuck and Co., Sears Hometown 
and Outlet Stores, Inc., Sears Authorized Hometown Stores, LLC and Sears Outlet Stores, L.L.C. dated as of 
August 31, 2012 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.10 to Registrant's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for 
the quarterly period ended July 28, 2012 (File No. 001-35641)).

10.16

Statement of Work #1 to Employee Transition and Administrative Services Agreement between (i) Sears Hometown 
and Outlet Stores, Inc., Sears Authorized Hometown Stores, LLC, and Sears Outlet Stores, L.L.C. and (ii) Sears 
Holdings Management Corporation dated December 9, 2013 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to 
Registrant's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended November 2, 2013 (File No. 
001-35641)).

10.17
Supplemental Agreement between Sears Hometown and Outlet Stores, Inc. and Sears Holdings Corporation dated 
December 9, 2013 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to Registrant's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for 
the quarterly period ended November 2, 2013 (File No. 001-35641)).

10.18(3)
 
Sears Hometown and Outlet Stores, Inc. Umbrella Incentive Program (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.11 
to the Registrant's Form S-1/A filed on August 31, 2012 (File No. 333-181051)).

10.19(3)
 
Sears Hometown and Outlet Stores, Inc. Annual Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.12 to 
Registrant's Form S-1/A filed on August 31, 2012 (File No. 333-181051)).

10.20(3)
 

Sears Hometown and Outlet Stores, Inc. Long-Term Incentive Program (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.13 
to Registrant's Form S-1/A filed on August 31, 2012 (File No. 333-181051)).

10.21(3)
 

Sears Hometown and Outlet Stores, Inc. Amended and Restated 2012 Stock Plan (incorporated by reference to 
Exhibit 10.14 to Registrant's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the 53 weeks ended February 2, 2013 (File No. 
001-35641)).

10.22(3)
 

Form of Executive Severance Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.26 to Sears Holdings 
Corporation's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended February 2, 2013 (File No. 000-51217)).

10.23(3) Form of Restricted Stock Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant's Form S-8 filed 
on May 16, 2013 (File No. 333-188645)).

10.24(3)
 

Form of Executive Severance/Non-Compete Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to Sears 
Holdings Corporation's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended October 29, 2005 (File No. 
000-51217)).

10.25(3)
 

Executive Severance Agreement dated and effective as of August 6, 2012 between Sears Holdings Corporation 
and its affiliates and subsidiaries and Steven D. Barnhart (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.17 to Registrant's 
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended July 28, 2012 (File No. 001-35641)).

10.26(3)
 

Offer letter between Sears Hometown and Outlet Stores, Inc. and W. Bruce Johnson dated August 28, 2012 
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.18 to Registrant's Form S-1/A filed on August 31, 2012 (File No. 
333-181051)).

10.27(3)
 

Offer letter between Sears Hometown and Outlet Stores, Inc. and William A. Powell dated August 28, 2012 
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.19 to Registrant's Form S-1/A filed on August 31, 2012 (File No. 
333-181051)).

10.28(3)
 

Offer letter between Sears Hometown and Outlet Stores, Inc. and John E. Ethridge II dated August 28, 2012 
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.20 to Registrant's Form S-1/A filed on August 31, 2012 (File No. 
333-181051)).

10.29(3)
 

Offer letter between Sears Hometown and Outlet Stores, Inc. and Charles J. Hansen, dated August 28, 2012 
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.21 to Registrant's Form S-1/A filed on August 31, 2012 (File No. 
333-181051)).

10.30(3)
 

Offer letter between Sears Hometown and Outlet Stores, Inc. and Steven D. Barnhart, dated August 28, 2012 
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.22 to Registrant's Form S-1/A filed on August 31, 2012 (File No. 
333-181051)).

10.31(2)(3)
 

Amended and restated offer letter between Sears Hometown and Outlet Stores, Inc. and Becky Iliff dated April 2, 
2014.

10.32(3)
Executive Severance/Non-Compete Agreement dated February 14, 2006 between Sears Holdings Corporation and 
its affiliates and subsidiaries and W. Bruce Johnson (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.25 to Registrant's 
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the 53 weeks ended February 2, 2013 (File No. 001-35641)).
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10.33

Credit Agreement, dated as of October 11, 2012, among Sears Authorized Hometown Stores, LLC and the other 
borrowers named therein, as borrowers; Sears Hometown and Outlet Stores, Inc., as parent; Bank of America, 
N.A., as Administrative Agent and Collateral Agent, and other lenders party thereto, as lenders; CIT Finance LLC, 
as Syndication Agent; and Barclays Bank PLC, as Documentation Agent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 
10.1 to Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K filed October 15, 2012 (File No. 001-35641)).

10.34
First Amendment to Credit Agreement, dated August 29, 2013, among Sears Authorized Hometown Stores, LLC 
and the other borrowers named therein, as borrowers, Sears Hometown and Outlet Stores, Inc., as parent and a 
guarantor, Troy Coolidge No. 6, LLC, as a guarantor, Bank of America, N.A., as Agent, Swing Line Lender, and 
L/C Issuer, and other lenders party thereto, as lenders (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Registrant's 
Current Report on Form 8-K filed August 30, 2013 (File No. 001-35641)).

10.35
Guaranty and Security Agreement, dated as of October 11, 2012, by Sears Authorized Hometown Stores, LLC, 
and other borrowers and guarantors party thereto and Bank of America, N.A., as Agent (incorporated by reference 
to Exhibit 10.2 to Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K filed October 15, 2012 (File No. 001-35641)).

21(2)   Subsidiaries of Sears Hometown and Outlet Stores, Inc.
23(2) Consent of BDO USA, LLP.
24(2) Powers of Attorney.

31.1(2)
 
Certification of Chief Executive Officer Required Under Rule 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a) of the Securities Exchange 
Act of 1934, as amended.

31.2(2)
 
Certification of Chief Financial Officer Required Under Rule 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a) of the Securities Exchange 
Act of 1934, as amended.

32.1(2)
 
Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted 
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

101(4)

The following financial information from the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended February 1, 
2014, formatted in XBRL (eXtensible Business Reporting Language) and furnished electronically herewith: (i) 
the Consolidated Statements of Income for the fiscal years ended February 1, 2014, February 2, 2013, and January 
28, 2012; (ii) the Consolidated Balance Sheets at February 1, 2014 and February 2, 2013; (iii) the Consolidated 
Statements of Cash Flows for the fiscal years ended February 1, 2014, February 2, 2013, and January 28, 2012; 
(iv) the Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Equity for the fiscal years ended February 1, 2014, February 2, 
2013, and January 28, 2012; and (v) the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements. 

(1) The Securities and Exchange Commission granted confidential treatment for the omitted portions of this Exhibit.  The 
omitted portions have been separately filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

(2) Filed herewith.

(3) A management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement required to be filed as an exhibit to this Annual Report on 
Form 10-K pursuant to Item 15(b) of Form 10-K.

(4) Pursuant to Rule 406T of Regulation S-T, these interactive data files are deemed not filed or part of a registration statement 
or prospectus for purposes of Sections 11 or 12 of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, are deemed not filed for 
purposes of Section 18 of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and otherwise are not subject to liability 
under those sections.
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